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B

“AGM” the annual general meeting of the Company [RERBFE B KMN2017FE5H8318
to be held in Beijing on Wednesday, 31 May =l (BH=) EFTHBE
2017 at 10 a.m. or any adjournment thereof RIEREITHAR T
REBFAREHHEMT
AES
“Articles of the articles of association of the Company, [HBER B AQFANASERM
Association” as amended from time to time #Al | A (& BEHEET)
“associate(s)” has the meaning ascribed thereto under the [HMEAl & ABEBLmHRAIMAET
Listing Rules SRS
“Audit Committee” the audit committee of the Board [BHEE B ESSBETWETZ
=l Eg
“Board” the board of Directors of the Company [E582] K AQR=E=SS
“China” or “PRC” the People’s Republic of China and, except [ B HEARHENE G B
where the context requires, references in this BRIEXNEZSHFIIEE
annual report to the PRC or China exclude BRIARFREFBEN

RITBERE R

PIR

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

“Company” YIHAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LTD. (F& [ARF] B BESERZERERLD
BEIRIERRBBRAF), an exempted company 7 — X KR2013F
with limited liability incorporated in the 108 18HEFH 2 #
Cayman Islands on 18 October 2013 EFMRINER R

BIRATA

“Companies the Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622 [REMRBI] 38 BAREMIE622FE(A

“Controlling
Shareholders”

of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

has the meaning ascribed thereto under
the Listing Rules, and unless the context
otherwise requires, refers to Mr. Zhang Yong,
the non-executive Director, Ms. Shu Ping, the
spouse of Mr. Zhang Yong and ZYSP YIHAI
Ltd

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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“Corporate
Governance
Code”

“Director(s)”

“Financial
Statements”

“Group”
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“Haidilao Group’

“HK$” or “HK
dollars” and
“cents”

“Hong Kong”

“Latest
Practicable
Date”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Model Code”

“Nomination
Committee”

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules

director(s) of the Company

the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

the Company and its subsidiaries

Sichuan Haidilao Group and Singapore Haidilao
Group, the principal business of which is to operate
hot pot restaurant chain in the PRC and oversea
countries

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the
lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
the PRC

19 April 2017, being the latest practicable date
prior to the printing of this annual report for the
purpose of ascertaining the information contained
herein

13 July 2016, the date on which the Shares were
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the
PRC

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules

the nomination committee of the Board
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“Non-competition the non-competition undertaking entered into

Undertaking”
“Prospectus”
“Remuneration

Committee”

“Renminbi” or
HRMB”

“RSU”

“RSU Scheme”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Sichuan Haidilao”

between the Company and the Controlling
Shareholders on 25 June 2016

the prospectus being issued by the Company on
30 June 2016

the remuneration committee of the Board

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC

the restricted share units granted to RSU
participants pursuant to the RSU Scheme

the RSU scheme approved and adopted by the
Company on 24 February 2016 for the grant of RSUs
to RSU participants, a summary of the principal
terms of which is set forth in the section headed
“Appendix IV — Statutory and General Information
— D. RSU Scheme” of the Prospectus

the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the
Company with nominal value of US$0.00001 each

shareholder(s) of the Company

Sichuan Haidilao Catering Corporation Ltd.* (Y
JIIERE B M BER2ATF), ajoint stock limited
liability company established in the PRC on 25
June 2009, or its predecessor, Sichuan Jianyang
Haidilao Catering Co., Ltd.* (FJI| EEBETIEEBE
EXEBREE2AF), which was established in the PRC
on 16 April 2001. Sichuan Haidilao is directly held
as to 33.5% by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping
(the Controlling Shareholders), 50% by Jingyuan

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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“Sichuan Haidilao
Group”

“Singapore
Haidilao”

“Singapore
Haidilao
Group”

“Stock Exchange”

“subsidiary” or
“subsidiaries”

“Yihai (China)”

“Yihai Shanghai”

“ZYSP YIHAI Ltd”

%

Investment (which in turn is held as to 68% by Mr.
Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping), 8% by Mr. Shi
Yonghong (the non-executive Director) and 0.1%
by Mr. Gou Yiqun (the non-executive Director)

Sichuan Haidilao and its subsidiaries

HAI DI LAO HOLDINGS PTE. LTD., a limited liability
company incorporated in Singapore on 1 March
2013

Singapore Haidilao and its subsidiaries

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing
Rules

Yihai (China) Food Co., Limited (EB}& (1 E) & @
PR/A|]), a company with limited liability incorporated
in Hong Kong on 6 December 2013 and an indirectly
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

Yihai (Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd. (F&i% (L&) B mERR
‘A ), a foreign investment enterprise incorporated
in the PRC on 1 December 2014 and an indirectly
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

a business company with limited liability
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 10
October 2013, one of the Controlling Shareholders

percentage
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Corporate Information

DNEEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Dang Chunxiang

Mr. Sun Shengfeng
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gou Yiqun (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Yong

Mr. Shi Yonghong

Mr. Pan Di

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Ka Chi
Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yau Ka Chi (Chairman)
Mr. Shi Yonghong
Ms. Ye Shujun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Ye Shujun (Chairman)
Mr. Gou Yiqun
Mr. Qian Mingxing

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Gou Yiqun (Chairman)

Mr. Qian Mingxing

Ms. Ye Shujun

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Sun Shengfeng
Mr. Wong Yat Tung

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Sun Shengfeng
Mr. Gou Yiqun

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

LEGAL ADVISER

Davis Polk & Wardwell

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Somerley Capital Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

P. O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way

802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman

KY1 - 1205 Cayman Islands

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

No. 13

Liu Jia Yao Nan Li

Nan San Huan Zhong Road
Feng Tai District

Beijing, PRC
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Corporate Information

DNEEHR

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

18/F, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

T: 010-57423508

E: tzzgx@yihchina.com

WEBSITE

www.yihchina.com

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 1579

8 ESEEZERARADT Yiha International Holding Ltd.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF fHAGALEIBAER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(RMB’ 000) (AR®TT)
Twelve months ended 31 December
H112A31HIL12/@A
2016 2015 2014 2013

2016 & 20154 20145 20135
Revenue 'ON 1,088,014 847,339 498,231 315,863
Gross Profit EF 416,942 294,233 119,478 69,416
Profit before income tax BRETS L BDRER 255,089 166,920 57,156 29,519
Profit for the period HREF 186,720 124,547 42,510 22,064
Profit attributable to: UTATEEFEREF
— Owners of the Company . YNCIE ZEPN 186,720 124,547 42,510 22,064

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PSS BRIE
POSITION
(RMB’ 000) (ARMF )
As at 31 December
#Hi1r12A31AH
2016 2015 2014 2013
2016 4 20154 2014 5 2013 F
Non-current assets FREEELT 165,874 136,089 153,384 134,523
Current assets REEELE 1,257,792 453,275 132,253 90,218
Total Asset EEBE 1,423,666 589,364 285,637 224,741
Equity attributable to owners AAREE AEMGER
of the company 1,266,205 141,924 45,738 37,686
Total Equity R B 1,266,205 141,924 45,738 37,686
Non-current liabilities FRBEEEH — 186,667 — —
Current liabilities REAEEE 157,461 260,773 239,899 187,055
Total liabilities EEn5E 157,461 447,440 239,899 187,055
Total equity and liabilities REREEEH 1,423,666 589,364 285,637 224,741

2016 Annual Report % £ 3§ &
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Chairman

EFER

To our Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board and the management of the Company, | am
pleased to present the Annual Report of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016.

2016 is the first year of the Thirteenth Five-year Plan period, in which
the national economy maintained steady development, and the boost
of consumption to the economy has taken further effect. Specifically,
catering consumption grew at a relatively high rate of 10.8% over last
year. In this year, the condiment industry of China also grew steadily.
The demand was continuously released in the condiment market, in
particular in the compound condiment market, and the upgrade of
products has accelerated further. With the continued increase in the

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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income level of residents and the upgrade in consumption concepts,
the consumers’ demands are evolving towards diversification,
individualization and health; quality consumption and fashionable
consumption have become new hot spots of consumption. As a leading
and rapidly growing compound condiment producer in China, the
Group will keep a good and steady growth in its results in this year by
continuously introducing creative measures and catering to consumers’
needs in in order to closely adopt to changes in market demand.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, the Group optimized and expanded channels of sales to
third parties, and improved and expanded the product structure. In
relation to the establishment of channels, as of 31 December 2016,
the sales of the Group covered 360 cities in China, including all tier-1
cities, 32 tier-2 cities and 324 tier-3, tier-4 and lower-tier cities. As at
the end of 2016, the number of distributors of the Group reached 782,
representing an increase of 130.7% as compared to the end of 2015.
In terms of product expansion, as of 31 December 2016, the Group
introduced a total of 41 flavoring products, 9 dipping sauce products
and 15 Chinese-style compound condiment products, representing
an addition of 11 hot pot flavoring products and 11 Chinese-style
compound condiment products as compared to that as at the end of
2015. In 2016, the Group successively launched products including the
improved vegetable oil hot pot soup flavoring, improved spicy stir-fry
pot condiment products, handmade beef tallow hot pot soup flavoring,
pickles and fish stew condiment, premium boiled fish condiment,
pickled chili sour fish soup condiment, spicy red swamp crawfish
condiment and Chongging-style noodles condiment. We not only
closely follow the changes in the market of existing products to meet
the demands of consumers by continuously adjusting and optimizing
formulas, but also introduced various types of new products to meet
the diversified consumption demands of consumers and their pursuit
of the philosophy of healthy and nutritious consumption. The Group is
the exclusive supplier of hot pot soup flavoring products to the Haidilao
Group in China, and has constantly maintained good cooperation with
the Haidilao Group.
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In 2016, the Group provided strong support to the development and
optimization of e-commerce channels. With the further deepening and
expansion of e-commerce channels, as of 31 December 2016, the
Group established five flagship stores on such e-commerce platforms
as Tmall and Suning E-commerce. As of 31 December 2016, sales
revenue from e-commerce channels in 2016 was RMB29.0 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 422.9%.

In 2016, the Group continued to enhance its efforts to provide
management and supports in relation to diversified product portfolios
to third-party catering companies. As of 31 December 2016, the
number of the Group’s third-party catering company customers had
increased to 44 from 17 as of 31 December 2015.

In 2016, the Group continued to expand its sales network in overseas
markets. As of 31 December 2016, the Group exported products of
eight categories to 14 countries and regions.

In 2016, our Zhengzhou factory and Chengdu factory both ran in a
normal, efficient and orderly manner, which not only provides solid
technological support to the production of products newly upgraded or
newly developed, but also provides stable product reserves to meet the
market demand during peak seasons. The total investment amount in
the Group’s Bazhou Project is expected to be RMB300 million. Phase
| and Phase Il are expected to complete construction and enter into
operation at the end of 2018 and in 2020, respectively. The completion
and operation of Phase | are later than expected, mainly because of
the slight delay in its commencement as a result of complying with the
circular of Langfang Municipal Government regarding the Ten Strict
Measures on Preventing Air Pollution in Langfang.

The Group has been attaching great importance to team building, as
well as the employment, training and development of employees. As at
28 December 2016, in accordance with the Company’s RSU Scheme,
we granted and agreed to grant RSUs to some of the Group’s staff
and/or senior officers and business partners, in recognition of and as
a reward for the contribution of the eligible persons to the Group. This
will also attract high-caliber talents and incentivize them to stay with
the Group and contribute further to the Group’s future development.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

In 2016, the structural adjustment of the catering service industry
came to an end, and the catering consumption market recovered,
which drove the further development of the condiment consumption
market. In 2016, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB1,088.0 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 28.4%; and a net profit of
RMB186.7 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 49.9%.
The Group’s gross profit increased from RMB294.2 million in 2015 to
RMB416.9 million in 2016, and the gross profit margin increased from
34.7% in 2015 to 38.3% in 2016.

OUTLOOK FOR 2017

In the past year, we achieved remarkable results in terms of channel
optimization, marketing, product research and development, team
building, control of food safety and sales performance. Looking into
2017, the Group will continue to focus on brand positioning, devote
itself to the production and the research and development of mid/high-
end products, improve the penetration rate of the core products in the
market and further consolidate the Group’s leadership in the mid/high-
end hot pot condiment market.

In terms of product positioning, the Group will firmly capitalize on the
market influence of the Haidilao brand, and upgrade and optimize the
presentation of its products when appropriate. The Group will enhance
the consumers’ awareness of the brand, attention to the products and
recognition of and preference for the product contents. In terms of
sales channel, the Group will continue to enhance the construction of
its own sales force and strengthen its cooperation with distributors,
to continuously expand and penetrate into third and fourth-tier cities
and lower-tier cities. The Group will fully leverage on and manage the
increasingly established e-commerce channels, and to develop more
high-quality third-party catering customers. Meanwhile, the Group will
actively explore the broader overseas market, expand the penetration
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of its products and strengthen the sales capacity of terminals. In
terms of product research and development, the Group will continue
to focus on the mid/high-end market, produce, research and develop
new high-quality products, upgrade the formulas of existing products,
expand and optimize product portfolios and actively tap the compound
condiment segment, so as to improve the overall competitiveness of
the Company’s products. In terms of team building, the Group will
implement internal talent promotion mechanism, while at the same
time introduce outstanding external talents. This will provide due talent
reserves for the Group’s long-term steady development. In the new
year, all our colleagues in the Group will make further progress despite
various difficulties, to provide more satisfactory product experiences to
consumers and more valuable investment return to investors.

Chairman
Gou Yiqun

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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2016 PERFORMANCE REVIEW

In 2016, China recorded a GDP growth of 6.7%, a 26-year low. Against
a backdrop of a slowdown in the economic growth in China, the
catering industry and the consumer goods retail industry kept growing
rapidly. In 2016, the market size of China’s catering industry increased
by 10.8% year-on-year to RMB3.6 ftrillion, while the total retail sales
of consumer goods topped RMB33.0 trillion, a year-on-year increase
of 10.4%. Benefiting from the notable growth in catering industry and
the consumer goods retail industry, as well as the ongoing upgrade
of consumption as a result of the increased urbanization in China, the
condiment industry, especially the compound condiment industry,
achieved relatively rapid growth in 2016. The market size of the PRC
compound condiment is expected to reach RMB148.8 billion by 2020,
representing a CAGR of 14.7% over 2015-2020 and 22.1% of the
overall condiment market of China.

We are a leading and rapidly growing compound condiment producer
in China. In 2016, against a backdrop of economic downturn in China,
we still achieved a high growth in our business. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB1,088.0 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 28.4%. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the net profit reached RMB186.7 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 49.9%.

With the smooth commencement and the positive preliminary effects of
the nationwide channel development and channel adjustment strategy
of the Group, the number of the Group’s distributors has further
increased in 2016, and the Group’s control over sales promotion in
sales terminal and product display was further strengthened. In 2016,
the Group continued to deepen the distributor network penetration
in North China, and expand and deepen the distributor network
penetration in South China and East China. As of 31 December
2016, the distributors of the Group covered 360 cities in China, an
increase of 117% over 2015. As of 31 December 2016, the number of
distributors of the Group was 782, representing an increase of 130.7%
as compared with to end of 2015.
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In 2016, the Group enhanced its research and development efforts.
Based on the investigation and research of the taste and demand of
consumers, the Group upgraded and improved some of its existing
products, and also actively expanded its product portfolio. The Group
successively launched the improved products including vegetable oil
hot pot soup flavoring, improved spicy stir-fry pot condiment products,
handmade beef tallow hot pot soup flavoring, pickles and fish stew
condiment, premium boiled fish condiment, pickled chili sour fish soup
condiment, spicy red swamp crawfish condiment and Chonggqing-style
noodles condiment. As of 31 December 2016, the Group introduced
a total of 41 flavoring products, 9 dipping sauce products and 15
Chinese-style compound condiments, representing an addition of
11 hot pot soup flavoring products and 11 Chinese-style compound
condiments as compared to that as at the end of 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are a leading and rapidly growing compound condiment producer
in China. In 2016, against a backdrop of economic downturn in China,
we still achieved a high growth in our business. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB1,088.0 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 28.4%. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the net profit reached RMB186.7 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of 49.9%.

Sales Channels

In China, the Group is the exclusive supplier of hot pot soup flavoring
products to Haidilao Group, supplying customized hot pot soup
flavoring products to Haidilao Group, and supplying retail products
and customized condiments to Shuhai Supply Chain and Youdingyou
(related parties of the Company). The Group is also a provider of
cooking condiment to the family customers in China, suppliers of
catering services and food companies.

In terms of the sales to related parties (referring to the Haidilao Group
and associated companies) in 2016, the Haidilao Group achieved
stable growth in the same store sales and rapid expansion in the
number of restaurants, benefiting from the growth in the PRC catering
industry and the hot pot catering consumption market. The Group’s
revenue from sales to related parties amounted to RMB605.7 million,
representing an increase of 30.2% as compared to 2015.
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In terms of sales to third parties, the focus of operation of the Group
in 2016 was exploring sales channels, expanding sales channels to
lower tier cities, and improving product structures. The Group divided
its retail business into three geographic regions, namely North China,
South China and East China, to better adapt to the distinct regional
characteristics of the condiment industry. In North China, the Group
nurtured existing sales channels in first and second-tier cities while
developing sales channels in third and fourth-tier cities, and expanded
its marketing networks to lower tier cities. In South China and East
China, the Group strengthened development of distributors, and refined
and expanded the channel construction. As of 31 December 2016,
the distributors of the Group covered 360 cities in China, an increase
of 117% over 2015; the number of distributors of the Group was 782,
representing an increase of 443 or 130.7% as compared with the end
of 2015.

Affected by the overall PRC economy and the seasonality of the
Group’s products, together with the restructuring of distributor channels
by the Group in the first half of 2016, the Group recorded a slowdown
in the growth of retail to third parties during that period. Into the second
half of 2016, however, the Group booked remarkable recovery in the
growth of sales to third parties, following the completion of the Group’s
restructuring of distributor channels and the peak season of the hot
pot catering market. In the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s
sales revenue from sales to the third parties amounted to RMB482.3
million, representing a year on-year increase of 26.2%.

In 2016, the Group provided strong support to the development and
optimization of e-commerce channels. On one hand, the Group online
marketing efforts were increased, such as expanding and strengthening
the multiple consumption scenarios which can make consumers sticky,
and expanding and improving product portfolios. On the other hand,
the management and standardization of e-commerce channels were
strengthened, including optimizing purchase channels and managing
online pricing system. In the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
established five flagship stores on such e-commerce platforms as Tmall
and Suning E-commerce. Sales revenue of the Group from e-commerce
channels in 2016 was RMB29.0 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 422.9%.
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In 2016, the Group continued to enhance its efforts to provide
management and support in relation to diversified product portfolios
to third-party catering companies (including but not limited to hot
pot restaurants, baked fish restaurants, South Korean restaurants
and Chinese-style catering factories, etc). While maintaining a close
and friendly cooperation with existing customers, the Group actively
explored third-party catering company customers and developed
catering standardized products and customized products for such
customers. The number of the Group’s third-party catering company
customers had increased from 17 in 2015 to 44 in 2016. Sales revenue
from sales to third-party catering companies for 2016 amounted to
RMBS5.8 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 277.3%.

In 2016, the Group further expanded its sales network in overseas
markets by capturing the opportunities arising from the global business
growth of the Haidilao Group. As of 31 December 2016, the Group
exported products of eight categories to 14 countries and regions,
including Hong Kong, Macau, Burma and Malaysia which were new
export destinations in 2016. For the year ended 31 December 2016,
revenue from the Group’s exports was RMB20.8 million, up by 252.5%
over 2015.

Products

With urbanization in China becoming common, the consumption level
and the product structure continued to improve, and the consumers’
awareness of the importance of food safety has strengthened over
time. It is a general trend to select quality products with high brand
recognition and with guaranteed food quality and safety. As the
largest producer of mid/high-end hot pot soup flavoring condiment in
China, the Group took the lead in capturing the industry trend, further
strengthened the product research and development and structure
upgrade, and continued to supply condiment products which better
meet the needs of consumers.

In 2016, the Group successively launched such products as improved
vegetable oil hot pot soup flavoring, improved spicy stir-fry pot
condiments, handmade beef tallow hot pot soup flavoring, pickles
and fish stew condiment, premium boiled fish condiment, pickled
chili sour fish soup condiment, spicy red swamp crawfish condiment
and Chongqing-style noodles condiment. Through in-restaurant
marketing activities held at retail channels, such as tasting events and
roadshows, as well as other marketing events such as Chinese New
Year promotion events and “Hot Pot Festival” events which catered to
the market demand, the Group reached over 10 million consumers and
effectively boosted its terminal sales. The Group also communicated
with consumers and promoted our promotion materials by using new
social media (such as Wechat). As of 31 December 2016, the official
Wechat account of the Group had around 700,000 fans.
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The table below sets forth information on the revenue, sales volume  TREIIRAARHABAEERERER
and average selling price of the Group, by product type and distribution ~ R&EHEBETHKRA - HERFHIE
channels for the periods indicated: BRI :

Twelve months ended 31 December

#Z12R31H1L12A
2016 2015
20165 2015 %
ASPt ASP
Revenue Sales Volume O Revenue Sales Volume I

0N #HE  THER /0N #E  THEER
(RMB’000) (Tons) (RMB perkg)  (RMB’000) (Tons) (RMB per kg)

(AE®TFT) (8) (AR¥x) (ARBTR) (B) (AR%n)

Hot pot soup flavoring KB R

Third parties $=F 288,745 9,323 31.0 251,909 8,235 30.6

Related parties By 583,778 21,573 271 446,743 16,566 27.0

Sub Total NGt 872,523 30,896 28.2 698,652 24,801 28.2

Hot pot dipping sauce R EREER

Third parties $£=h 73,856 4,290 17.2 41,157 2,259 18.2

Related parties BEn 104 6 18.8 53 3 177

Sub Total Nt 73,960 4,296 17.2 41,210 2,262 18.2

Chinese-style compound condiment FRE A A

Third parties %= 116,351 4,962 234 87,720 3,338 26.3

Related parties )yl 18,194 706 258 7511 383 19.6

Sub Total Nt 134,545 5,668 2.7 95,231 3,721 25.6

Others @ Hipe 6,986 517 121 12,246 1,264 9.7

Total @5t 1,088,014 41,437 26.3 847,339 32,048 26.4

Note: MIsE :

(1) ASP refers to Average Selling Price. (1) ASPEFHEE -

(2)  Mainly including sales of certain raw materials to related parties in the first (2 FTEBELY¥FNEBAIEENETE
half of the year (such as chili, Chinese prickly ash and spice), and sales MR MEmH - EWREFRE 12
of certain products to third parties in the whole year (such as wide sweet FOFE=ZFHENETER > WEZH
potato vermicelli and two-flavor hot pot). REEBHRE -
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The table below sets forth the revenue of the Group by product type in
absolute amount and as percentages of the total revenue of the Group
for the periods indicated:

TREI BB EERERER S

DTHBRANBHEREAEERANE

oL

Twelve months ended 31 December

HZ12A31HL12{@8

2016 2015
2016 2015 %

% of % of

revenue revenue

RMB’ 000 {EUEN  RMB’000 =L ON

AR®TT Bk AR®BTIT Aotk

Revenue from hot pot NERERA 872,523 80.2% 698,652 82.5%
soup flavoring

Revenue from hot pot X EREERIL A 73,960 6.8% 41,210 4.9%
dipping sauce

Revenue from Chinese-style PREEFARMUA 134,545 12.4% 95,231 11.2%

compound condiment
Other revenues HewA 6,986 0.6% 12,246 1.4%
Total revenue Fll N 1,088,014 100.0% 847,339 100.0%

In 2016, sales of all the three major products of the Group, namely
hot pot soup flavoring, hot pot dipping sauce and Chinese-style
compound condiment, increased as compared with 2015. The Group
further increased its efforts in new product research and development,
and continued to optimize its product structure. In 2016, the Group
introduced 11 new hot pot soup flavoring products and 11 new
Chinese-style compound condiment products. As of 31 December
2016, the Group had a total of 41 flavoring products, 9 dipping sauce
products and 15 Chinese-style compound condiment products.

For information on the Company’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, see the section headed “Directors’ Report — Compliance
with Relevant Laws and Regulations” on Page 73 of this Annual Report.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

In the year ended 31 December 2016, the revenue of the Group
increased by 28.4% from RMB847.3 million in the year ended 31
December 2015 to RMB1,088.0 million, mainly attributable to the
increase in sales of our hot pot soup flavoring, hot pot dipping sauce
and Chinese style compound condiment products.

EEENWED
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Revenue by Product

K E i &7 BV A

Twelve months ended 31 December
HZ12A31HIL12/@A

2016 2015
2016 20156
% of hot pot % of hot pot
soup soup
Revenue flavoring Revenue flavoring
[ ON revenue A revenue
(RMB’000) {EXSBER  (RMB'000) fHASRER
(AREFRT) WBAESE (ARETR) WA
Hot pot soup flavoring revenue &R T ON
Revenue from third parties REE=FHKA 288,745 33.1% 251,909 36.1%
Revenue from related parties BB A 583,778 66.9% 446,743 63.9%
Total revenue from hot pot KRR BLE RN 872,523 100.0% 698,652 100.0%

soup flavoring products

The Group’s revenue from hot pot soup flavoring products increased
by 24.9% from RMB698.7 million in 2015 to RMB872.5 million in
2016, accounting for 80.2% of the revenue for the year ended 31
December 2016, of which, revenue from sales of hot pot soup flavoring
products sold to related parties increased by 30.7%, while revenue
from sales of hot pot soup flavoring products sold to third parties
increased by 14.6%. Revenue from sales of hot pot soup flavoring
products sold to related parties increased due to steady growth in the
same store revenue of Haidilao and the increased number of Haidilao
stores. In 2016, the Group’s restructuring of distributor channel has
mostly completed the Group’s. With the Group’s distribution network
deepened and expanded, the Group’s revenue from sales of hot pot
soup flavoring products sold to third parties increased as compared
with 2015.

REBABELERASWAB2015
FMARKES7H B T £24.9%
Z2016F MW AR M8725BE T 1h
HZE2016F12A31BLEEKR AN
80.2% - H > mEFH T EE XEER
ERWAEE3.7% ME=FHEEN
MERERBAIER14.6% © [ BB
HEABENERBAZREFESREN
BEBRIEEERBTER AR EREM
EHERER -2016F » NEBHKHED
REABARELRTH > BEEAREL
HIREHRMANEE  AREOE=H
HEXBERNERWAR2015FERIZE
§ o
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Twelve months ended 31 December
H#Z12A31H1L1218AR

2016 2015
2016 20155
% of hot % of hot
pot dipping pot dipping
Revenue sauce Revenue sauce
[ ON revenue LON revenue

(RMB’'000) {1 #BEER  (RMB'000) {hASBEER
(AR¥TFr) WAEDLE (AR%®TR) WAEDH

Hot pot dipping sauce revenue KEREE BTN

Revenue from related parties REE=FWA 73,856 99.9% 41,157 99.9%
Revenue from third parties RE B I WA 104 0.1% 53 0.1%
Total revenue from hot pot KEREE B E AR 73,960 100.0% 41,210 100.0%

dipping sauce products

The Group’s revenue from hot pot dipping sauce products increased REBNIBHEANERAEBRABR2015F
by 79.5% from RMB41.2 million in 2015 to RMB74.0 million in 2016, MARB412BETERT79.5% £2016
accounting for 6.8% of the revenue for the year ended 31 December  EARKE740BHET » {GEE2016F
2016, of which, revenue from sales of hot pot dipping sauce products 12A31TALEFERANGEY - HAp >
sold to related parties increased by 96.2%, while revenue from sales CEBESTHEHEANBBRNERWRALER
of hot pot dipping sauce products sold to third parties increased by  96.2% & @ = F i E XN HERE R
79.4%. Revenue from sales of hot pot dipping sauce products of the AEBET794% - KREBNBHBERZDN
Group is primarily derived from sales to third parties, the growth of HEWATFERBE=HHE HIZR
which was mainly attributable to the market recognition of the dipping TESENAEBEHEHIEENLIR
sauce products on which the Group has focused its marketing efforts. HAEE T TSR EE T 2016 5F
This had driven the sales of hot pot dipping sauce products in 2016. NERBERE RAVIHE -
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Twelve months ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLE12/ER

2016 2015
2016 20155
% of % of
Chinese- Chinese-
style style
compound compound
condiment condiment
products products
Revenue revenue Revenue revenue
WA EHREE KA hRREE
(RMB’ 000) EELON (RMB’000) FRA
(AR¥F 1) Botk (AR%TF) Btk
Chinese-style compound P8 S AR RN
condiment products
Revenue from third parties KEE=FBA 116,351 86.5% 87,720 92.1%
Revenue from related parties REBEHHBWA 18,194 13.5% 7,511 7.9%
Total revenue from Chinese-style F IR AR B 134,545 100.0% 95,231 100.0%

compound condiment products

The Group’s revenue from Chinese-style compound condiment
products increased by 41.3% from RMB95.2 million in 2015 to
RMB134.5 million in 2016, accounting for 12.4% of the revenue for
the year ended 31 December 2016, of which revenue from sales
of Chinese-style compound condiment products to related parties
increased by 142.2%, while revenue from sales of Chinese-style
compound condiment products to third parties increased by 32.6%. In
respect of sales to related parties, the Group carried out cooperation
with certain catering customers in the Shuhai Supply Chain to develop
new drivers of revenue growth. The Group introduced two new fish
condiment products (sour fish soup condiment and premium boiled fish
condiment) in 2016 to complement with the sales of existing pickles
and fish stew condiment. The Group has also continuously upgraded
and improved its Chinese-style compound condiment products such
as the spicy stir-fry pot condiment in accordance with the market taste
and demand, which has driven the increase in revenue from sales of
Chinese-style compound condiment products to third parties.

AEBPFRNESHAKRBAEHRAR2015
FMWARB2HE TE R41.3%
Z2016FMARBI45BE T 14
B ZE2016F12A31BLEEER AW
124% - Hih» QEBAEEFRNES
TR BUMAE R 142.2% » BE=FHINE
PFRESHARMBKAER32.6% - £
BAHEEFE  AEENBSMHEHEN
HoEBEREFRHAESIE  BREHHBWA
WREI - MAEEE 2016 FHHMR
AR R(BEARRRNBERAEA
FARBMNEEER L SHREAFAKRME
TEREHE  URREHTSOKEER
TEHARMRHMBAB BFARDNEEHT
PRESHARMER  FHTHE=
HEPXESARBBAN L -
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Revenue by Distribution Network

BASIH A5 27 BT A

Twelve months ended 31 December

HZ12831HL12/8A

2016 2015
2016 % 2015
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total
[ ON revenue A revenue
(RMB’000) {6 48 N\ (RMB’000) IR A
(NR#T ) Botk (AR#Tr) BOt
Related-party customers RABAER
Haidilao Group and its affiliates BEREEEREEEB AT 605,728 55.7% 465,103 54.9%
Third-party customers E=ZAER
Distributors KEE 442,358 40.7% 370,420 43.7%
E-commerce e 28,986 2.7% 5,543 0.7%
Others Hith 10,942 0.9% 6,273 0.7%
Third-party catering companies F=RBRTE 5,836 0.5% 1,547 0.2%
One-off sales events —RMEETE 5,106 0.4% 4,726 0.5%
Total revenue g N\ 1,088,014 100.0% 847,339 100.0%

Benefiting from the growth in consumption of hot pot catering, Haidilao
grew steadily in both the same store sales revenue and the number of
restaurants. The Group’s Sales revenue from sales to related parties,
which mainly represents sales to the Haidilao Group and its associated
companies, amounted to RMB605.7 million in 2016, representing an
increase of 30.2% as compared to 2015.

Affected by the overall PRC economy and the seasonality of the
Group’s products, together with the restructuring of distributor channels
by the Group in the first half of 2016, the Group recorded a slowdown
in the growth of retail to third parties during that period. Into the second
half of 2016, however, the Group booked remarkable recovery in the
growth of sales to third parties, following the completion of the Group’s
restructuring of distributor channels and the peak season of the hot
pot catering market. In the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s
sales revenue from sales to the third parties amounted to RMB482.3
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 26.2%.
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In 2016, sales revenue of the Group from e-commerce channels in
2016 was RMB29.0 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 422.9%. This was mainly attributable to the Group’s increased
online marketing efforts, including expansion and strengthening of the
multiple consumption scenarios which can make consumers sticky,
and expansion and improvement of product portfolios etc.

In 2016, sales revenue of the Group from sales to third-party catering
companies amounted to RMB5.8 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 277.3%. The growth in revenue from sales to third-
party catering service providers mainly came from the provision of
standardized and customized catering products to new customers
that the Group actively developed among third-party catering service
providers. The number of the Group’s third-party catering company
customers had increased from 17 in 2015 to 44 in 2016.

As compared to 2015, revenue from the Group’s exports increased
by 252.5% to RMB20.8 million in 2016. In 2016, the Group further
expanded its overseas sales network by capturing the opportunities
arising from the global business growth of the Haidilao Group. As of
31 December 2016, the Group exported products of 8 categories to 14
countries and regions, resulting in a year-on-year increase in overseas
sales.
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Revenue by Geographic Region I E) 7 A

The table below presents the revenue of the Group by geographic TRYR T AREBE KR E R S it i &
region for the periods indicated: DA -

Twelve months ended 31 December
H#Z12A31H1L1218AR

2016 2015

2016 20155
(RMB’000) % of revenue (RMB’000) % of revenue
(AR¥Tr) HBAESLE (AR%®TR) EBABSE

North China @ 4L O 593,427 54.6% 494,433 58.4%
South China @ el 473,799 43.5% 347,008 41.0%
Overseas markets B 20,788 1.9% 5,898 0.6%
Total a4 1,088,014 100.0% 847,339 100.0%
Note: MIsE :

(3) Includes Heilongjiang, Jilin, Liaoning, Inner Mongolia, Beijing, Tianjin, (3 BERETI &M -EZE REH -4t
Hebei, Shandong, Shanxi, Henan, Ningxia, Shanxi, Gansu, Qinghai, L= = s AR 1 VPSR N T :i W] [ = I
Xinjiang and Tibet. 25 -MA-HE FE FERA

o

(4) Includes Jiangsu, Shanghai, Zhejiang, Anhui, Jiangxi, Fujian, Hubei, 4 BIEI&%- - b8 I 2% I8 -
Hunan, Guangdong, Chongging, Guizhou, Guangxi, Sichuan, Yunnan and EFE- R -Hm -BER -EE-=B
Hainan. M EE - M) EEREE -

Cost of Sales SHERZA

The Group’s cost of sales, including raw materials, employee benefit REFBWHEHEXRKN(SIERME - BEER
expenses, depreciation and amortization and utilities increased by FEX - ITERBEE ARSZE)H 2015
21.3% from RMB553.1 million in 2015 to RMB671.1 million in 2016. FPHWARBSGEIIEETIEE21.3% E
Such increase in 2016 was mainly because of the increase in sales 2006 FE M ARM671I 1B E T 2016 F
of hot pot soup flavoring, hot pot dipping sauce and Chinese-style HERAKITANFERRZNBESR -
compound condiment products, which led to an increase in the NiBEERI AR ESTHARRNEES Y
corresponding raw material costs. n o (E15EE 2 48 FE 9 R A1 KL Rk AN BE 85
SRR I ELSIE M -
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin
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Twelve months ended 31 December

HZ12831HL12/8A

2016 2015
2016 20155

Gross Gross

Gross profit profit margin  Gross profit  profit margin

e ERfE EF ERZE

RMB’ 000 % RMB’ 000 %

ARBFT % AR¥TR %

Hot pot soup flavoring products NEBEALE m 328,037 37.6% 238,170 34.1%

Third parties = 161,832 56.0% 129,995 51.6%

Related parties E2liys) 166,205 28.5% 108,175 24.2%

Hot pot dipping sauce products NEREERLE M 25,381 34.3% 13,316 32.3%

Third parties = 25,338 34.3% 13,305 32.3%

Related parties )y 43 41.4% 11 20.8%

Chinese-style compound P E SRS 63,078 46.9% 41,163 43.2%
condiment products

Third parties %= 56,282 48.4% 39,163 44.6%

Related parties 2yl 6,796 37.4% 2,000 26.6%

Others HE 446 6.4% 1,584 12.9%

Total HEt 416,942 38.3% 294,233 34.7%

The Group’s gross profit increased by 41.7% from RMB294.2 million
in 2015 to RMB416.9 million in 2016, and the gross profit margin
increased from 34.7% 2015 to 38.3% for the corresponding period
of 2016. The increase in gross profit margin was primarily due to the
Group’s improvement in production process, selection and control of
raw materials and their costs, and the increase in the price of products
sold to certain related parties in August 2015.
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2042 B TR MN.7T%E2016 FH A
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34.7% IR 5 E 2016 £EIHIAN 38.3% °
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8 AN P A ERASERMAHEER
HEZ -
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Distribution Expenses

The Group’s distribution expenses increased by 36.2% from RMB93.9
million in 2015 to RMB127.9 million in 2016, at a growth rate largely
consistent with that of revenue. The Group’s distribution expenses as
a percentage of the Group’s revenue increased from 11.1% in 2015
to 11.8% in 2016. The slight increase in distribution expenses was
mainly due to the increase in distribution expenses as a result of the
optimization and restructuring of distributor channels carried out by the
Company in the first half of 2016. To meet the demand for business
expansion, the number of marketing staff expanded as compared with
the corresponding period of 2015, leading to a year-on-year increase in
related salaries and benefit expenses.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 40.5% from
RMB38.3 million in 2015 to RMB53.8 million in 2016. The Group’s
administrative expenses as a percentage of the Group’s revenue
increased from 4.5% in 2015 to 4.9% in 2016, mainly due to the year-
on-year increase in the number of administrative staff as a result of
business expansion, leading to increase in related salaries and benefit
expenses as compared to the corresponding period in 2015. Besides,
expenses related to the listing also contributed to the aforesaid year-
on-year increase in administrative expenses.
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Other Incomes and Gains

The Group’s other incomes and gains-net increased by 514.3% from
RMB3.5 million in 2015 to RMB21.5 million for the corresponding
period of 2016, mainly due to financial subsidy, government grants and
advisory service revenue received by the Group.

Fair Value Loss of Redeemable Convertible Preferred Shares

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s fair
value loss of redeemable convertible preferred shares was RMB35.3
million. The Company did not record such loss for the corresponding
period of 2015. The loss is mainly due to the fact that the redeemable
convertible preferred shares the Company issued in 2015 are initially
and subsequently measured at fair value and the fair value of such
redeemable convertible preferred shares as of 13 July 2016 had
changed from that as of 31 December 2015. The fair value loss is a
one-off item.

Finance Income - net

The Group’s finance income-net increased from RMB1.4 million in
2015 to RMB33.7 million in 2016, mainly due to the Hong Kong dollars
received by the Group from the initial public offering of the Company
in 2016 and the exchange gain in 2016 arising from the devaluation of
RMB.

Profit before Tax

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit before tax increased by
52.8% from RMB166.9 million in 2015 to RMB255.1 million in 2016.
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Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense increased by 61.4% from RMB42.4
million in 2015 to RMB68.4 million in 2016. The effective tax rate
increased from 25.4% in 2015 to 26.8% in 2016, mainly due to the
fact that the fair value loss of redeemable convertible preferred shares
could not be deducted before tax in 2016.

Profit for Reporting Period attributable to Owners of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased from RMB124.5 million in 2015 to RMB186.7
million in 2016. Basic earnings per share increased from RMB0.222 in
2015 to RMBO0.234 in 2016 and net profit margin increased from 14.7%
in 2015 to 17.2% in 2016.

Capital Liquidity and Financial Resources

As of 31 December 2016, the Group’s business was mainly funded by
the cash generated from its operation. The Group intended to apply
internal resources, net proceeds derived from organic and sustainable
development and from the global offering for the purpose of funding its
expansion and business operation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
primarily denominated in RMB and Hong Kong dollars and, to a lesser
extent, in US dollars. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents increased
by 334.5% from RMB235.2 million in 2015 to RMB1,022.0 million,
mainly due to the amount raised during the initial public offering in
2016.
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Asset-liability Ratio

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s asset-liability ratio® was 11.1%,
notably down from 75.9% in the corresponding period of 2015,
mainly due to reasons below. In terms of liabilities, 1) the Company’s
redeemable convertible preferred shares were converted into ordinary
shares after the listing; 2) repayment of other payables to related
parties, which is used in the construction of Zhengzhou production
facilities. Thus, as of 31 December 2016, other payables due to related
parties decreased markedly as compared to the corresponding period
of 2015. In terms of assets, the asset scale expanded due to the
proceeds raised from the Company’s listing in 2016.

Note (5): Asset-liability ratio is calculated by dividing total liabilities by total
assets at the end of each financial period.

Inventories

Our inventories primarily consist of raw materials, work-in-progress and
finished goods. As at 31 December 2016, our inventories expanded
from RMB102.8 million in 2015 to RMB130.5 million, mainly due to
the Group’s year-on-year increase in the amount of inventories as of
31 December 2016 to meet the growing sales. The turnover days of
inventories slightly increased from 61.4 days in 2015 to 63.4 days in
2016, remaining largely flat in these two years.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables represent amounts due from customers in respect of
sales of goods in the ordinary course of business. As at 31 December
2016, our trade receivables increased from RMB63.8 million in 2015
to approximately RMB67.1 million, mainly due to the Group’s year-on-
year increase in sales to related parties and certain third parties (such
as JD.com and customized catering products) as of 31 December
2016. Turnover days of trade receivables rose from 16.1 days in 2015
to 22.0 days in 2016, mainly due to the balance of trade receivables
as at the end of 2014 fell below normal value; and upon completion of
the Reorganization, the Group ceased to make offset in respect of the
trade receivables for the amounts due from Haidilao Group in 2015.
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Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. As at
31 December 2016, our trade payables increased from RMB43.3 million
in 2015 to approximately RMB71.3 million, mainly due to increase
in raw material procurements as a result of the Group’s production
expansion to meet the sales growth. Turnover days of trade payables
slightly increased from 26.5 days in 2015 to 31.2 days in 2016.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not charge any fixed assets as
securities for borrowings.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any bank borrowings.

Debt-to-equity Ratio

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s debt-to-equity® was zero.

Note (5): Debt-to-equity ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total equity.
Total debt is defined as including interest-bearing liabilities which are
not incurred during the routine process of business.
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Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transaction
denominated and settled in RMB. However, the Group has certain cash
denominated in HKD and USD, which is exposed to foreign currency
exchange risks. The Group has not hedged its foreign currency
exchange risks, but will closely monitor the exposure and will take
measures when necessary to make sure the foreign exchange risks are
manageable.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 1,135 employees,
comprising of 630, 390 and 115 staffs in production, marketing and
administration and management functions respectively.

The Group usually employs temporary contract workers during peak
seasons to assist with production. As at 31 December 2016, we had
288 temporary contract workers.

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s incurred
total staff costs (including salaries, wages, allowance, benefits and
equity incentive plan costs) of RMB122.3 million.
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In February 2016, we adopted the RSU Scheme that permits the
granting of RSUs to (i) the Directors, officers, senior management and
certain employees of the Company; and (ii) any person who, in the
sole opinion of the Board, has contributed or will contribute to any
member of the Company. As at 28 December 2016, 9,140,000 RSUs
were granted or agreed to be granted by the Company to 81 of the
Group’s employees and/or senior officers and the Company’s business
partners (not related parties of the Company, except for two directors
Ms. Dang Chunxiang and Mr. Sun Shengfeng) under the RSU Scheme,
equivalent to 9,140,000 shares. As at 31 December 2016, underlying
shares involved accounted for approximately 0.87% of the Company’s
outstanding shares. As measured by the closing price on the date of
grant was HKD3.18, the value of 9,140,000 RSUs was HKD29,065,200.
The grantees of such RSUs shall pay US$0.0082 (approximately
HKDO0.06) for the grant of each RSU under the RSU scheme. For details,
see Note 2.20 to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

Major Acquisitions and Disposals

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had no acquisitions or disposals
in relation to its affiliated companies, associated companies and joint
ventures.
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FUTURE PROSPECT

Industry Outlook

2016 is the first year of the Thirteenth Five-year Plan period, in which
the national economy maintained steady development, and the boost
of consumption to the economy has taken further effect. Specifically,
catering consumption grew at a relatively high rate of 10.8% over
last year. Quality consumption, green consumption and fashionable
consumption were key words of consumption this year. In 2016,
the condiment industry of China also grew steadily. With the market
demand being continuously released and the further acceleration of
product upgrades, the economics of scale achieved by a leading
enterprise continues to be demonstrated.

Meanwhile, Chinese consumers’ awareness of the importance of food
safety has deepened over time. More and more consumers intend
to select high-quality products with high brand recognition, and are
willing to purchase high-quality products at higher prices, to ensure
food quality and safety. With the penetration of e-commerce into many
aspects of the people’s daily lives, the competition in online channels
has intensified, and the sales channels of condiment industry faces
integration of online and offline channels. As the largest producer of
mid/high-end hot pot soup flavoring condiment in China, the Group will
capture the growth dividend resulting from the upgrade of consumption
in China and opportunities in the consolidation of the condiment
industry, continue to improve the Group’s market share and position
through organic growth and external development, and continue to
provide quality products which can meet the consumers’ demand for
food safety and taste.
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Business Outlook

In 2017, the Group will continue to enhance its research and
development efforts, extend the penetration of its products, improve
the sales capacity of its terminals, and enhance its market share and
position.

In terms of product positioning, the Group will firmly capitalize on the
market influence of the Haidilao brand, and upgrade and optimize
the presentation of its products when appropriate. The Company
will enhance the consumers’ awareness of the brand, attention to its
products and recognition of and preference for the product contents.

In terms of research and development of products, the Group will focus
on products attracting great attention in the market, and will gradually
introduce new products catering to the market demand in various
aspects such as packaging, taste and product diversification, by
continuously optimizing and upgrading existing products while actively
developing new products.

In terms of channel development, the Group will continue its reform
of sales channels by nurturing its existing sales channels in first and
second-tier cities, and developing sales channels in third and fourth-
tire cities. The Group will continue to improve the sales capacity of
terminals by expanding sales channels to lower tier cities.

In terms of marketing, the Group will focus on key products and
enhance the effectiveness of channels and terminals, intensely explore
and develop the marketing efforts in different scenarios and in different
regions, and pay attention to consumer feedback to improve and
upgrade products from the aspect of packaging or taste etc.

In terms of team building, the Group will consistently ensure internal
promotion channels and foster entrepreneurship, actively maximize
the passion and creativity of its staff, and attach importance to
employment, training and development of its staff.

In terms of food safety, the Group will continue to devote itself to
ensuring food quality by closely following the evolving consumer
expectations and food safety criteria.
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Material Investments and Prospect

The total investment amount of the Group’s Bazhou Project is expected
to be RMB300 million. Phase | is expected to complete construction
at the end of 2018 and enter into operation at the beginning of 2019.
Phase Il is expected to complete construction and enter into operation
in 2020. The completion and operation of Phase | are later than
expected, mainly because of the slight delay in its commencement
as a result of complying with the circular of the Langfang Municipal
Government regarding the Ten Strict Measures on Preventing Air
Pollution in Langfang. The Bazhou Project can effectively increase the
Group’s existing production capacity, ease the pressure from sharp
increase in the demand for production capacity during peak seasons,
and reduce its reliance on contract manufacturers. It can also optimize
the Group’s product portfolio by effectively expanding the production
lines for new products. Furthermore, it can maximise the upgrade to
the Group’s storage facilities. The Bazhou Project can help the Group
better control and manage logistics costs due to its central geographic
location in North China.

Future Plans for Material Investments

As of 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any material
investments, acquisitions or disposals. In addition, other than
the expansion plans as disclosed in sections headed “Business”
and “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus, the
Group did not have any specific plans for material investments or
acquisition of material capital assets or the actual operation of other
businesses. However, the Group will continue to extensively identify
potential strategic investment opportunities, continuously seek to
acquire potential high-quality synergetic target businesses that can
complement its product research and development, product portfolio,
channel expansion or cost control.

EEENWED

BEAREWNERERNS

AEENFEMNEBBREFETARKIE
7T FEET—HIEKER2018FRET -
2019 FEHRE » —HITRRE2020F % T
WEM FMNEE -—HIBHNRIRE
ERERBRATER TERABREY
BB RACER S T KRS 2P 08 T 1% &
PR MEA - —HI TI2A9B0 TR R
BERME - FMIEBE TEREN T DL
MAEEREER FEAZTHERES
BHEMMESR  RABLHENEER
KEE B AENNERTERNE
Ef HMmELEAEENERES E
BEHRRILOARETERNRFERE -
FMNEEVRELPLE  BEIRAK
SEF DR SEBYIREA -

RREARETE

HZE2016F 128318 AEBEIEE
TREMERKRE WERHE - i
BRIBRERER IRIKARTEIRFE
RIBAR | EHMEENERTEN > K
REERETEARESIWBERER
EESHMEBNWABRE - A K
EEREEEZSREBENRBEMERE
e BESRKRUAEEEEMRWFR -
ERAES REEBRMNIRKFEGE

H TRGBRMENNEEEEEND
%o

2016 Annual Report F [E #f &

37



38

BEEREREEEREN

Ms. Dang Chunxiang (#%&%), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director, the chief executive officer and general manager
of the Company on 7 March 2016. She has been a Director
since December 2015 and is primarily responsible for the overall
management of the Company, implementation of the decisions of the
Board; managing the Company’s operations including production,
procurement and human resources; and overseeing the financial goals
of the Company. Ms. Dang has been the general manager of Yihai
Shanghai since December 2015. Prior to this, Ms. Dang worked as a
sales manager of Kebao Boloni Home Furnishing Co. Ltd.* (}} & {&&
EXREER2 A from August 1998 to April 2002. From May 2002 to
September 2008, she joined Beijing Yuanzhou Decoration Co., Ltd.* (3t
FItMEERREBR A F)) as a manager of the kitchen cabinet department
and was later promoted to director of the home furnishing management
department. Ms. Dang was the vice general manager of Huawei Leren
(Beijing) Trading Co., Ltd.* (EEZ=(LR)BEZHRAF), a company
engaging in construction materials trading from January 2009 to
November 2010. Ms. Dang then joined Sichuan Haidilao and served as
the head of the operations department from January 2011 to December
2014. Ms. Dang served as the head of the operations department and
a standing deputy general manager of Yihai Shanghai from December
2014 to January 2015 and from January 2015 to December 2015,
respectively. Ms. Dang completed her graduate study in business
administration at Renmin University of China (F B A R X £) in May
2010.

Mr. Sun Shengfeng (#&f§1%), aged 37, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief financial officer of the Company on 7 March
2016. He is primarily responsible for overseeing matters relating to the
financial, investment and risk management of the Company, including
budgeting, disclosure and reporting. Mr. Sun has also served as the
chief financial officer of Yihai Shanghai since August 2015. Mr. Sun
served as the head of finance in Xi’an Yingiao Biotechnology Co., Ltd.*
(FAZIRBEY R ERDF]) from September 2003 to August 2007.
He joined Sichuan Haidilao in September 2007 and has held various
positions successively: he worked as assistant to the chief financial
officer from September 2007 to November 2011, the chief accountant
from November 2011 to December 2012, deputy head of the finance
management department from December 2012 to August 2013, and
deputy head of the asset management department from August 2013
to August 2015. Mr. Sun passed the self-taught higher education
examination for undergraduate study in business administration
with Xi’an University of Technology (Fa% ¥ T K£8) and obtained a
graduation certificate in June 2009. He completed his graduate study
in business administration at Tsinghua University in September 2010.
He was accredited as an accountant by the Ministry of Finance of the
People’s Republic of China (# 2 A K FE B BER) in May 2005.
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Mr. Gou Yiqun (%2 8f), aged 44, was appointed as the chairman and
a non-executive Director of the Company on 7 March 2016. Mr. Gou
has over 16 years of food industry and management experience within
the Haidilao Group. He has been a Director since October 2013. He
is primarily responsible for formulating the Company’s corporate and
business strategies and participating in the decision making for the
Company'’s strategic marketing projects and other major decisions. Mr.
Gou has also served as the chairman of Yihai (China) since December
2013. Prior to this, Mr. Gou worked as a teacher at Xi’an University
of Finance and Economics (78 % 81 & &) from July 1994 to January
2000. Mr. Gou joined Haidilao Group in January 2000 and has held
various positions successively after joining Haidilao Group. Mr. Gou
was the financial officer of Sichuan Haidilao from December 2001 to
June 2009, and has held the position of director of Sichuan Haidilao
since July 2009. Between July 2009 and December 2014, Mr. Gou was
also Sichuan Haidilao’s chief financial officer and vice general manager.
Mr. Gou also serves as a director and member of senior management
of associates of the Company’s Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Gou
completed his study in commodity business at Shaanxi Commerce
College* (BE7E £ E R E ) in July 1993. He received an executive
master of business administration degree from Renmin University of
China (FEI AR AZ) in June 2010.

Mr. Zhang Yong (5k &), aged 46, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 7 March 2016. Mr. Zhang is one of the founders of the
Haidilao Group and has over 20 years of food industry and management
experience within the Haidilao Group. He has been a Director since
December 2015 and is primarily responsible for participating in making
major decisions for the Company. Mr. Zhang served as the general
manager of Sichuan Haidilao from April 1994 to March 2001. Between
April 2001 and June 2009, Mr. Zhang served as both the executive
director and the general manager of Sichuan Haidilao. Since July
2009, Mr. Zhang has served as the director and chairman of Sichuan
Haidilao. Mr. Zhang also serves as a director and member of senior
management of associates of the Company’s Controlling Shareholders.
Mr. Zhang completed the executive master of business administration
program and completed the finance master of business administration
program from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (f;IE£x)
in October 2011 and August 2012, respectively.
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Mr. Shi Yonghong (iEk %), aged 47, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 7 March 2016. Mr. Shi is one of the founders
of the Haidilao Group and has over 20 years of food industry and
management experience within the Haidilao Group. He has been
a Director since December 2015 and is primarily responsible for
participating in making major decisions for the Company. Mr. Shi has
held various positions at Sichuan Haidilao since April 1994. Mr. Shi was
the vice general manager at Sichuan Haidilao between April 1994 and
March 2001, before assuming the role of supervisor at Sichuan Haidilao
between April 2001 and June 2009. Since July 2009, Mr. Shi has
been a director at Sichuan Haidilao. Mr. Shi also serves as a director
of associates of the Company’s Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Shi
completed his study in mechanics at Sichuan Kongfen Group Technical
School* (M) =5 # TE4) in June 1988.

Mr. Pan Di (i%if1), aged 35, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 7 March 2016. Mr. Pan has been a Director since December
2015 and is primarily responsible for participating in making major
decisions for the Company. Since January 2010, Mr. Pan has served
at Greenwoods Private Equity Funds (S RIEIREE$) as a director.
He was an attorney with the securities department of King & Wood
Mallesons in Shanghai from January 2007 to December 2009. Mr.
Pan has been a director of Ernest Borel Holdings Limited (stock code:
1856), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since December 2013,
and a non-executive director since June 2014. Since September 2015,
Mr. Pan has been a director at Handu Yishe Electronics and Commerce
Group Holdings Company Limited (B#HX & E T EEEERMOER D
7)) (stock code: 838711), and since March 2016, he has been a director
at Hangzhou Taofen8 Internet Technology Company Limited (#u/78%3
4B H AT BR 10 B PR 2 |]) (stock code: 834805), both being enterprises
listed on the National Equities Exchange And Quotations Co., Ltd.
Mr. Pan also serves as a director of an associate of the Company’s
Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor’s degree in law
from Fudan University in July 2004. He passed the National Judicial
Exam in the PRC in February 2008.
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Mr. Yau Ka Chi (BB 5RE55E 4 ), aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 20 June 2016. Mr. Yau has
over 30 years of professional accounting experience including 20 years
in serving China enterprises. He had worked for Ernst & Young for over
20 years in its Hong Kong, Toronto and Beijing offices with primary
focus in providing professional services in accounting and audit, initial
public offering, and corporate restructuring before retiring in September
2015. During his professional career with Ernst & Young, Mr. Yau was
appointed as the Professional Practice Director of Greater China from
July 2007 to June 2009, the Assurance Leader for China North Region
from July 2010 to June 2014, the Oil & Gas Industry Leader of Greater
China from May 2012 to June 2015 and the Assurance Leader of the
Energy & Resources Markets Segment of Greater China from July
2013 to June 2015. Mr. Yau is an independent non-executive director
of China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited (T EI S 4 AL 2B R 2 7))
(Stock code: 2319) since October 2016 and China Power International
Development Limited (P EIE H BB R B R 2 F)) (Stock code: 2380)
since December 2016, both companies listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Yau holds a professional diploma in company secretaryship and
administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the lllinois Certified Public
Accountants Society and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yau also holds a certified public accountant license
issued by the lllinois Department of Financial and Professional
Regulation, the United States.
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Mr. Qian Mingxing (£2fA£), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 June 2016. He is primarily
responsible for participating in making major decisions for the Company
and advising on issues relating to corporate governance, nomination of
Directors and remuneration of Directors and senior management. Mr.
Qian has been a professor at Peking University Law School (dtZR K2
JEEPT) since August 1999. He worked as a teaching assistant and a
lecturer of the law department at Peking University from August 1986
to August 1988 and August 1988 to August 1993, respectively. From
August 1993 to August 1999, Mr. Qian was an associate professor at
Peking University Law School. Mr. Qian obtained a bachelor’s degree
in law and a master’s degree in law from Peking University in July 1983
and July 1986, respectively. In June 2001, Mr. Qian obtained a doctoral
degree of laws from Peking University.

Ms. Ye Shujun (Z & &), aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 June 2016. She is primarily responsible
for participating in making major decisions for the Company and
advising on issues relating to corporate governance, remuneration of
Directors and senior management, nomination of Directors and audit.
Ms. Ye has been an independent director of Beijing Sanfo Outdoors
Products Co., Ltd. (RER=KXFINBRBRMBERADT) (stock code:
002780) since June 2011, an independent director of Beijing New
Universal Science and Technology Co., Ltd (1t B RF TR KR HE
BR 2 7|]) (stock code: 300472) since June 2011, and an independent
director of Anhui Guozhen Environment Protection Technology Joint
Stock Co., Limited (Z#HBEItEIRREFEERH R DB PRQ F) (stock code:
300388) since August 2016, all three being companies listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (& Il % % X 5 FT). Ms. Ye also served
as lecturer, associate professor and professor successively at the
economic management college of Beijing Jiaotong University (1£3
RiBARE) since December 1994. Ms. Ye completed a program in
international accounting and international tax at Xiamen University in
January 1990. Ms. Ye then obtained a master’s degree in economics
from Tsinghua University in July 1994. She obtained a doctoral degree
in management from Beijing Jiaotong University in July 2007.
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Ms. Dang Chunxiang (% %), an executive Director, the chief executive
officer and general manager of the Company. See “—Board of
Directors—Executive Directors” in this section for her biographical
details.

Mr. Sun Shengfeng (% 51£), an executive Director, the chief financial
officer and joint company secretary of the Company. See “—Board
of Directors—Executive Directors” in this section for his biographical
details.

Mr. Du Zhuang (#t#t), aged 42, was appointed as the vice general
manager of the Company on 7 March 2016. He is primarily responsible
for supervising the sales and marketing department and participating
in making decisions for the Company’s strategic marketing projects.
Mr. Du has over 14 years of sales and marketing experience in the fast
moving consumer goods sector. He has been a marketing director of
Yihai Shanghai since January 2015. He worked as the head of the chain
store department of Tianjin Dingjin Food Co., Ltd. (K}ZIE2ZR B AR
A #]) from June 2001 to October 2008. Mr. Du joined Sichuan Haidilao
in October 2008 and held various positions successively including
marketing manager from October 2008 to August 2009, sales manager
from August 2009 to August 2010 and senior sales manager from
September 2010 to June 2011. From June 2011 to November 2014,
Mr. Du served as a deputy head of the operation department of Shuhai
(Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd.* (B8 ((1LR)IREBRAT), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Sichuan Haidilao. Mr. Du completed his study for
undergraduate program in husbandry at Beijing College of Agriculture
(L =EEPR) in July 1996.

Mr. Xu Hai (1%i8), aged 43, was appointed as the sales director of the
Company on 7 March 2016. He is mainly responsible for developing
sales strategies and plans, managing the sales teams and controlling
the sales budget and expenses. Mr. Xu has over 8 years of sales and
management experience in the fast moving consumer goods sector. He
has been a sales director of Yihai Shanghai since January 2015. Mr. Xu
then served as sales director of Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.
(AtHEBESBLERIER Q) from October 2007 to March 2009. Mr.
Xu then served as a national sales director of China of Tianjin Otsuka
Beverage Co., Ltd. (K2 X ZKEE B R 2 7)) from April 2011 to June
2013. From June 2013 to December 2014, Mr. Xu served as a sales
director of Shuhai (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd.* (Bt REBRA
Fl), a wholly owned subsidiary of Sichuan Haidilao. Mr. Xu obtained a
master’s degree in business management from Northeastern University
(4L AE2) in July 2009.
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The Board of the Company presents this corporate governance report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and also the corporate governance report as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Corporate Governance Code sets out the principles of good
corporate governance and two levels of corporate governance
practices, as follows:

(@) code provisions, which listed issuers are expected to comply with
or to give considered reasons for deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices for guidance only, which listed
issuers are encouraged to comply with.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code.

The Company regularly reviews its compliance with corporate
governance codes and the Company was in compliance with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code during the year ended
31 December 2016.
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Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and is responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board also reviews the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements. The Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference which are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

All of the Directors have carried out their duties in good faith
and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and have acted in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders at all times.

Delegation of Management Function

The Board is responsible for making all major decisions of
the Company including: the approval and monitoring of all
major policies of the Group and overall strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, notifiable and
connected transactions, nomination of the Directors and
joint company secretaries, and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All of the Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the joint
company secretaries, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Each Director is entitled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the senior management.
The delegated functions are periodically reviewed. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transaction is entered into.
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Board Composition

The Board of the Company comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors Ms. Dang Chunxiang

Mr. Sun Shengfeng

Mr. Gou Yigun
(Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Yong

Mr. Shi Yonghong

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pan Di
Independent non- Mr. Yau Ka Chi
executive Directors Mr. Qian Mingxing

Ms. Ye Shujun

The list of the Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company from
time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent
non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all
corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in this annual
report, to the best knowledge of the Company, there are
no financial, business, family, or other material/relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2016, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board and at least one independent
non-executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his or her
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are laid down in the Articles
of Association. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on matters
relating to the appointment of the Directors.

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company
pursuant to which each of them has agreed to act as an
executive Director or a non-executive Director (as the case
may be) for an initial term of three years from 7 March 2016
(subject to re-election as and when required under the
Articles of Association) until terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the service contract or by either
party giving to the other not less than one month’s prior
notice in writing. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company and has been appointed for a term of three years
from 20 June 2016. The appointment may be terminated by
either party giving to the other not less than one month’s
prior notice in writing.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and the Board has power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any new Director to fill a
causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director
so appointed shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting.
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Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his appointment, so as to ensure that he or she
understands the business and operations of the Company
and that he or she is fully aware of his or her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors are continually provided with information
relating to the developments in the legal and regulatory
regime and the business and market environments to
facilitate the execution of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefings and professional development for the Directors
were arranged by the Company and its professional
advisers.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, each Director
has attended training sessions arranged by the Company
regarding the continuing obligations of listed companies and
its directors, disclosure obligations of listed companies and
update on the Listing Rules.
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6. Attendence Record of Board Meetings

a.

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code prescribes that at least four regular Board
meetings should be held in each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of majority
of directors, either in person or through electronic
means of communication.

The Board met two times during the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2016 for reviewing and
approving the unaudited interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2016, and for reviewing and
approving the implementation plan of the Restricted
Share Unit Scheme and so on.

ExgeRLELTE

BENUREFHEFE

T EESR T RIS AR
A11IRRE  BEED
FHEUAEHEEE®
EOEOBEELSH -
R BERZHEEERE
BBHEGR(ERBI R
BAEFBEEAN)

REMBERZE20165F
12831 HILHAEA - &
E2CAMAMAERE U
EH KA EBE20165F
6 B 30 B LE/NE B AR
BERHHIEE - Fakilt
HESZ PR FIME AR D B 5T &

B = Varaarad
BlEARES -

2016 Annual Report F [E #f &

49



50

The chairman of the Company held meeting with the
non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) once during the year ended
31 December 2016 without the executive Directors
present.

The attendance records of each Director at the Board
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of

Board Meetings

HRERE

Name of Director EEna EFEERRY

Ms. Dang Chunxiang EREEutL 2/2

Mr. Sun Shengfeng BEsELEE 2/2

Mr. Gou Yiqun BRI E 2/2

Mr. Zhang Yong REBSEE 2/2

Mr. Shi Yonghong i) &g 2/2

Mr. Pan Di AL 2/2

Mr. Yau Ka Chi BREGEE 2/2

Mr. Qian Mingxing 2 NS 2/2

Ms. Ye Shujun BEFELL 2/2
The Company has not held any other general meetings REmBEI#ZE2016 F

during the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2016.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each
meeting are made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all
of the Directors at least 14 days before the meetings.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notices were generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information were sent to all of the Directors
at least three days before each Board meeting or
committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions.

Each Director also had separate and independent
access to the senior management of the Company
whenever necessary.
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The senior management of the Company attend all
regular Board meetings and where necessary, other
Board and committee meetings, to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters,
statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The joint company secretaries are responsible for
taking and keeping minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to the Directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

The Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
the Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Gou Yiqun is the chairman of the Company and is responsible
for formulating the Group’s corporate and business strategies
and participating in making decisions for the Group’s strategic
marketing projects and other major decisions.

Ms. Dang Chunxiang is the chief executive officer of the Company
and is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
implementation of the decisions of the Board; managing the
Group’s operations including production, procurement and human
resources; and overseeing the financial goals of the Group.
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To facilitate discussion of all key and appropriate issues by the
Board in a timely manner, the chairman of the Company co-
ordinates with the senior management of the Company to provide
adequate, complete and reliable information to all of the Directors
for consideration and review.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All of these three committees are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available at the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination Committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

1.  Audit Committee

We have established the Audit Committee with terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules as well as paragraphs C.3 and D.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code. The Audit Committee consists of three
Directors, namely, the independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yau Ka Chi and Ms. Ye Shujun, and the non-executive
Director Mr. Shi Yonghong. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Yau Ka Chi, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2)
and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are
not limited to, assisting the Board by (i) reviewing and
monitoring the relationship of the external auditor and
the Group, particularly the independence and objectivity
and effectiveness of the external auditor; (ii) providing
an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control, compliance and risk
management systems of the Group; (iii) overseeing the audit
process and performing other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board; (iv) developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance,
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
and requirements under the Listing Rules; (v) reviewing
the financial information of the Company and ensuring
compliance with accounting standards and reviewing
significant adjustments resulting from audit; and (vi)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to the Company’s employees and Directors.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2016 and its main work involved the
following:

o reviewing the unaudited interim results and financial
report for the six months ended 30 June 2016;

° reviewing the financial reporting and the compliance
procedures;

o reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance;

o reviewing the compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and the disclosure requirement
in the corporate governance report as contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules;
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° reviewing the code of conduct and the compliance
manuals for employees and the Directors, the financial,
operational and compliance monitoring;

° reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems;

° reviewing the internal audit work of the risk management
and internal audit department; and

° reviewing the work of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee considers that the annual financial
results for the year ended 31 December 2016 are in
compliance with the relevant accounting standards, rules
and regulations and appropriate disclosures have been duly
made.

The Audit Committee had met with the auditor of the
Company in the absence of management of the Company
once in relation to the provision of audit service to the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee Meetings
are set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of

Meeting(s)

HRERE,

Name of Committee Member ZEERERA ERRE
Mr. Yau Ka Chi EBREG 4 2/2
Mr. Shi Yonghong i) & 2/2
Ms. Ye Shujun EHELL 2/2

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2016 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
on 25 March 2017.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1
of the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration
Committee consists of three Directors, namely, the
independent non-executive Directors Ms. Ye Shujun and
Mr. Qian Mingxing, and the non-executive Director Mr.
Gou Yiqun. Ms. Ye Shujun serves as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a
year. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (ii)
reviewing and approving senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board corporate goals and
objectives; and (jiii) making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2016 to review the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company, and consider and
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company.

The attendance records of the Remuneration Committee
Meetings are set out below:
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Attendance/

Number of

Meeting(s)

HERE,

Name of Committee Member ZEEMENE EHRRY
Ms. Ye Shujun EHELL 1/1
Mr. Gou Yiqun BEE AL 11
Mr. Qian Mingxing AR %A 1/1

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 33
to the Financial Statements. In addition, the remuneration
payable to the senior management of the Company (who
are not the Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report-D. Remuneration of Senior Management” of page 60
of this annual report.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee
with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5 of
the Corporate Governance Code. The Nomination Committee
consists of three Directors, namely, the non-executive
Director Mr. Gou Yiqun, and the independent non-executive
Directors Ms. Ye Shujun and Mr. Qian Mingxing. Mr. Gou
Yiqun serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include,
but are not limited to, (i) reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, (ii) assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the
appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2016 to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience and length
of service) of the Board to ensure that the Board has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company, to review
the training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management, and to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The attendance records of the Nomination Committee
Meetings are set out below:
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Meeting(s)

HERE

Name of Committee Member LZEEMENA EERRH
Mr. Gou Yiqun RBE AL 11
Ms. Ye Shujun EJELL 11
Mr. Qian Mingxing AR %A 1/1

Where vacancies on the Board arise, the Nomination
Committee will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations.
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Prior to the Listing Date, the composition and diversity of the Board
were considered by adopting the Board Diversity Policy including
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Company and for
effective leadership. All the executive and non-executive Directors
possess extensive and diversified experience in management and
broad industrial experience. The three Independent Non-executive
Directors possess professional knowledge in management, finance,
accountancy and legal, respectively with broad and extensive
experience in business advisory and management, respectively. A
summary of the Board Diversity Policy is set out below:

Purpose: The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity of the
Board and enable the Board to comply with
the Corporate Governance Code.

Board Diversity The Company sees increasing diversity at

Policy statement: the Board level as an essential element in

supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.
In designing the Board’s composition,
Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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Measurable Objectives: Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

In reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board,
the Nomination Committee has taken into account the measureable
objectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee is of the view that the diversity level of the Board is
appropriate in terms of knowledge, experience and skills of the
directors. However, the Nomination Committee will continue to observe
the Board Diversity Policy and consider potential candidates against
the objective criteria set out in the Board Diversity Policy in order to
achieve increasing diversity at the Board level.
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The remuneration payable to the senior management of the EREALATRESREEE(EBREIE
Company (who are not the Directors) is shown in the following B)NEFMZRERNTESR
table by band:
2016 2015
2016 20154
(members (members
of senior of senior
management management
of the Company) of the Company)
(RMB) (BARBR (CNCIIST
(AR™) EEEME) EEENE)
1-1,000,000 2 2
The Company has adopted the Model Code. Specific enquiries AT CERMEAESTH| - KATFE

have been made to all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during
the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2016.

The Company’s employees, who are likely to be in possession
of inside information of the Company, have also been subject to
the Model Code for securities transactions. No incident of non-
compliance of the Model Code by the Company’s employees was
noted by the Company since the Listing Date to 31 December
2016.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures
required by the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The senior management of the Company has provided such
explanation and information to the Board as necessary to enable
the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Company in order to put forward
such information to the Board for approval.

Pursuant to the resolution of the 2016 Shareholders’ general
meeting, PricewaterhouseCoopers was engaged by the Company
as the auditor of financial statements prepared under International
Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is set out
under the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
page 121 in this annual report.

The external auditor of the Company will be invited to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report and
auditor’s independence.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company for the provision
of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted
to RMB3.9 million, of which RMB2.0 million represent audit fee
paid/payable in relation to the audit for the Listing.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company in respect of non-
audit services for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted
to RMBO0.3 million. The nature of such non-audit services is to
provide advisory services.

The Board has overall responsibilities to maintain a set of sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems within
the Group. The relevant systems include a defined management
structure with limited authority that is designed to help the Group
identify and manage significant risks in achieving its business
objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The systems are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurances against material misstatement
or loss, manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the
Group’s operational systems so to achieve the Group’s business
objectives.

The Board periodically reviews (at least once a year) reports from
the Group’s management regarding financial, operational and
compliance controls, as well as the establishment, review and
assessment of the internal control and risk management functions
of the Group. All significant risks are reported to the Board at least
once a year.

On an ongoing basis, the risk management and internal audit
department of the Group assists the Board and the Audit
Committee in their review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. Risk management is
an integral and core operating practice of the Group’s business.
On an ongoing basis, the respective operating units of the Group
review and assess the status of potential risks which may impact
the achievement of their business objectives and/or those of
the Group. This review process includes assessments as to
whether the existing internal control system remains adequate,
whether potential risks are sufficiently addressed, and/or whether
it is necessary to supplement or implement adjustments to the
system.
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The risk management and internal audit department, which co-
ordinates risk management activities and reviews significant
aspects of risk management for the Group, reports to the Audit
Committee at each regularly scheduled meeting on matters
including, but not limited to, significant risks of the Group,
appropriate mitigation and/or transfer of identified risks.

The risk management and internal audit department adopts an
audit approach based on risk and control. The annual work plan
of the risk management and internal audit department covers
the major activities and processes of the Group’s operations,
businesses and service units. Special reviews are also performed
at the management’s request. The results of these audit activities
are communicated to the Audit Committee. The risk management
and internal audit department provides independent assurance to
the Board, the Audit Committee and the executive management
of the Group as to whether the Group’s internal controls are
adequate and effective.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Board
through the Audit Committee conducted an annual review on
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
The review covered the financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Group. The
Audit Committee and the Board were not aware of any areas
of concern that would have a material impact on the Group’s
financial position or results of operations, and considered the
risk management and internal control systems to be generally
adequate and effective, including with respect to the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions.

The Group has formulated an inside information policy and
regularly reminds its Directors and employees to comply with
all inside information policies. The Group established relevant
notification mechanisms to handle and discuss internal whistle-
blowing regarding financial, operations, internal control and fraud,
to ensure that every report receives sufficient attention. Significant
internal control deficiencies or accusations will be reported to the
Audit Committee.

Except as disclosed above, the Group is not aware of any other
significant areas of concern.
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The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company are expected to provide
a forum for communication between the Board and the
Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the
Nomination Committee and, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees and, where applicable, the chairman
of the independent Board committee, will be available to answer
questions at the general meetings. The chairman of a meeting will
provide the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answer
any questions from the Shareholders on voting by poll.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.yihchina.com, where information and updates on
the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

In preparation for the listing of the Shares on the main board of
the Stock Exchange, the Company has conditionally adopted
the Second Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles
of Association by a Shareholders’ resolution passed on 20
June 2016 which became effective on the Listing Date. The
latest version of the Articles of Association was published on
the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange on 13
July 2016. The significant change upon such adoption was that
the authorized share capital of the Company was increased
to US$50,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 Shares of a nominal
value of US$0.00001 each. Please refer to the section headed
“Statutory and General Information—A. Further Information About
Our Company—3. Shareholders’ Resolutions Passed on 20 June
2016” in the Prospectus for details. During the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2016, the Company has not made
any changes to its constitutional documents. An up-to-date
version of the Second Amended and Restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association is available on websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the re-election of individual Directors.
Meanwhile, the procedures for the Shareholders to (i) convene
an extraordinary general meeting; (ii) direct their enquiries to the
Board; and (iii) put forward proposals at general meetings are
available.

In accordance with Article 13.5 of the Articles of Association,
all resolutions put forward at a general meeting will be taken by
poll save that the chairman may, in good faith, allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter as
prescribed under the Listing Rules to be voted on by a show of
hands.

In addition, the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after the relevant general
meeting.

a. Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, any
two or more Shareholders or any one Shareholder which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition (deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists) not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
and carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, on written
requisition, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the Requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.

According to Article 12.4 of the Articles of Association, any
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by not less
than 14 days’ notice in writing. Subject to the requirement
under the Listing Rules, the notice shall be exclusive of the
day on which it is served or deemed to be served and of the
day for which it is given, and shall specify the time, place,
and agenda of the meeting, particulars of the resolutions
and the general nature of the business to be considered
at the meeting. The notice convening a meeting to pass a
special resolution shall specify the intention to propose the
resolution as a special resolution. Notice of every general
meeting shall be given to the auditors of the Company and to
all the Shareholders other than such as, under the provisions
hereof or the terms of issue of the shares they hold, are not
entitled to receive such notice from the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There is no single provision in the Articles of Association or
the Cayman Islands Companies Law for the Shareholders
to put forward proposals at general meetings. The
Shareholders who wish to propose a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the
Company, the Shareholders may send written enquiries
to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Shareholders may send their enquiries, concerns or requests
to the Company at 18/F, Tesbury Centre 28 Queen’s Road
East Wanchai, Hong Kong.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholders must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice
or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. The information
of the Shareholders may be disclosed as required by law.

The Shares were listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
on 13 July 2016. The total gross proceeds from the Global
Offering were approximately HK$880.8 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB759.3mil), whilst the share issurance costs
relating to the Global Offering amounted to RMB39.1million.
Thus, the Company raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$720.2million in aggregate from the Global Offering, which will
be mainly used for the following purposes: (1) constructing Phase
| of the Company’s Bazhou Production Base located in Bazhou,
Hebei Province; (2) potential strategic acquisition opportunities
in the future; (3) promoting the Company’s products and brand;
(4) enhancing our research and development capabilities; and
(5) working capital and general corporate purposes. Such
net proceeds were calculated after the deduction of relevant
underwriting commission, estimated expenses payable by the
Company, transaction levy and trading fee.

The total investment amount of the Group’s Bazhou Project is
expected to be RMB300 million. Phase | is expected to complete
construction at the end of 2018 and enter into operation at the
beginning of 2019. Phase Il is expected to complete construction
and enter into operation in 2020. The completion and operation
of Phase | are later than expected, mainly because of the slight
delay in its commencement as a result of complying with the
circular of the Langfang Municipal Government regarding the
Ten Strict Measures on Preventing Air Pollution in Langfang. And
at the same time, the Group will continue to extensively identify
potential strategic investment opportunities, continuously seek
to acquire potential highquality synergetic target businesses that
can complement its product research and development, product
portfolio, channel expansion or cost control.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company cumulatively used 1.71%
of the proceeds from the global offering for the abovementioned
purposes.
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Mr. Wong Yat Tung (“Mr. Wong”) of SW Corporate Services
Group Limited, external service provider, and Mr. Sun Shengfeng
(“Mr. Sun”), the executive Director and chief financial officer
of the Company, have been engaged by the Company as joint
company secretaries effective on 12 March 2016. Mr. Sun
has been engaged by the Company as one of the authorized
representatives.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Mr. Wong and Mr. Sun
have undertaken over 15 hours of professional training to update
their skill and knowledge.

Mr. Sun Shengfeng, the executive Director and chief financial
officer, is the primary corporate contact person of the joint
company secretary, Mr. Wong.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to the Shareholders through the optimization of the debt
and equity balance.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that cast significant doubt upon the Company’s liability to
continue as a going concern.
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The Board of the Company presents this directors’ report in the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

We are a leading and fast-growing compound condiment manufacturer
in China primarily focused on the hot pot condiment market. We are
the sole supplier of hot pot soup flavoring products for Haidilao Group
in China. We employ a distributor model to sell our products, and our
physical distribution network is supplemented by e-commerce channels
& third-party catering companies, which have recently experienced
significant development. The Group also further expands its sales
network in overseas markets.

The principal activities of the Group are researching and developing,
manufacturing, distributing and selling high-quality hot pot soup
flavoring, hot pot dipping sauce and Chinese-style compound
condiment products. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year ended 31 December
2016.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
133 of this annual report.

The Board resolved to propose to the Shareholders in the forthcoming
AGM on Wednesday, 31 May 2017 for the distribution of a final
dividend of RMB3.5671 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2016. The final dividend is expected to be paid on or about Monday,
19 June 2017 to the Shareholders whose names are listed in the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, 8 June 2017, in an
aggregate amount of RMB37.344 million. Subject to the consideration
and approval of the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting, the
final dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars based on the average
benchmark exchange rate of Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars as
announced by the People’s Bank of China in the five working days
prior to but excluding the date of the Board Meeting, that is HK$4.0226
cents per Share.
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The Company’s global offering on the main board of the Stock
Exchange was completed on 13 July 2016 with issuance of
260,000,000 Shares. China International Capital Corporation Hong
Kong Securities Limited, on behalf of the International Underwriters (as
defined in the Prospectus) partially exercised the over-allotment option
on 5 August 2016 with issuance of 6,900,000 Shares and its completion
took place on 12 August 2016.

Details of the issued shares of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out in note 16 to the Financial Statements.

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 134 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has distributable reserves of
RMB2,087.9 million in total available for distribution.

The Group’s financial summary the last four financial years is set out on
page 9 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has recorded no bank loans and
other borrowings.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 7
to the Financial Statements.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the
Latest Practicable Date.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

The Shares were listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
on 13 July 2016. The total gross proceeds from the Global Offering
were approximately HK$880.8 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB759.3mil), whilst the share issurance costs relating to the Global
Offering amounted to RMB39.1million. Thus, the Company raised net
proceeds of approximately HK$720.2million in aggregate from the
Global Offering, which will be mainly used for the following purposes:
(1) constructing Phase | of the Company’s Bazhou Production Base
located in Bazhou, Hebei Province; (2) potential strategic acquisition
opportunities in the future; (3) promoting the Company’s products and
brand; (4) enhancing our research and development capabilities; and
(5) working capital and general corporate purposes. Such net proceeds
are calculated after deduction of relevant underwriting commission,
estimated expenses payable by the Company, transaction levy and
trading fee.

For details, please refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report — Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering” on page 67 of this
annual report.
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Overview and performance of the Year

Business review and financial review are provided in the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis section on pages 15 to
37 of this annual report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

It is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental-friendly environment, we strive to
minimize our environmental impact by saving electricity and to
build our corporation in a sustainable way.

The Group has undergone a series of effective energy-saving
and pollutant-reducing measures such as conserving water and
electricity, reducing the creation and emission of pollutants during
the production process and optimizing production lines.

Additionally, we have adopted a set of emergency planning,
response and control procedures as countermeasures for
unexpected environmental pollution accidents to minimize
our impact on the environment and the adverse effect on our
business. We incurred RMB1.0 million (2015: RMB0.9 million)
in environmental compliance costs for the year ended 31
December 2016. Such environmental compliance costs relate to
expenditures in implementing environmental protection policies,
and for the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has not
incurred any fines as a result of environmental pollution.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group has complied with the requirements under the
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, the SFO and the
Corporate Governance Code for, among other things, the
disclosure of information and corporate governance. The Group
has also complied with other relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Relationship with Haidilao Group and its Affiliates

One group of the primary customers of the Company is Haidilao
Group and its affiliates. We are the sole supplier of hot pot soup
flavoring products to Haidilao Group in China. The hot pot soup
flavoring products that we sell to Haidilao Group for use in its
hot pot restaurants are customized products meeting Haidilao
Group’s specific requirements. In addition, our retail products
are displayed and sold directly to consumers in Haidilao hot pot
restaurants. In general, Haidilao Group makes purchase orders
based on customer demands. We have the right to arrange
production ahead of time and stock the finished products in
anticipation of peak seasons. We do not allow Haidilao Group to
return any delivered products except for defective ones or sell any
expired products. We also sell retail and customized condiment
products to Shuhai Supply Chain and Youdingyou, our affiliated
companies.
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Relationship with our distributors

The other group of the Company’s primary customers is the
distributors, who in turn resell our products to sub-distributors
and retailers, including hypermarkets, supermarkets, grocery
stores, neighborhood stores and butcher shops across China. As
at 31 December 2016, we had more than 782 distributors and an
extensive distribution network covering all of China’s 31 provincial
territories and 14 overseas countries and markets.

Management of Our Distributors

Our distributors are typically regional distributors primarily
involved in the distribution of food and condiment products
with well-established local distribution networks. We select
our distributors in each region based on factors including
their business qualifications and distribution capabilities.
The distribution capabilities we consider include breadth
and quality of sales network, reputation, creditworthiness
and financial conditions, and capabilities in personnel,
warehousing, logistics and transportation.

We have a seller-buyer relationship with our distributors. The
ownership of the products, as well as all risks and rewards
associated therewith are transferred to them upon delivery
and acceptance. In general, our sales to our distributors
are made on a payment-before-delivery basis according
to our distribution agreements with our distributors with
certain exceptions during our peak seasons. We formulate
a monthly production plan based on historical sales and
market demand. Upon receipt of purchase orders, we will
first deliver the products previously prepared based on the
relatively conservative monthly plan and further produce and
deliver the shortfall, if any. Due to our effective production
and inventory management, our warehouse time of finished
products is approximately seven days for retail products
and 30 days for customized products sold to related parties.
Once the products are delivered to the distributors, they
cannot be returned except for defective products.
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Distributors Performance and Inventory Management

We closely monitor the performance of our distributors. For
example, our sales personnel conduct inspections of our
distributors from time to time to monitor their sales, sales
prices, marketing activities, storage conditions, logistics
facilities, staff quality, quality control and inventory levels.
Generally, we require our distributors to report to us their
inventory records every two weeks to cross-check with our
internal data base. Our staff also conduct monthly inventory
checks at randomly selected distributors. When we notice
that our distributors have excessive inventories or their
sales volumes drop significantly, we may make inquiries and
adopt necessary measures such as suspending the supply
of relevant products. We prohibit our distributors from selling
any expired products. Through visiting the retailers and sub-
distributors and verifying the two-dimensional code that we
implanted on our products, we also monitor whether our
distributors distribute our products within their designated
geographic regions and whether they sell any counterfeit
products. Through these activities, we ensure that our sales
to distributors reflect genuine market demand and our
distributors are complying with the terms and conditions of
their distribution agreements. If we discover non-compliance
issues, we inform the relevant distributor and request the
distributor to cease the non-compliant activities within a
specified period of time. Our distributors are also liable for
breaches of their distribution agreements, and we can claim
compensation from them for relevant breaches. We can
terminate the distribution agreements if they breach material
provisions stipulated therein.
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We provide sales rebate as an incentive to our third-party
distributors when they achieve or exceed the sales targets
set out in their distribution agreements, which are negotiated
and determined based on various factors such as past
performance and market conditions. If a distributor achieves
or exceeds its sales target, we will grant the rebate by
providing certain discount for such distributor’s purchases
in the next year. Such sales rebates are deducted from our
revenue for each of the relevant periods. We do not impose
minimum annual purchase requirement in the distribution
agreements. If a distributor fails to achieve its sales target,
then it will not be entitled to the sales rebate as described
above.

Relationship with Third-party Catering Service Providers

Leveraging our experience in providing customized services to
Haidilao Group, we provide customized compound condiment
products to third-party catering service providers, primarily hot
pot restaurants, spicy stir-fry pot restaurants and barbecue
restaurants.

We use a standardized agreement for these services. Our
customers will discuss their requirements with us before placing
orders. Following our agreement on the detailed requirements
of the customized condiment products, packaging requirements
and purchase prices, our customers will pay an advance payment
equal to 50% of the total purchase price for our manufacturing
and pay the remainder before delivery. Almost all of our
customers are not allowed to return any products after completion
of inspection and acceptance. Our customers are required to use
the customized condiment products only for their provision of
catering services and may not resell the condiment products to
other parties. Typically if the third-party catering service providers
consumed Company’s retail products, then they are Company’s
own product formula. But if it is customized condiment, then it
will be the same arrangements as the connected sales to Haidilao
Group, i.e., the Company will not own the intellectual property
right of the product formula.

As an increasing number of service providers intend to take
advantage of the high quality and consistent products offered by
large and reputable manufacturers, we believe there is significant
growth potential for us in providing customized services to third-
party catering service providers.
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Relationship with Our Suppliers

Our raw materials are generally available from various suppliers.
To maintain high standards of product quality and food safety,
we place strong emphasis on sourcing high-quality raw materials
from large suppliers with good reputations. We minimize our
reliance on any single source of supply by maintaining at least
two suppliers for each type of raw material. We also implement
various measures to monitor the performance of our suppliers,
including sample examination and on-site inspections.

We usually enter into supply agreements with our suppliers on an
annual basis. Our suppliers are required to provide raw materials
adhering to the quality requirement under the supply agreements
and are responsible for any liabilities caused by product defects.
Our supply agreements do not have an automatic renewal clause.

Relationship with Our Employees

We embrace our employees as the most valuable assets of
the Group, the objective of the Group’s human resources
management is to reward and recognize outstanding
employees by providing competitive remuneration packages
and implementing a sound performance appraisal system with
appropriate incentives, and to promote career development and
progression within the Group by providing adequate training and
opportunities.

Relationship with Shareholders

We recognize the importance to protect the interests of the
Shareholders and of having an effective communication with
them. We believe communication with the Shareholders is a
two-way process and have thrived to ensure the quality and
effectiveness of information disclosure, maintain regular dialogue
with the Shareholders and listen carefully to the views and
feedback from the Shareholders. This has been done through
general meetings, corporate communications, interim and annual
reports and results announcements.
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Principal Risk and Uncertainties
Risk of Heavy Reliance on Haidilao:

The Company sells and markets its products under the “Haidilao”
(8 JE #) brand. If the Company fails to maintain the exclusive
rights to use the “Haidilao” (&) brand in its condiment
products during the term of the licensing arrangement, its
business may be materially and adversely affected.

If the “Haidilao” ((&/&#5) brand is harmed, the Company’s
business may be materially and adversely affected.

The Company derives significant revenue from Haidilao Group,
and the Company will continue to conduct connected transactions
with Haidilao Group in the foreseeable future. Any significant
reduction in sales to or the loss of Haidilao Group could materially
and adversely affect the Company’s business and results of
operations.

Risk of Fluctuated Operations

Since a majority of the Company’s revenue is derived from hot
pot condiment products and there are seasonal patterns for hot
pot consumption, our business is subject to seasonal fluctuations.
Historically, we have experienced higher sales of our hot pot
condiment products during the winter months and lower sales
during the summer months, resulting in our higher revenues in the
second half of each year. Such seasonality may also vary across
different regions in China. Due to the seasonality of our business,
the results of any period of a year are not necessarily indicative of
the results that may be achieved for the full year.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.

TEABRAEEME
BERFESE IR -

AR AT B IE Ae 5  J  8
HER - WEAREERFTRE
SRR A EL TR S o E DS
1 RIS R B a
ST A EARALE -

i BEE |mEZE - BAQFN
EBIHEEZEERTFEE -

ARB B BEEEERSGHEERD
B A - BT B A SRS A B
EHESEETHEERS - 8K
BREBENEENE T ERAEEE
BREE  TREHARTNEBER
REXEBERERNTHZE -

ALK B R /m P

HRAQBHRIBOWARE KB
Ak MASEEFESEME
HERMNEB SR B MR
S8 - L RPNV BARRE
LENHERS  HEZWHER
B BEFERMSFTFFHRAR
B ZEHHERREPEBNTEE
BN EARAE - BREMER
MZEEE - —FREAHBNEEA
RUBEFRREF A EGHIRA



Risk of Failure to Maintain Products Quality

The quality and safety of our products is critical to our success.
Maintaining consistent product quality depends significantly
on the effectiveness of our quality control systems, which in
turn depends on a number of factors, including the design of
our quality control systems and our ability to ensure that our
employees adhere to and implement those quality control policies
and guidelines. Our quality control system covers each phase of
our operation including procurement, production, inventory and
logistics processes. However, there can be no assurance that our
quality control systems will prove to be effective. Any significant
failure or deterioration of our quality control systems could have
a material adverse effect on our reputation, results of operations
and financial conditions.

A description of the future development in the Company’s business
is provided in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 13 to 14 and pages 35 to 37
respectively of this annual report.

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring disclosure
that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this report.
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The Directors up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Dang Chunxiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Sun Shengfeng

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gou Yiqun (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Yong

Mr. Shi Yonghong

Mr. Pan Di

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Ka Chi
Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors will retire by rotation at every annual general meeting
(provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years) and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. Ms. Dang Chunxiang, Mr. Sun Shengfeng and Mr. Pan
Di will retire from the Board by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 38 to 43 of this annual report.
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One of the Directors, Mr. Yau Ka Chi became an independent non-
executive director and chairman of the audit committee of China
Mengniu Dairy Company Limited, a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2319), effective on 1 October 2016.
Mr. Yau also became an independent non-executive director, a member
of the audit committee, the remuneration and nomination committee
and the risk management committee of China Power International
Development Limited (stock code: 2380), a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange, effective on 12 December 2016.

Another Director, Mr. Pan Di, became a director at Handu Yishe
Electronics and Commerce Group Holdings Company Limited (38#&i7x&
EFEREBERMAMRLDE) (stock code: 838711) since September 2015,
and since March 2016 became a director at Hangzhou Taofen8 Internet
Technology Company Limited (FiMEMIEHE MR HDERAR) (stock
code: 834805), both being enterprises listed on the National Equities
Exchange And Quotations Co., Ltd.

Another Director, Ms. Ye Shujun, became an independent director of
Anhui Guozhen Environment Protection Technology Joint Stock Co.,
Limited (ZHBEItERREFBERIIRMDBR A R]) (stock code: 300388), a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, since August 2016.

Save as disclosed above, since the Listing Date, there has been no
change in the information of the Directors as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules.

The executive Directors and non-executive Directors have each entered
into a service contract with the Company pursuant to which they agree
to act as an executive Director or a non-executive Director (as the case
may be) for an initial term of three years from 7 March 2016 (subject to
re-election as and when required under the Articles of Association) until
terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the service
contract or by either party giving to the other not less than one month’s
prior notice in writing.

The independent non-executive Directors has each signed a letter of
appointment with the Company and has been appointed for a term of
three years from 20 June 2016. The appointment may be terminated by
either party giving to the other not less than one month’s prior notice in
writing.

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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We have received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ka Chi, Mr. Qian Mingxing and Ms. Ye
Shujun, the confirmation of their respective independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has duly reviewed the
confirmation of independence of each of these Directors. We consider
that the independent non-executive Directors have been independent
from the date of their appointments to 31 December 2016 and remain
so as of the date of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of our associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
were as follows:

KA CEEZE BB IR TES (ENES
XBEAE BHELLEREFELL)
BELTHREINEIIKAEESEZIE
UMBRENERE - AR A CEEEH
ZEEESHNBIMERE - RFRD
B BUHNTESERSEZTAE
HE2016F 12831 ABIAL
BEZXRFEHRBEBMPEBLAL -

R2016F12A31H  AAAESER&H
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B (E&RESRBEHRGIEXVE) KR
7 HEROREEE T FES @RE
BERAERBIEXVEE 7 RES DA
HERRABRRBINERR AR (B
RI5RE 5 R S RO BB SUR E 1S
RIEEBENEZRAR) ; R(O)RBEES
R HAB 15028 352 R BB A X IR AT g &
CMNERREXE  RC)RBEEZETFE
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I NN

Approximate

percentage of
shareholding in

Number of  the total issued
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Ordinary Shares  share capital (%)
RE#1T
BRAGE R
B St/ BHEE LERSE HOnRESL
Mr. Gou Yigqun(® Interest of controlled corporation 25,974,000 (L) 2.48% (L)
HEEELE REHEERR
Mr. Zhang Yong® Founder of a discretionary trust and 372,547,021 (L) 35.59% (L)
interest of controlled corporation
REXLEW 2RERNALARZ EHLEER
Mr. Shi Yonghong® Founder of a discretionary trust, interest of 177,243,492 (L) 16.93% (L)
controlled corporation and interest of spouse
BAEEES PREANAILA - ZREZEREREENER
Ms. Dang Chunxiang® Beneficiary of a trust 1,010,000 (L) 0.10% (L)
EEELLY ERANZEA
Mr. Sun Shengfeng® Beneficiary of a trust 500,000 (L) 0.05% (L)
A Sl ERENZHEA

(L) denotes a long position
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Notes:

(1)

@
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Mr. Gou Yiqun directly holds 100% interest in GYQ YIHAI Ltd and is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by GYQ YIHAI Ltd for the
purpose of the SFO.

Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping, as the settlors and protectors,
established for their own benefit the ZYSP Trust, which holds the entire
share capital of ZYSP YIHAI Ltd, which in turn holds 372,547,021
Shares. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping
are deemed to be interested in the Shares in which ZYSP YIHAI Ltd is
interested.

Mr. Zhang Yong is the spouse of Ms. Shu Ping and is deemed to be
interested in the same number of the Shares in which Ms. Shu Ping is
interested for the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Shu Ping is the spouse of Mr.
Zhang Yong and is deemed to be interested in the same number of the
Shares in which Mr. Zhang Yong is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

Mr. Shi Yonghong and Ms. Li Haiyan, as the settlors and protectors,
established for their own benefit the SL Trust, which indirectly holds the
entire share capital of SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd, which in turn
holds a total of 177,243,492 Shares. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Shi
Yonghong and Ms. Li Haiyan are deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd are interested.

Mr. Shi Yonghong is the spouse of Ms. Li Haiyan and is deemed to be
interested in the same number of the Shares in which Ms. Li Haiyan is
interested for the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Li Haiyan is the spouse of Mr.
Shi Yonghong and is deemed to be interested in the same number of the
Shares in which Mr. Shi Yonghong is interested for the purpose of the
SFO.

1,010,000 RSUs were granted to Ms. Dang Chunxiang pursuant to the
RSU Scheme on 28 December 2016.

500,000 RSUs were granted to Mr. Sun Shengfeng pursuant to the RSU
Scheme on 28 December 2016.

EEEWE

BEE -

(1)

@

3

“

©®)

BEBEH T EBEFEGYQ YIHAI Ltd #9
100% #z » R EFRBEFGITE
HEBRGYQ YIHAI Ltd B HIR B+

BHELERTFEL L (EBHEETFA
/E/;% EN)BREEEFmH 7 ZYSP
15 5L H ## BZYSP YIHAI Ltd#y &
28 B A [ZYSP YIHAI Ltd B 15 &
372,647,021 IR IR 17 ° SLi&EF R B E 1%
BIME » kB EEREEL L #HRBR
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd B w7 H HEE

REBEEREIFFLLHIENG  BEFR

HERGITERESTEFRLLHEEE

a2 K9 1A 2 B K ﬁ?ﬁb}‘;ﬂ*ﬁ%ﬁ% o BFEL

LT RRELLERENE @ BEFRHEIR

DI & /BB TIRE ﬁfﬁfﬁ&"‘ﬁ%ﬁ
EI# B IR 7 B

KB EREFGHRL L (IEBHER
FARREN)BREEGF M7 SL
157 BB #E# ESYH YIHAI Ltd &
LHY YIHAI Ltd B9 2 2B BZ 4 » il SYH
YIHAI Ltd B LHY YIHAI Ltd Bl#5E & #
177,243,492 R R 17 © 5t 7% 2% R RE & fF
BIT = » kS AL REGH LT HE
A JRSYH YIHAI Ltd B LHY YIHAI Ltd
BB G EE D -

KB EBEEHL L I EI 5 E
FREFOIT EREBREGHL L
HEEmIIEER GE A FHEE B -
FGHL L B KE T E B E
FRAEFOIMTE i"ﬁ%”ﬁ%%}}"}}@iﬁ*ﬁ‘ff
BB E BGRB8 B T
R2016 12 A28 H » 1,010,00017 F

IRV 17 B E R 15 Z R AR 7 FE (v &t
BRTREEZLL -

JR2016 4 12 H 28 H » 500,00017 &

IR 17 B E1RIB = RH/IK 75 /.z#i'#
BT EREFIEIEE -

2016 Annual Report F [E #f &

83



84

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company has or is deemed to have
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which will be required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO); or which will be required to be recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which will be
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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As at 31 December 2016, the followings are the persons, other than
the Directors or chief executives of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares which would
be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

EEEWE

HZEZ20165F 12831 B BRARTE
EHRETHRAEN THALAER
RIEFSRBEMKRGEXVEE2RES
PEABAEBANEARAQNT R AR
NERDBEERDIERIABHIA
T HAREE S KB E R KI5 336 /%4
NEBAFENECMATESENER X
BEMAL:

Approximate
Percentage of

Total number Shareholding
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest of shares (%)
RRERE L1V ik RGBS BARRE DL (%)
Shu Ping® Founder of a discretionary trust and interest 372,547,021 (L) 35.59% (L)
of controlled corporation
Fpeal FREEALARZEHEEER
UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited® Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 372,547,021 (L) 35.59% (L)
ZFEAGEEREZTEAN)
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd® Beneficial owner 372,547,021 (L) 35.59% (L)
EnBEAA
Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited® Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 177,243,492 (L) 16.93% (L)
ZEACGEERHZEA)
Li Haiyan® Founder of a discretionary trust, 177,243,492 (L) 16.93% (L)
interest of controlled corporation
and interest of spouse
Lo FREEEACA  ZEHEERZREBNED
Twice Happiness Limited® Interest of controlled corporation 177,243,492 (L) 16.93% (L)
TERHEERER
LHY YIHAI Ltd® Beneficial owner 88,621,746 (L) 8.47% (L)
ERHEBA
SYH YIHAI Ltd® Beneficial owner 88,621,746 (L) 8.47% (L)
ERBEAA
JLJH YIHAI Ltd® Beneficial owner and nominee 77,220,000 (L) 7.38% (L)
for another person
BERBAARS—EATHREA
Vistra Fiduciary (HK) Limited® Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 77,220,000 (L) 7.38% (L)
CEINE 23S EIN)
FMR LLC Investment manager 62,673,400 (L) 5.99% (L)
ZEERRE RERE
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(L) denotes a long position

Notes:

(1)

@

3

ZYSP Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms.
Shu Ping as the settlors and protectors on 1 June 2016 for their own
benefit. The entire share capital of ZYSP YIHAI Ltd is wholly owned
by UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited as the trustee of the ZYSP Trust. Mr.
Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping (as founders of the ZYSP Trust) and UBS
Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited are taken to be interested in the Shares held by
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd for the purpose of the SFO.

SL Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Shi Yonghong and Ms.
Li Haiyan as the settlors and protectors on 2 June 2016 for their own
benefit. The entire share capital of SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd
is wholly owned by Twice Happiness Limited and ultimately owned by
Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited as the trustee of the SL Trust.
Mr. Shi Yonghong and Ms. Li Haiyan (as founders of the SL Trust), Twice
Happiness Limited and Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited are taken
to be interested in the Shares held by SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd
for the purpose of the SFO. Mr. Shi Yonghong is the spouse of Ms. Li
Haiyan and is deemed to be interested in the same number of the Shares
in which Ms. Li Haiyan is interested for the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Li
Haiyan is the spouse of Mr. Shi Yonghong and is deemed to be interested
in the same number of the Shares in which Mr. Shi Yonghong is interested
for the purpose of the SFO.

Vistra Fiduciary (HK) Limited is the trustee and JLJH YIHAI Ltd is the
nominee to administer the RSU Scheme. JLJH YIHAI Ltd holds the Shares
underlying the RSU granted by us for the benefit of eligible participants
pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company are not aware of any other person
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2016 and up to the date of this annual report was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of the shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18
were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of
the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such
right.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Our History, Reorganization
and Corporate Structure — Reorganization” in the Prospectus and save
for their respective interests in the Group, none of the Directors and the
Controlling Shareholders was interested in any business which competes
or is likely to compete with the businesses of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

We have received annual written confirmations from the Controlling
Shareholders, consisting of Mr. Zhang Yong, Ms. Shu Ping and
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd, of the compliance with the provisions of the Non-
competition Undertaking by such Controlling Shareholders and their
close associates.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking during the year
ended 31 December 2016 based on the information and confirmation
provided by or obtained from the Controlling Shareholders, and were
satisfied that our Controlling Shareholders have duly complied with the
Non-competition Undertaking.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Company has not issued any
convertible bonds.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has not entered
into any loan agreement which contain covenants requiring specific
performance of the Controlling Shareholders.

Among the related party transactions disclosed in note 31 to the
Financial Statements, the following transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.31 of the
Listing Rules and are required to be disclosed in this annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that the related party transactions do not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please see below the information
required to be disclosed in compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

1. Chengdu Lease Agreement

On 1 December 2015 and 5 January 2016, Sichuan Haidilao
and Chengdu Yueyihai, our wholly owned subsidiary, entered
into the Chengdu Lease Agreement, including the supplemental
agreement, pursuant to which Chengdu Yueyihai agreed to lease
from Sichuan Haidilao a parcel of land together with properties
and fixtures thereon to be used for production and warehousing.
Sichuan Haidilao is our connected person and therefore the
transactions under the Chengdu Lease Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Chengdu Lease Agreement has an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and is renewable for a further
term of three years from time to time, subject to compliance with the
Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations. Please refer to
the section headed “Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus for
details.
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The annual caps for the rental payable under the Chengdu
Lease Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 are RMB4,000,000, RMB4,300,000 and
RMB4,500,000, respectively. Please also refer to note 31(b) to
the Financial Statements on pages 218 for details. The aggregate
transaction amount incurred in accordance with the Chengdu
Lease Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB2,917,000.

Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Sichuan Haidilao and Yihai Shanghai, our wholly
owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries,
entered into the Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement,
pursuant to which Sichuan Haidilao Group agreed to provide
warehousing facilities and related services, including warehouse
storage, sorting process management, stock-taking, and other
logistics services, to the Group in connection with storage of our
products. Sichuan Haidilao is our connected person and therefore
the transactions under the Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement has an
initial term of three years commencing from 1 January 2016 and
is renewable for further term of three years from time to time,
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws
and regulations. Please refer to the section headed “Connected
Transaction” in the Prospectus for details.

The annual caps for the rental payable under the Haidilao
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the years ended
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 are RMB2,200,000,
RMB2,800,000 and RMB3,600,000, respectively. Please also refer
to note 31(b) to the Financial Statements on pages 218 for details.
The aggregate transaction amount incurred in accordance with
the Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was RMB1,160,000.
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Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Shuhai Supply Chain and Yihai Shanghai,
our wholly owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries, entered into the Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service
Agreement, pursuant to which Shuhai Supply Chain Group agreed
to provide warehousing facilities and related services, including
warehouse storage, sorting process management, stock-taking,
and other logistics services, to the Group in connection with
storage of our products. Shuhai Supply Chain is our connected
person and therefore the transactions under the Shuhai
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement has an
initial term of three years commencing from 1 January 2016 and
is renewable for further term of three years from time to time,
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws
and regulations. Please refer to the section headed “Connected
Transaction” in the Prospectus for details.

The annual caps for the rental payable under the Shuhai
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the years ended
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 are RMB3,000,000,
RMB3,900,000 and RMB5,000,000, respectively. Please also refer
to note 31(b) to the Financial Statements on pages 218 for details.
The aggregate transaction amount incurred in accordance with
the Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was RMB2,308,000.

Master Sales Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Sichuan Haidilao, Singapore Haidilao and
Yihai Shanghai, our wholly owned subsidiary, each for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries, entered into the Master Sales
Agreement, pursuant to which we agreed to supply to Haidilao
Group both Haidilao Customized Products and Haidilao Retail
Products. Sichuan Haidilao and Singapore Haidilao are our
connected persons and therefore the transactions under the
Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Master Sales Agreement has an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and is renewable for further
term of three years from time to time, subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations. Please refer
to the section headed “Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus
for details.

The annual caps for the rental payable under the Master
Sales Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 are RMB598,000,000, RMB764,000,000 and
RMB980,000,000, respectively. Please also refer to note 31(a) to
the Financial Statements on pages 218 for details. The aggregate
transaction amount incurred in accordance with the Master
Sales Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB597,546,000.

Shuhai Sales Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Shuhai Supply Chain and Yihai Shanghai,
our wholly owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries, entered into the Shuhai Sales Agreement,
pursuant to which we agreed to sell hot pot soup flavoring
products, hot pot dipping sauce products and other compound
condiment products to Shuhai Supply Chain Group for sales and
distribution to its customers who are catering service providers.
Shuhai Supply Chain is our connected person and therefore
the transactions under the Shuhai Sales Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Shuhai Sales Agreement has an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and is renewable for further
term of three years from time to time, subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations. Please refer
to the section headed “Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus
for details.

The annual caps for the rental payable under the Shuhai Sales
Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 are RMB7,210,000, RMB9,630,000 and RMB12,680,000,
respectively. Please also refer to note 31(a) to the Financial
Statements on pages 218 for details. The aggregate transaction
amount incurred in accordance with the Shuhai Sales Agreement
for the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB4,654,000.
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Youdingyou Sales Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Yondingyou and Yihai Shanghai, our wholly
owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries,
entered into the Youdingyou Sales Agreement, pursuant to
which we agreed to sell hot pot soup flavoring products, hot
pot dipping sauce products and other compound condiment
products to Youdingyou for use at spicy mixed stew restaurants it
operates. Yondingyou is our connected person and therefore the
transactions under the Youdingyou Sales Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Youdingyou Sales Agreement has an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and is renewable for further
term of three years from time to time, subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations. Please refer
to the section headed “Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus
for details.

The annual caps for the rental payable under the Youdingyou
Sales Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 are RMB8,900,000, RMB16,300,000 and
RMB26,400,000, respectively. Please also refer to note 31(a) to
the Financial Statements on pages 218 for details. The aggregate
transaction amount incurred in accordance with the Youdingyou
Sales Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB3,528,000.

The above continuing connected transactions has followed the
policies and guidelines when determining the price and terms
of the transactions conducted for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The auditor of the Group has reviewed the continuing connected
transactions referred to above and confirmed to the Board that
the continuing connected transactions: (i) have received the
approval of the Board; (ii) were in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group; (iii) were entered into in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing the transaction; and (iv) have not
exceeded the caps.
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The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that
the above continuing connected transactions were entered into
by the Group: (i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and (jii) in accordance
with the relevant agreement (including the pricing principle and
guidelines set out therein) governing them and on terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company has designated a team of senior management from
business operation, legal, risk control and finance departments
and Board office to monitor the continuing connected transactions
and ensure that the continuing connected transactions with the
abovementioned connected persons are on arm’s length basis
and that the annual caps are not exceeded. Such team of senior
management continuously traces and regularly monitors the
progress of the continuing connected transactions and reports
to management of the Company. They review the continuing
connected transactions with the finance department to ensure that
annual caps are not exceeded. They will also communicate with
the Audit Committee, management and the Board of Directors,
monthly or as needed, to report the progress of the continuing
connected transactions, and request for approval of new changes
of existing transaction terms. The heads of different departments
of the Company will be informed on a periodic basis in relation
to the terms and pricing policies of the continuing connected
transactions as well. The Audit Committee has also assigned
the independent internal audit team the task to ensure that the
Company’s internal control measures in respect of the continuing
connected transactions remain effective and complete. With
these measures, the independent non-executive Directors could
therefore assess and give the confirmations in the preceding
paragraph.

Save for disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2016,
we have not entered into any connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Rules
14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing Rules.
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There were no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or its connected entity (within the meaning of
Section 486 of the Companies Ordinance) had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, and subsisting during the year ended 31
December 2016 or as of 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected and Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, no contract of significance was
entered into between the Company, or one of its subsidiary companies,
and any of its Controlling Shareholders or subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2016 and
up to the date of this annual report.

Pursuant to Article 33 of the Articles of Association and subject to
Cayman Islands Companies Law, each Director shall be indemnified,
out of the assets of the Company, against all losses or liabilities
incurred or sustained by him as a Director in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his/
her favor, or in which he/she is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, we had 1135 employees. The remuneration
of our employees includes salaries and allowances. We provide training
to our staff to enhance technical and product knowledge. The Group’s
remuneration policies are formulated based on the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed regularly.
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The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to the Directors.
Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to the
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group. Details of the Directors’ remuneration during the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in note 33 to the Financial Statements.

In accordance with the laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group
has arranged for its PRC employees to join defined contribution
plans, including pension, medical, housing and other welfare benefits,
organised by the PRC government. No forfeited contribution under this
scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.
The Group also provides social insurance, including pension insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance and medical
insurance for the employees of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company did not have
any share option scheme which was required to be disclosed.

The Company has approved and adopted a RSU Scheme by a
resolution of the Shareholders on 24 February 2016 and a resolution of
the Board on 24 February 2016. The RSU Scheme is not subject to the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules as the RSU Scheme does
not involve the grant of options by the Company to subscribe for new
Shares.

The RSUs do not carry any right to vote at general meetings of the
Company. No RSU grantee shall enjoy any of the rights of a Shareholder
by virtue of the grant of an award of RSUs (the “Award”) pursuant to
the RSU Scheme, unless and until such Shares underlying the Award
are actually transferred to the RSU grantee upon vesting of the RSU.
Unless otherwise specified by the Board in its entire discretion, the
RSU grantees do not have any rights to any cash or non-cash income,
dividends or distributions and/or the sale proceeds of non-cash and non-
scrip distributions from any Shares underlying an Award. Please refer to
the section headed “Appendix IV — Statutory and General Information”
of the Prospectus for details.

EEEWE

AEBAESRHEEAREING MG
B -HMMEHESSLSRESRH
B BERRRURAEENWEEME
Eeo REZE2016F 12831 BHLEEE
=MW BEN T REMEESS -

RE\EFEDERIESR  ARBEERHE
B8 & 0 A B B B AR A Y SROE
a8 ERRERKE  BE - EE
REARA o A )36 E 0] 42 K
LUBLEIR R 2R F B R R - AEE R
AEAEEREERMHEMR  BEFEFERHK
TRk KERR - TERRRERER

REBZE2016F12A31BLEEE A
AW EEMEAFHENERETE -

AABECRIBRENR2016 FE2H24BH
REBEREEZHN2016F2 A 24 AHR
ERIMERFEMNZIRERDEMTE -
SREBRDEMELRZRN EHHE
B+ tENKRT  RAZRFIKRMDE
fEt 8N RS R BARD TR TR EH
B BV BB AR AE -

3 PR B R A0 BB A 36 M AR AR AR
ARRAELRENER - BRIEREE
ZEHEZREIRMDEMEZE(TRE D)
R RN ZREIRDELEBRER
BETERERMDEMZTA > SR
EZRFIRDECZTARRBEZRG
R EMLGEIRHRBMEREARER
R - RFEESS2RBBRERTE
B BRIZREIROEMZEALEME
AR o = B R BARRE B MR B E
AREFFREWA - RERD KRR
HEFRRESRFEWDIRNAEFIE -
BEHE  R2HBRERMEN -
ER—RER IEH -

2016 Annual Report F [E #f &

95



96

The Company approved and granted 9,140,000 RSUs among which
1,510,000 were granted to two Directors pursuant to the RSU Scheme
on 28 December 2016. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 December 2016 for details.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no RSU had been
granted or agreed to be granted by the Company pursuant to the RSU
Scheme.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no equity-linked
agreement entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the respective percentage
of purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five
largest suppliers in aggregate was 4.1% and 19.5%; and the respective
percentage of the total sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers in aggregate was 35.2% and
58.4%.

Our largest customer was Sichuan Haidilao™™ and second largest
customer was Singapore Haidilao®.

Except as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had a material interest in our five largest suppliers or customers.

Note (1): Sichuan Haidilao is directly held as to 33.5% by Mr. Zhang Yong and
Ms. Shu Ping (our Controlling Shareholders), 50% by Jianyang City
Jingyuan Investment Co., Ltd. (which in turn is held as to 68% by Mr.
Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping), 8% by Mr. Shi Yonghong (our non-
executive Director) and 0.1% by Mr. Gou Yiqun (our non-executive
Director).

Note (2): Singapore Haidilao is indirectly held as to approximately 62.7% by Mr.
Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping (our Controlling Shareholders), 14.9%
by Mr. Shi Yonghong (our non-executive Director) and 2% by Mr. Gou
Yiqun (our non-executive Director).
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Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Company has adopted the Model Code. Specific enquiries have
been made to all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code since the Listing Date and up
to the date of this annual report.

The Company’s employees, who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company, have also been subject to the Model Code
for securities transactions. No incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by the Company’s employees was noted by the Company since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and has complied with the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code since the Listing Date up
to the date of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
certified public accountants.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the AGM.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
25 May 2017 to Wednesday, 31 May 2017, both days inclusive, in
order to determine the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote
at the AGM. The Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 31
May 2017 will be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 24 May 2017.

The register of members of the Company will also be closed from
Tuesday, 6 June 2017 to Thursday, 8 June 2017, both days inclusive,
in order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to the final
dividend. The Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Thursday, 8 June
2017 will be entitled to the final dividend. In order to be eligible to entitle
to the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 5 June 2017.

By order of the Board
Gou Yiqun
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 27 April 2017
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The Company’s core concept of sustainable development is to achieve
results in the aspects of economy, environment and society, which
mutually support and influence each other. We adhere to applicable
laws and regulations of places where we operate our business, and
aim to follow the industry’s best practices. Such usual practice allows
us to respond in a timely manner to the needs of our stakeholders,
such as governmental regulatory authorities, consumers, employees,
suppliers, investors and shareholders, and the local community. Social
responsibilities have been integrated into our corporate governance
such that we can satisfy our customers’ needs while also taking care of
our employees’ health and safety and protecting the environment.

1. THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
(“ESG”) MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

We believe that the focus of social responsibility for an enterprise
is to adhere to high international business ethics and social moral
standards, and to create and share values with all stakeholders.
Thus, we put in our best efforts to integrate environmental and
social responsibilities into the strategic management activities of
the Company. To achieve recognition in society and to enhance
our reputation, we carefully manage our environmental and
social risks, improve the performance of supply chains, reduce
the consumption of resources and the emission of pollutant,
encourage innovation and cultivate talents.
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ESG Management and Organizational Structures

Effective ESG management cannot be achieved without
the Board and senior management attaching significant
importance to it, and without the full participation from all
staff members. We have established an ESG working group
and formed an ESG management organizational structure
which includes the participation of the management,
horizontal coordination of all functional departments, and
vertical coverage of all subsidiary companies. The working
group is comprised of persons in charge of the respective

functional departments.

The Board
W

ESG Working Group
ESGTL

P/

1.1

ESG EEAMERE

BHHESGEERBETRAAR
AESENSREEENER
UREEETHSZHE - HFIK
MIRE - HERERESG T
Bl - ERERRBSHE - &M
A BB - AOBEESE
TEARMNESGERHEBE
1 TFEABRBE BHAEE
FIWEEA -

Human
Resources
Department

NITE I

Research and
Development
Department

WFEEAL A R

Risk Management
and Audit
Department

frzat

Management

Department
PR T

Supply
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1.2 Participation of Stakeholder

The Company proactively communicates with stakeholders
to understand and actively respond to their needs in a
timely manner. Based on the features of our business,
our major stakeholders include: governmental regulatory
authorities, consumers, employees, suppliers, investors and
shareholders, and the local community.

Major Stakeholders
FEANGZBERA

Focus Areas
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The Company’s Responses
AQAFEERR

Governmental regulatory
authorities

GRS

Consumers

HEE

Employees

8T

e Satisfying requirements from
governmental regulatory

authorities
MEBNEEESR

e | egal and tax compliance

BRTE - MR

e Promotion of regional economic
growth

EBELKER

e Guarantee of product safety

BRERZE

e Comprehensive customer service

RENEFR%

e Remuneration and welfare
benefits

HIEEFTE

e QOccupational health and safety

HEERRZE

e Career planning and
development

BWEREEERE

e Care for employees
ETHEE

Proactively pay visits and
submit information in a timely
manner

SRF 0 REBTRERRE

Comply with applicable
laws/regulations in operation

BREMBEEES  GREE

Speed up innovation and
promote win-win solutions for
industrial chains

INIRAVET - BITEREHLR

Strictly control product quality
BREZERES

Build multiple channels for
customer communication

BN ZBRENHEEBERE

Formulate a reasonable
remuneration management
system
FERENFHEERR

Strengthen occupational health
and safety management

EREERERE 2 EE

Provide diversified modes of
training

RHZ AR

Care for and support employees
ETRFEEK
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Major Stakeholders Focus Areas The Company’s Responses

FERNEBERT BERRE ARAFEERR

Suppliers e Keeping business promises e Take responsibility in ensuring
health and safety of products

fitrERs BRI A BREMAEREZ 2 I H L

Investors and shareholders e

REAMBRR

The local community °

HE
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Fair and open procurement
NEARAELRE

Mutual benefit and common
development

BERHRE  HE#ER

Compliance in its operations

BREE

Market expansion and product
innovation

FH™E - EmAlH

Engagement and communication
with the local community
HER MBS

Support for community
development

B hitRER

L&F

Take anti-corruption measures

P —

REF

Sign Letters of Commitment
Relating to Supplier Integrity
and strictly manage the supply
system

B HERRZEAEE  BIRE
BHER A

Support the development of the
industrial chain

By hERENRR

Perfect our cooperation
governance
TELERE

Enhance product innovation
and protect the intellectual
property rights of the Company
MARERRIFOE  REARQT
HEERE

Initiate community activities

MRt EEE

Initiate charitable and
volunteering activities
FRABRREEEES



1.3

Importance to Stakeholders

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Materiality Assessment of ESG Topics

Through the Company’s investigation into the focus areas for
stakeholders, combined with a consideration of the direction
of its own strategic development, the Company identified,
assessed and filtered the relevant indicators in order to
ascertain the Company’s subsequent direction for actions
and significant areas of disclosure. According to this year’s
survey and filtered results, topics including environmental
responsibility, product quality and employees’ interest etc.
have been identified as being the relatively more important
topics.
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Al. Emission HE4
A2. Use of Resources & i ffi

A3. The Environment and
Natural Resources 545 Bil K SR il

B1. Empolyment f{iE fiff

B2. Health and Safety it il 22 2

B3. Development and Training %%/ B 55 3]
B4. Labour Standards %5 T.#EH|]

BS5. Supply Chain Management f1&/8 g4 57
B6. Product Responsibility 2 i T4

B7. Anti-corruption X &5

B8. Community Investment F: [ 3 ¢

Importance to Business
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ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

The fundamental principle of the Company’s corporate operations
is based on compliance with laws and regulations. The Company
strictly complies with relevant national environmental laws and
local regulations, including “Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Pollution From Environmental
Noise”, “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes”,
and “Cleaner Production Promotion Law of the People’s Republic
of China” etc. In addition, the Company strictly abides by national
emission standards, including Integrated Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants, Emission Standard of Air Pollutants for Boiler,
Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage,
Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard, Emission Standard
of Cooking Fume, and Action Plan for Soil Pollution Prevention
and Control etc. In order to reduce waste discharges and reduce
the consumption of resources, a unified and integrated system
for environmental management has been established to regulate
flue gas emissions, sewage water discharge and solid waste
disposals. In addition, a supervision mechanism has been set up
to monitor the compliance with and the internal implementation
of the respective environmental management system and
policies for departments at all levels. Meanwhile, in the everyday
environmental management of the Company, measures have
been adopted to prevent and control pollution and to improve
the Company’s performance in environmental protection. These
measures include recycling, process modification, control
mechanism, efficient resource utilization and material substitution.
As of 31 December 2016, the Company has not been involved in
any fine or litigation related to environmental pollution.
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2.1

2.2

2.3

Management of Exhaust Gas

Regarding the reduction in exhaust gas emissions, all
factories of the Company have completed renovations to
improve energy efficiency. Emissions have been greatly
reduced by the implementation of energy-saving steam
boilers and the use of natural gas for fuel. Furthermore,
all factories have installed extraction hoods and oil smoke
purifiers. When stir-frying ingredients, oil smoke flue gas is
first absorbed by gas-collecting hoods and then purified by
the oil smoke purifier until it meets the standards required
for discharge, in order to eliminate to the extent possible
any impact on employees, the surrounding environment and
residents.

Waste Management

Waste produced by all factories of the Company has been
sent to qualified professional waste treatment companies for
processing. These include solid waste residues from primary
and auxiliary materials, oil residue, waste oil collected by oil
smoke purifiers and waste package materials etc. Household
waste has been handled in a centralized manner on a daily
basis. Hazardous waste has also been isolated for temporary
storage in all factories before being sent to qualified
hazardous waste treatment companies for treatment.

Sewage Management

In relation to sewage control, all factories of the Company
have sewage treatment stations to deal with wastewater
from production (the wastewater mainly comes from
washing activities). Furthermore, wastewater produced due
to catering in cafeterias is first pretreated by an oil filter and
purification tank, and is then, together with other domestic
sewage from the factory area, sent to the sewage treatment
station in the factory area for further treatment. Finally, such
treated wastewater is discharged into the municipal sewage
treatment plant in the industrial park.
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Management of Discharge into Land

The main waste disposals generated by all factories of the
Company include hazardous waste, non-hazardous waste,
and production and domestic wastewater. All factories
of the Company have established corresponding waste
management system and employed qualified third-party
companies to process waste treatment in accordance
with national laws and regulations. All production and
domestic sewage water has been pretreated first at the
sewage treatment stations within the factory area and then
discharged into municipal sewage pipe network. No pollutant
produced by the Company’s production and operation
activities has been discharged into surrounding soil.

Energy Efficiency

By adjusting the everyday management process in relation
to production and operational activities, all of the Company’s
factories introduced a series of energy saving measures
to reduce losses of raw, auxiliary and packaging materials
due to internal reasons. Evaporative condensers also have
been adopted in all factories of the Company to increase the
circulation rate of the indirect cooling water system. At the
same time, the Company held different types of activities to
enhance its employees’ awareness of energy conservation.
These include water and energy saving policies and plans
in each department, as well as publicity campaigns with
slogans and visual aids in relation to the conservation of
water, energy and gas. In recent years, the total energy
consumption per product unit in factories has shown a
decreasing trend, and the awareness of energy conservation
has increased among employees.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has been tracking and strictly adheres to applicable
national and local laws and regulations relating to product
responsibility, including Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, Food Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Product Quality Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and Measures for the Administration
of Food Production Licenses etc.

3.1

Product Quality and Safety

To ensure product quality, the Company has established
a comprehensive set of procedures for product quality
inspection and product recall.

During quality inspection, prior to the engagement of any
supplier, the supplier must be reviewed for its qualifications,
and if approved, must provide samples for testing. A
supplier will only be engaged if the samples pass the test.
Each batch of raw ingredients must be tested in accordance
with relevant standards upon their arrival. During production,
tests and controls of relevant parameters shall take place
in accordance with technological procedures. Each batch
of products shall be tested and only qualified products are
allowed to leave the factory.

For the recall procedures, a relevant confirmation for the
product is required in accordance with relevant standards
before reporting to the relevant departments and heads of
departments, who would then make a decision to issue a
recall notice. The Logistics and Transportation Department,
Sales Department and distributors shall be informed of
the recall notice, after which the distributors shall inform
subordinate distribution channels. When the recalled
products are returned to the distributors’ warehouses, the
Logistics and Transportation Department of the Company
is responsible for transporting them back to the Company’s
warehouses. The recalled products shall be handled
according to the actual situation and policies.

In the year of 2016, the Company did not recall any products
for safety and health reasons. The rates of our products
passing internal pre-delivery inspections and third-party
inspections both reached 100%.
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Intellectual Property

As a production enterprise, the Company highly values the
protection of intellectual property. To protect intellectual
property, the Company has adopted a standardized
management system through policies including Yihai
Innovation Patent Application Procedures, Yihai Designs
Patent Application Procedures, and Yihai Utility Model
Patent Application Procedures etc. When applying for
a patent, an inventor shall draft a Technical Disclosure
Statement based on the patent declaration. After that, patent
administrators will proceed with the patent application in
accordance with the Company’s patent management system
and the patent application procedures of the Research and
Innovation Centre. Then, a patent agency will be responsible
for drafting patent documents and submitting application
materials. Before a patent application is published or
announced, the patent administrator and related personnel
have the responsibility to keep the contents of the patent
confidential.

Customer Information Privacy

The Company has two main sales channels, namely,
distributor sales and online sales. As distributors do
not sell goods to consumers directly, consumer privacy
protection is not involved in such production and sales
processes. In relation to online sales, the Company has
established the Customer Information Confidentiality Policy
for Internet Marketing Department, which includes data
security measures and supervision methods, as well as
corresponding punitive measures for any violation of the
policy. If an employee violates such policy that causes
severe consequences or significant economic loss, he or
she will be dismissed and required to compensate for any
economic loss, or will be subject to legal liabilities.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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3.4

3.5

Customer Service

The Company has established a comprehensive customer
complaint mechanism. Customer complaint staff are
designated to record the details of all types of complaints.
In accordance with Yihai Customer Complaint Management
Measures, such information will then be relayed to relevant
departments of the Company, such as the Quality Assurance
Department, to allocate responsibilities and to handle the
case directly with the complainant. Products involved will be
inspected and traced, in order to solve the problem from its
root cause.
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Performance Indicator Related

to Customer Service

B PR ARIE R AN IR REIR

2015 data 2016 data
ltem HH 2015 F 8B 2016 F£HIHF
Customer Complaints (times) BEEHRFEMHOR) 2.20 2.358
Advertising and Labelling 3.5 EEEHEREER

The Company adheres to applicable laws and regulations
regarding advertising, such as the “Advertising Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, and has adopted the
“Yihai Marketing Management Procedures” to ensure the
compliance of all promotion materials of major marketing
activities. In the year of 2016, the Company was not involved
in any litigation related to violation of laws or others’ rights
and interest.
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OUR EMPLOYEES

4.1

Employment

The Company has been tracking and strictly complying with
national laws and regulations related to employment and
employees, including “Regulation on the Implementation
of the Employment Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, “Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Minors”, “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Women'’s Rights and Interests”,
“Employment Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Regulation on Public Holidays for National Annual
Festivals and Memorial Days”, and “Production Safety Law
of the People’s Republic of China” etc.

The Company adopts a set of fair and open recruitment
procedures. In addition, by adopting policies such as the
“Yihai Employee Recruitment Management Policy”, the
Company eliminates discrimination during the recruitment
process and prohibits discrimination based on factors such
as nationality, age, race, geographical location and family
status. Further, in the “Management Policy for the Joining of
Employee”, “Probation Review, Transfer of Employee and
Termination of Employment”, the Company explicitly forbids
the use of child labor and forced labor. The Company
confirms that there is no illegal employment at the Company
in the year of 2016.
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Total Workforce of the Company

I

(persons)
AAFREBEIHE(N)

Categorization Category 2015 data 2016 data
SERE bl 2015 F &5 2016 £ &K
By gender Male 631 826
51 St

Female 406 597

pegid
By employment type Full-Time staff 978 1,135
EEE X EHET

Temporary contract staff 59 288

EREFSAT

Employee Turnover Rate

EEmALER

Categorization Category 2015 data 2016 data
SRR R 2015 F & 2016 £ Hi#&
By gender Male 4.78% 2.76%
]l S

Female 2.35% 1.39%

g
By employment type Full-Time staff 4.13% 1.71%
EEF X ERET

Temporary contract staff 6.27% 5.88%

EREFSAT
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Promotion and Welfare

The Company has established a fair and transparent
remuneration review and promotion mechanism. To
protect the legal rights and interests of employees, the
Company published relevant policies including the “Yihai
Competence and Promotion Management Measures”, “Yihai
Performance Management Policy”, “Yihai Functional System
Remuneration Management Policy”, “Yihai Supply System
Promotion and Elimination Management Policy”, and the
“Yihai Sales System Remuneration and Performance Review
Measures”. To attract and retain talents, apart from providing
competitive remuneration, the Company also provides an all-
around welfare protection plan, such as leave to visit one’s
spouse, housing subsidy, child care allowance, parental
care allowance, child education allowance, congratulatory
gifts for birthday/marriage/giving birth, injury allowance, and
welfare for grandparents etc.

Health and Safety of Employees

The Company has been tracking and strictly complying with
national laws and regulations related to health and safety
that has a significant impact on production management and
day-to-day operations, including “Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases”,
“Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
and “Interim Provisions on Supervision and Administration
of Work Safety at Food Production Enterprises” etc. On
this basis, and combined with features of its operations,
the Company established a series of safety management
policies, including the Safety Inspection Management Policy,
Hidden Safety Risks Identification and Elimination Policy,
Yihai Work-related Injury Management Policy, in order to
firmly implement production safety management, effectively
implement the identification of sources of dangers and risk
management, standardize production safety procedures,
standardize the work-related accident reporting process,
hold the management accountable, and thereby gradually
perfect the safety management system of the Company. As
of the end of 2016, there had been no cases of work-related
injuries or fatalities.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.

4.2

4.3

BANERERNFE

RATRM T D FE R
ZREB TS - NATAX
it T(REREE S EER
) (EEBAREENE) -
(EBBERSHMNEEG
E) - (EBHERRE A
EEFIE) - (BEHEERGH
AN ERIE)SHEER
FE - MREE T &ERER -
RWSIBEAT - BRTRHE
BMENNFHETBZI AR
AEABTRHEZEMNENR
Rt - PIINREZHRBME - £
FHR - BREN - X8
By FLRHEWE - BE &
1\ EFRE - BRERS
HRXE/IMERBEFE -

STRREZE

RDBEEBMN BB ST
YEEENBREEREAY
ENREZE2HEBLEERR
5 BIEPEARLMES
L)  (RFEARLMBEIREZE
ALY - (PEARKFE
ZEEER) (RREEDLE
ZEREEEBERETRE)
L -HUERLE £585E
EISE KRREY T(ZE
BEEEHE) (Z2EBEH
BHEY (EEISEENE
BHEY)E—RIZEEET
B UIHEBHITZEZEEERE
I/E - BREERBIRYHE
RS BEEETREE
TR BEBEEZREZENLR
REHBEEHE  BITER
AENZE2EERR - BZE
2016 F K AAFKREET
HEERZRESHMIZEREL
THEREAE -



4.4

Besides, the Company provides annual physical examination
for every full-time staff, and assists factory employees to
apply for health certifications. The Company also arranges
for an additional physical examination every year for
employees over 50 years old and for employees at the
management level or above. In the year of 2016, the physical
examination coverage was 100% for employees of the
Company. The employee physical examination includes an
examination of the internal organs and liver function, and the
blood routine examination.
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Performance Indicator Related
to the Health and Safety

of Employees

STRRER:HEREIERER

2015 data 2016 data
Category Rl 2015 F &% 2016 F&IF
Employee Physical Examination S TEREZER (%)

Coverage (%) 100% 100%
Safety Training Courses (times) ZRIEIREOR) 10 18
Safety Drills (times) ZEBEHREOR) 6 14
Work-related Injuries (persons) THEAE(AN) 0 0

Development and Training

To adapt to the needs of the Company’s strategic
development, and to establish a systematic talent cultivation
system throughout the career of employees, the Company
established multiple layers of training content, and initiated
the talent cultivation efforts at different levels. These include
training for new employees, the seed development program,
leadership training program, and mentor training program.
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In relation to the training for new employees, the Company
provided a total of 5 sessions of training activities for new
employees under different themes during the year. The
training sessions cultivate team-building, corporate culture,
work skills and occupational quality, which help the students
to better understand the Company and to achieve self-
enhancement. At the same time, the Company held one
session of seed development program targeted at young
outstanding key employees to cultivate and improve their
professional abilities. For the leadership training program,
the Company targeted mid-level management personnel
and, through one session of leadership training program,
helped these key personnel of the Company to increase
their awareness of their role, to perfect their leadership skills
and to assist the expansion of the Company’s businesses.
For the mentor training program, the Company provided 2
sessions of training to strengthen the abilities of the mentors
in the Company.

In relation to the construction of an online learning platform,
the Company has opened up an internet training platform,
targeted at different functional departments. The Company
also provided different types of training programs according
to different needs at different positions. Employees can at
any time make full use of their fragmented time to undertake
online training, which increases the efficiency of training.

5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

An important component of the development strategy of the
Company is to “emphasize food security quality and prevent risks
in the supply of raw materials.” The Company established a series
of supply chain management system to develop a responsible
supply chain and to promote the improvement and development
of the entire supply chain system.
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5.1 Selection Criteria

When selecting food suppliers and suppliers that engage in
the contact of food, the Company favors and selects national
brands or the top three renowned local brands whenever
possible. The Company requires all product suppliers to
submit various qualification certificates and licenses in
accordance with the Company’s certificate requirement
policy. Supplier factories whose qualifications do not meet
the requirements will not be selected. During the review
and assessment, supplier factories shall fill in the Supplier
Assessment Form As required by the Company, and only
those reviewed by the Quality Assurance Department of
the Company and passed the review will have a chance
of cooperating with the Company. In addition, when
cooperation is confirmed and prior to the formal start of the
business, to ensure that the suppliers accept the supervision
and review by the Company, the Company requires suppliers
to sign various documents including a valid contract, the
Letter of Commitment relating to Supplier Integrity, Supplier
Award System, Supplier Punishment System, Supplier
Delivery Rules and the Letter Relating to Spot Check on
Supplier Factories.
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5.2 Day-to-Day Management

In the supplier management system, the relevant
departments of the Company have strictly executed the
Suppliers Management Rules to avoid exclusive cooperation
with a single supplier or brand. Meanwhile, the departments
also proactively visit suppliers and fill in the Suppliers Visit
and Assessment Form which is then submitted to the
supplier administrator for documentation. The Company has
established a performance evaluation system to regularly
assess suppliers according to the Suppliers Performance
Assessment and Evaluation Form, where ranking is divided
into five grades of A, B, C, D and E. For suppliers with
excellent evaluation results, the Company would provide
them with preferential policies, such as financial support,
technical coaching, guidance to its management personnel
and on-site quality control inspectors. Suppliers with two
consecutive E’s will be added to the list of eliminated
suppliers. If there is a need to engage such supplier again,
the supplier shall go through the application procedures
in the Contract Management System in accordance with
the procedures for engaging a new supplier. Suppliers
who violate relevant regulations of the Company will be
added to the company’s supplier blacklist, and in principle,
such suppliers will never be engaged again. If they are
needed under special conditions, they must undergo strict
assessment, and there must be at least a year in between
the time of the supplier being blacklisted and the re-
assessment. In addition, such suppliers shall provide a
warranty statement, and if similar problems occur again,
there will strictly be no future cooperation.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.

52 HEEE

EHEREEERTD  KAAQF
Z B MI B B ATCHL FERS
EERE) HBHBEE—H
R RS - EEEER
RMEEEGIE  THRES
EBE(HEREHZERK)IIR
MR HEREEEETEEE
R RXDTEYTEMTE
BR KI(HERENERZ
FFER)EHEHERETES
%o FoEREDEBEA B
C-D -EH5@ZH - HFTE
ERAEFNHER ZIS’D\T
wTESXE - HiiiEE -
BAEEE @ :EEEF“*—'{%
BER ; HEEMATEERA
ERVftRER > BIBEHAKRA
AEAMER BEYER > A
FABENHERMEEHM
A —#RBHERFERE
EERIBERGEPETHR
B RAD B EBESAERH
B - EWMARDTHER
ELEYK %ﬁﬁWA% E’J
HEERA EXTEA

R E I R E’JJA;E)%‘H%%
#t o N BEEMERASEER
LEERE—F - FFHERE
RERES  FEBAHBHEL
BB KTEE -



5.3 Communication with Suppliers

The Company has established various communication
channels such as e-mail, hotline and Wechat platform to
deal with complaints. Once a complaint is received, the
Company will handle the case in accordance with the
Suppliers Complaint Response Procedures and reply with a
Response Letter to Supplier’s Opinion. For true and verified
supplier complaints, the Company will reward the supplier
in accordance with the Suppliers Award Regulations. The
Company conducts suppliers opinion surveys every half
a year, and communicates any feedback to the relevant
departments and personnel in a timely manner. Then, the
Company would send a reply to the supplier regarding the
solution and its outcome.

The number and distribution of the suppliers of the Company
in 2016 are as follows:
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Notes: Northeast Region includes Heilongjiang Province, Jilin
Province and Liaoning Province; North China Region
includes Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei Province, Shanxi Province,
and Inner-Mongolia Autonomous Region; Mid-south
Region includes Henan Province, Hubei Province, Hunan
Province, Guangdong Province, the Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region and Hainan Province; Eastern China
Region includes Shanghai, Jiangsu Province, Zhejiang
Province, Anhui Province, Fujian Province, Jiangxi Province
and Shandong Province; Northwest region includes
Shaanxi Province, Gansu Province, Qinghai Province,
the Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region and the Xinjiang
Uygur Autonomous Region; Southwest region includes
Chonggqing, Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan
Province and Tibet Autonomous Region.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Company strictly abides by applicable national laws and
regulations related to anti-corruption, including Criminal Law of
the People’s Republic of China and Anti-Unfair Competition Law
of the People’s Republic of China etc. The Company formulated
the Yihai International Anti-fraud and Anti-corruption Management
System in March 2016. Providing the general principles for
anti-corruption and anti-fraud efforts of the Company, the
system defines concepts of fraud and corruption, as well as the
procedures and measures to deal with fraud and corruption when
they occur. The aim of such system is to regulate occupational
behaviors of the Directors, senior and middle management and
the general staff, so that they would strictly comply with relevant
laws, industry standards and norms, occupational ethics, and
the Company’s regulations. The system also aims to establish
a culture of integrity, diligence and dedication to one’s job, and
to prevent infringement of the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.
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Targeting all employees, the Company established the Yihai
Misconduct Management Measures which includes 7 prohibitions
for employees. Targeting the high risk positions of sales and
procurement personnel, the Company established the Letter of
Commitment relating to Sales and Promotion which regulates 11
aspects relating to sales personnel, and established the Letter of
Commitment relating to Integrity in Procurement, which regulates
13 aspects relating to procurement personnel. Furthermore,
the Company has also formulated 5 relevant regulations and
measures for rewarding and punishing distributors. A distributor
must sign a Letter of Commitment for Distributors before signing
a contract with the Company. If a distributor violates any clause
under its commitment to cooperate with integrity, the Company
has the right to terminate the sale and purchase contract,
abolish the distributor’s role as an agent, add the distributor to
a blacklist and never engage it again. In addition, the Company
may hold the distributor liable to any breach of contract pursuant
to the liability clause in the sale and purchase contract. If the
distributor discloses that an employee of the Company breached
any regulation, once the claim is verified, such distributor
will be rewarded. In addition, this will be taken into positive
consideration in the functional assessment of the distributor as a
ground of functional rebate assessment. Targeting suppliers, the
Company has formulated 9 relevant regulations and the complaint
methods and procedures for handling complaints. All suppliers
shall sign a Letter of Commitment Relating to Supplier Integrity
before cooperating with the Company. If a purchase staff of
the Company is found to have violated a regulation, complaints
can be made via telephone, email or the Wechat management
platform for purchaser suppliers. In relation to any breach by the
Company of any clause under its commitment to cooperate with
integrity, the Company is willing to be held liable for 10 times the
amount involved in the breach as compensation for the breach.

The Legal Department of the Company is responsible for dealing
with non-litigation disputes and litigation. Since the beginning
of 2016, the Company had not been involved in any corruption,
fraud, extortion and money-laundering.
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Company highly values the establishment of a harmonious
relationship between the Company and local communities.
The Company understands the needs of the local communities
through proactively participating in local activities. The Company
also takes concrete actions to ensure that the Company has taken
the interests of the local communities into consideration when
conducting its business activities.

During both construction and operation stages, the Company’s
factories in Chengdu and Zhengzhou have been proactively
communicating with local communities and governmental
regulatory authorities to understand their requests and opinions
and to ensure that the project construction and production
operation activities do not negatively impact the local
communities. This also promotes the continuous improvement in
the management quality of the Company.

The Company also proactively gives back to the society. For
instance, in 2016, the Company’s factory in Zhengzhou sponsored
and provided more than 400 free packages of hotpot sauce and
condiment to the neighboring Vanke residential community.
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To the Shareholders of Yihai International Holding Ltd.
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Yihai International Holding
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 131 to 224, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of balance sheet as at 31 December
2016;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Impairment provision for inventory

o Fair value measurement of redeemable convertible preferred
shares

Key Audit Matter
Impairment provision for inventory

Refer to Note 2 (Summary of significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates) and Note 11 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Inventory is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value, being
selling price less estimated selling costs, where applicable, impairment
provision is made to write down the inventory to its net realisable value.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s balance of inventory was RMB
130,496,000.

The estimation of impairment provision for each type of inventories
involves significant management judgment based on consideration
of key factors such as aging profile, prior experiences and estimated
future selling price and production costs subsequent to year end.

The impairment assessment is an area of focus for us given the inherent
uncertainties and the significant amount of the related balance.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures relating to impairment provision for inventory
included:

° Obtained and understood the Group’s inventory provisioning
policy.

° Understood and evaluated the relevant controls over the
generation of inventory aging schedule and the process of the
estimation of inventory impairment provision.

U In respect of finished goods, on sample basis, we evaluated
the assumptions in estimating future sales prices and selling
expenses by reference to historical records and sales transactions
after year end.

° In respect of raw materials and work in progress, on sample basis,
we evaluated the assumptions in estimating future production
costs by reference to historical records and production records
after year end.

° On sample basis, we tested the aging profile of the year end raw
materials and finished goods.

° Observed physical condition of inventories during stocktake to
identify if any inventory was slow-moving, damaged, or obsolete.

We found the assumptions adopted and judgment applied by
management were supported by the evidence we gathered and
consistent with our understanding.
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Key Audit Matter

Fair value measurement of redeemable convertible preferred
shares

Refer to Note 2 (Summary of significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates) and Note 21 of the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, all of the Company’s series
A preferred shares with redemption and conversion features (referred
to as redeemable convertible preferred shares or “RCPS”) have been
converted into the Company’s ordinary shares upon the completion
of the global offering of its shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in July 2016 (the “Global Offering”). All
of the RCPS were designated as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss and upon the conversion into ordinary shares, a loss,
arising from fair value change of the RCPS, of RMB 35,264,000 was
recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

We focused in this area given the significance of the fair value loss and
the fair value determination of the RCPS, which involves judgments and
use of estimates.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Regarding management’s estimation of the fair value change of the
RCPS, we performed the following procedures:

Checked the RCPS contract and understood the condition of the
conversion into ordinary shares upon completion of the Global
Offering.

Understood the basis management adopted in determination of
the fair value of the RCPS and resulted fair value change during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Evaluated the valuation method of RCPS. On 13 July 2016,
upon the Company’s listing on HKSE, the RCPS have been
automatically converted into 78,000,000 ordinary shares at the
quoted price of HK$3.3 per share in active market.

Recalculated the number of ordinary shares, after consideration of
the capitalisation issue in relation to the Global Offering.

Checked the mathematical accuracy of the fair value change as
recorded.

Based on the work performed, we found the estimation made by
the management was supported by the evidence we gathered and
consistent to our understanding.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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U Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Brian Ming Yan Choi.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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mEEERER

As at 31 December

n12H31H
Note 2016 2015
MiEE 2016 £ 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T AR®TT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Land use rights Tib e FARE 6 31,738 7,330
Property, plant and equipment ME - BMERRE 7 116,141 120,491
Intangible assets BREE 2,803 823
Deferred income tax assets EIEFTEHEE 10 6,584 5,697
Prepayments for property, M - BERZE
plant and equipment FERIE 13 8,608 1,748
Total non-current assets ERHEEEE 165,874 136,089
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 11 130,496 102,754
Trade receivables B S EWRIE 12, 31 67,080 63,838
Prepayments and other receivables TEREREMERRRE 13, 31 38,217 51,467
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 14 1,021,999 235,216
Derivative financial instruments fTESmTE 15 — —
Total current assets REEERE 1,257,792 453,275
Total assets BEHE 1,423,666 589,364
Equity W=
Equity attributable to owners of AN RHEE ANELE S
the Company
Share capital &N 16 68 31
Reserves e 17 1,266,137 141,893
Total equity R 1,266,205 141,924
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As at 31 December

n12H31H
Note 2016 2015
Mt &E 2016 £ 2015 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥F T AR¥F T
Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities EREBARE
Redeemable convertible preferred shares T BE B ] AR SR AR 21 — 186,667
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables g S AR 19, 31 71,276 43,324
Other payables and accruals HittESFaRETER 20, 31 56,748 196,915
Current income tax liabilities EIEEp Ry =L 29,437 20,534
Total current liabilities mEaESEHE 157,461 260,773
Total liabilities BERE 157,461 447,440
Total equity and liabilities EERaEER 1,423,666 589,364

The notes on pages 136 to 224 are an integral part of these financial % 136 H £ 5 224 B Mz A L S B 153R

statements. RWVARID °
The financial statements on page 131 to 224 were approved by the %131 EZ %224 5 81 ¥ R & 7 2017
Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf. FIHHEEESWMAE WHTHE
ERBEE -
DANG CHUNXIANG SUN SHENGFENG
BEEE kg%
Director Director
EE EE

132 @EsERZERARLDT Yiha International Holding Ltd.
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Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE

Note 2016 2015
Bt =t 2016 4 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREET T ARET T
Revenue N 5 1,088,014 847,339
Cost of sales SHERA 22 (671,072) (553,106)
Gross profit EF 416,942 294,233
Distribution expenses KEER 22 (127,921) (93,898)
Administrative expenses THAX 22 (53,841) (38,255)
Other incomes and gains- net HiW AR W F5E 24 21,481 3,479
Fair value loss of redeemable AEEE AR E IR
convertible preferred shares A EEE 21 (35,264) —
Finance income- net BE WA EEE 25 33,692 1,361
Profit before income tax R 45 B A i 7 255,089 166,920
Income tax expense FriS®iRA 26 (68,369) (42,373)
Profit for the year FWiEH 186,720 124,547
Profit attributable to: UTALTEEENET :
— Owners of the Company RATHEBA 186,720 124,547
Other comprehensive income Hit 2@
HJEEEH T HEZE
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss Bz H9EH
Cash flow hedges BE&REEH 17 (514) 514
Other comprehensive income for the year, £/ H it & EITAN
net of tax ($NBRBLIR) (514) 514
Total comprehensive income EHEENEER 186,206 125,061
Total comprehensive income UTALTEGEEZEHRA
attributable to: HBE
— Owners of the Company —RATEEA 186,206 125,061
Earnings per share attributable to ApRLEREHEANE
ordinary equity holders of the Company EERER
(expressed in RMB per share) (LBBRAR®TIR)
- Basic —HR 27 0.234 0.222
— Diluted -8 27 0.234 0.220

The notes on pages 136 to 224 are an integral part of these financial
statements.

$ 136 EE 5 224 B A L S B3R
RIVARID »
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RERRBHR

Share
capital Reserves Total
(Note16) (Note17) equity
i &
(PfizE16) (PFzE17) SRR
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MIaE AR®BTT AREET T AR®ETT
Balance at 1 January 2016 R201651HA1H
R 31 141,893 141,924
Comprehensive income EHEBEAN
Profit for the year FREAN = 186,720 186,720
Other comprehensive income Ht2mEBA — (514) (514)
Total comprehensive income £ HEUINAEE = 186,206 186,206
Transactions with owners HEEAXS
Issuance of new ordinary shares ZX{T#EZEMR 16(f) 17 759,284 759,301
Capitalisation issue BT 16(e) 16 (16) —
Conversion of redeemable B2 it ] B 0] ] B2 i
convertible preferred shares BERKR 21 4 221,927 221,931
Share issuance costs B0 BT AR 16(f) = (39,093) (39,093)
Share-based payment expense AR {7 5 &
A1 FRBE 2 18 — 102 102
Shares repurchased BB EIRR 1 17(a) — (4,166) (4,166)
Total transactions with owners HEB AR 5 4% 37 938,038 938,075
Balance at 31 December 2016 72016 %12 A 31 H
mmeR 68 1,266,137 1,266,205
Balance at 1 January 2015 #2015F1A1H
#Hes 12 45,726 45,738
Comprehensive income 2HEBAN
Profit for the year FRRER — 124,547 124,547
Other comprehensive income Hi 2w A — 514 514
Total comprehensive income £ EY A% — 125,061 125,061
Transactions with owners HBEBAXZS
Shareholders’ contributions REEHE — 520 520
Issuance of new ordinary shares 1T ZER 19 17,649 17,668
Deemed distribution RAEOBR R DK
to shareholders — (47,063) (47,063)
Total transactions with owners H2#H AKX 5 8% 19 (28,894) (28,875)
Balance at 31 December 2015 /2015412 A31H
#Hex 31 141,893 141,924
The notes on pages 136 to 224 are an integral part of these financial 55136 25 224 BT A I E B SR

statements.
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Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE

Note 2016 2015
Py =E 2016 4F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities REFBAERERE
Cash generated from operations KEBEE 29(a) 283,242 125,938
Interest received 2UFE 933 57
Income tax paid 2SS (60,182) (36,357)
Net cash generated from BREFEMER&FHE
operating activities 223,993 89,638
Cash flows from investing activities BERHRERERE
Purchases of land use right IBE T F AR 6 (24,911) -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BE¥% - MEKRRE (22,649) (21,998)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEFEE (2,352) (859)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE
plant and equipment KRR BB IR 5,534 306
Net cash used in investing activities BEEERAREFHE (44,378) (22,551)
Cash flows from financing activities MEREGERERE
(Decrease)/increase in other payables due ~ H{th FE{JBEE S 7B
to related parties CRA), /1 (141,633) 319
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares, net 21T ERFISFIEFEE  16(f) 720,208 17,680
Proceeds from issuance of convertible BATAIRAMR AT EEEE IR
and redeemable preferred shares, net Fri8FRIE 558 21 — 186,667
Repurchase of shares BB EIRR 1 17(a) (4,166) —
Deemed distribution to equity holder RIEOERIFEADIK 17 — (47,063)
Net cash generated from financing METHMEREEH
activities 574,409 157,603
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R RREEEEY
ey PR 754,024 224,690
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNRERREZEEY
of year 14 235,216 9,222
Exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents HE&RRESEBYER
WA 32,759 1,304
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year F£XEERELZEY 14 1,021,999 235,216

The notes on pages 136 to 224 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

¥ 136 R 5% 224 M I B SR
RIARERD -
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Yihai International Holding Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the production and sale of hot pot soup flavoring products,
hot pot dipping sauce products and Chinese style compound
condiment products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
collectively referred to as the “Listed Business”.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18
October 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay
Road, P.O. Box 31119, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands.

As at 31 December 2016, the ultimate holding company of the
Company is ZYSP Yihai Ltd. which is wholly owned by Mr. Zhang
Yong and Ms. Shu Ping collectively. Ms. Shu Ping is the wife
of Mr. Zhang Yong and they are collectively referred to as the
“Ultimate Shareholders”.

Prior to the incorporation of the Company and the completion of
the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”), the Listed Business was
principally carried out by Sichuan Haidilao Catering Corporation
Ltd. (“Sichuan Haidilao”) and its affiliated companies which are
majority owned by the Ultimate Shareholders. In the preparation
of the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing”), the
Reorganisation was completed on 31 December 2015 and
pursuant to which the companies engaged in the Listed Business
under common control of the Ultimate Shareholders were
transferred to the Company. Accordingly, the Reorganisation
has been accounted for as a reorganisation of business under
common control in a manner similar to merger accounting in
2015.

The Company’s global offering of its shares (“Global Offering”) on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“HKSE”) was completed on 13 July 2016.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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GENERAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB?”), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March
2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below. These polices have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group has been
prepared in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements has been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of the redeemable convertible preferred
shares (as defined in Note 2.21 below), which is carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4 below.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for
the financial year beginning on or after 1 January
2016:

° Accounting for acquisitions of interests in
joint operations — Amendments to IFRS 11

° Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation — Amendments
to IAS 16 and IAS 38

o Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012 - 2014
cycle, and

° Disclosure initiative — amendments to IAS 1.

The adoption of these amendments did not have
any significant financial impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont’d)

(b)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Cont’d)

A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning after 1 January 2016
and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these
is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ addresses the
classification, measurement and derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces
new rules for hedge accounting and a new
impairment model for financial assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont’d)

(b)

(i)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Cont’d)

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’(Cont’d)

The Group does not expect the new guidance to
have a significant impact on the classification and
measurement of its financial assets as the Group
has only loans and receivables type financial
assets as at 31 December 2016.

There will be no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss and the Group does not
have any such liabilities as at 31 December 2016.
The derecognition rules have been transferred
from IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement and have not been changed.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont’d)

(b)

(i)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Cont’d)

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’(Cont’d)

Under the new hedge accounting rules in IAS 39,
more hedge relationships might be eligible for
hedge accounting, as the standard introduces a
more principles-based approach.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont’d)

(b)

(i)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Cont’d)

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’(Cont’d)

IFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. Based
on the transitional provisions in the completed
IFRS 9, early adoption in phases was only
permitted for annual reporting periods beginning
before 1 February 2015. After that date, the
new rules must be adopted in their entirety. The
Group does not intend to adopt IFRS 9 before its
mandatory date, and a more detailed assessment
of the impact will be performed in the next 12
months.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont’d)

(b)

(i)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Cont’d)

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’

The IASB has issued a new standard for the
recognition of revenue. This will replace IAS 18
which covers revenue arising from the sale of
goods and the rendering of services and IAS
11 which covers construction contracts. The
new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good
or service transfers to a customer. The standard
permits either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach for the adoption.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont’d)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Cont’d)

(i) IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’
(Cont’d)

Management is currently assessing the effects
of applying the new standard on the Group’s
financial statements and the following areas, if
applicable, may be affected:

° revenue from service - the application of
IFRS 15 may result in the identification of
separate performance obligations which
could affect the timing of the recognition of
revenue.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont’d)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Cont’d)

(i) IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’
(Cont’d)

° accounting for certain costs incurred in
fulfilling a contract - certain costs which
are currently expensed may need to be
recognised as an asset under IFRS 15, and

o rights of return IFRS 15 requires separate
presentation on the balance sheet of the
right to recover the goods from the customer
and the refund obligation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont’d)

(b)

(i)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Cont’d)

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’
(Cont’d)

At this stage, the Group is not able to estimate the
impact of the new rules on the Group’s financial
statements. The Group will make more detailed
assessments of the impact over the next twelve
months.

IFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont’d)

(b)

(i)

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Cont’d)

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the balance sheet, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of RMB 6,026,000 (see Note
30 (b)). The Group has not yet determined to
what extent these commitments will result in the
recognition of an asset and a liability for future
payments and how this will affect the Group’s
profit and classification of cash flows.

e MBRRME

2. EXEFERK

(&)

BERES

21 wHEBEE)

2.1.1 B HERKEZE ()

(b)

(il

faf AR ER AN B9 37 T 28
AR (E)

I % B 7% ¥ o5 ZE B
SE165:MHE]

AR &L S m
BEHENESEER
B BRI RE
# Bl 1655 15 &
BB AT HEEE
EEBERER-
RIBHETER - &
EFEEEENE
AE)RZAFES
Hemagesu
R o EE—HlsE
AEPREEEA
= o

HERA MR A
BIREARE -

ZEABFTESE
AEEKEHEN
SHEE- R
HHH AEEHN
TAHELER
EREAARY
6,026,000 7T ( & FKi
#F30(b)) - A >
KEBNKREEZ
EREBEYEE
REBMARMNLRK
BROEE UK
B ERER
MaARRERE

D -

2016 Annual Report F [E #f &

147



148

e M RR M

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (Cont’d)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Cont’d)

(i) IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (Cont’d)

Some of the commitments may be covered by the
exception for short-term and low value leases and
some commitments may relate to arrangements
that will not qualify as leases under IFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Business combinations under common control

Business combinations under common control
refers to combinations where the combining
entities are controlled by the same parties before
and after the combination and that control is not
transitory.

The acquirer measures both the consideration
paid and net assets obtained at their carrying
amounts. The difference between the carrying
amounts of the net assets obtained and the
carrying amount of the consideration paid is
recorded in reserve. All direct transaction cost
attributable to the business combination is
recorded in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income in the current period.
However, the handling fees, commissions and
other expenses incurred for the issuance of
equity instruments or bonds for the business
combination are recorded in the initial
measurement of the equity instruments and
bonds respectively.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

(b)

Business combinations not under common
control

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognise any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at
their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by IFRS.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.

2. EXEFERK

(&)

BERES

22 KBLARGE)

22.1580f(4&)

(b)

TEARZEIE
Bast

5[ PR AW BB A S
EBEONERR - W
B AR rERRE
RIFEREE - AW
WEE S R BER ARR
EERBERAEEM
BITRAERNDF
B rERKERR
FRNEZHFEEN
FAEESEENRD
FIE - EEBEHF
Fiv Y5 8 &Y 7T R B &
E - rARENEER
HREE - FRWE
AR DFEDLE

8-

REERZEWEE
ERANRBBITH
EMFEEZERER - B
MBBE L WFER
BR(BREKESR
BT HEAE
ATATERE - 1R A
DIERBB R EEF
B)DUAFERR
RHEERERENG
W BB R A RBIEE
FEPEERREN
L flEt & - BRIEEIRR
BB ERANHTE
BEESHRE  BH
FFETIERNAR
AR ER D UL A B
D FERE -



e MBRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2. EXEFHHBHRBMER GGG

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d) (#&)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d) 22 KMIBAR(E)

22.1 Consolidation (Cont’d) 22.1&60f(#)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combinations is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with IAS 39 in
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Cont’d)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquire over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred assets. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform to the Group’s accounting policy.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

222 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivables.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwiill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-makers (“CODM?”). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the chief
executive officer, vice presidents and directors of the
Company.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

@)

®)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using
the currency of primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements is presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income,
except when deferred in other comprehensive income
as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents
are presented in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income within ‘finance income-net’. All
other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income within ‘Other incomes and gains-net’.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

()

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(il

Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

Income and expenses for each consolidated
statements of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2. EXEFHHBHRBMER GGG
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d) (#&)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment 25 Y% BERRE

156

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
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Buildings 20 years B 204
Machinery 5-10 years Heg 5-10 %
Equipment 3-5 years Bl 3-5%F
Vehicles and furniture 5 years PAEREKRA 5%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Land use rights

Land use rights represent upfront prepayments made for
the land use rights and are expensed in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income of on a straight-
line basis over the periods of the leases or when there is
impairment, the impairment is expensed in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets mainly represent computer software.
Acquired computer software are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. There cots are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of 5 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into the
following categories: loans and receivables, held
to maturity investment, at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purposes for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. As at year end, the Group has only
loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for those with maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date, which are
classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
are included within trade receivables, other receivables
and cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheets
(Notes 2.14 and 2.15).
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e MBRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2. EXEFHHBHRBMER GGG
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d) (#&)

29 SRMEEE)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.9.2 Recognition and measurement 29.2MRRE
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets ERBAREENER

are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.11

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.1

212

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature
of the item being hedged. All of the Group’s hedging
instruments are designated as hedges of a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items,
as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking various hedging transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in cash flows of hedged items.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2. EXEFHHBHRBMER GGG
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d) (#&)

212 STAESR T ARETEE (&

2.12 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

162

(Cont’d)

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for
hedging purposes are disclosed in Note 15. Movements on
the hedging reserve in shareholder’s equity are shown in the
consolidated statements of changes in equity. The full fair
value of a hedging derivative is classified as a current asset
or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is
less than 12 months.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income.
The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income within ‘Other incomes and gains-
net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or
loss in the period when the hedged item affects profit or loss
(for example, when the forecast purchase that is hedged
takes place). However, when the forecast transaction that
is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset
(for example, inventory), the gains and losses previously
deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in
the initial measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred
amounts are ultimately recognised in cost of goods sold in
the case of inventory.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

212

213

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
(Cont’d)

Cash flow hedge (Cont’d)

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a
hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative unrecognised gain or loss existing in equity
at that time remains in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income. When
a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is
immediately transferred to the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income within ‘Other incomes and gains-
net’.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labor, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses. Cost
of inventories include the transfer from equity of any gains/
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges for purchases of raw
materials.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2. EXEFHHBHRBMER GGG
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d) (#&)

2.17 Trade payables 217 BEZENFIE

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
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at the balance sheet date in the countries where the TRABWARENE
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable XNEEREEBERAHE
income. Management periodically evaluates positions EHIEECEMANH

taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

®)

()

Deferred income tax
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax liability
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Only where there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income tax levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2. EXEFHHBHRBMER GGG
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d) (#&)

2.19 Employee benefits 219 EEER

168

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group has arranged for its PRC employees to join defined
contribution plans, including pension, medical, housing and
other welfare benefits, recognised by the PRC government.
According to the relevant regulations, the monthly
contributions that should be borne by the PRC subsidiaries
of the Company are calculated based on percentages of
the total salary of employees, subject to a certain ceiling.
The assets of these plans are held separately from those
of the Group in independent funds managed by the PRC
government.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the above contributions have been paid. The Group’s
contributions to these plans are charged in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income as incurred.

2.20 Share-based compensation

The Group adopted a restricted share unit scheme in 2016
to reward directors and employees. The fair value of the
services received in exchange for the grant of the restricted
shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
restricted shares granted as at date of grant, including any
market performance conditions, excluding the impacts of
any service and non-market performance vesting conditions
as well as including any non-vesting conditions, when
applicable. The total amount expensed is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of restricted shares that
are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

2.21

2.22

Redeemable convertible preferred shares

Redeemable convertible preferred shares entitle the holder
to convert into a variable number of equity instruments,
or to convert into a fixed number of equity instrument in
exchange of variable amount of cash. The Group designates
the redeemable convertible preferred shares as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The entire
redeemable convertible preferred shares are initially and
subsequently measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables, and represents amounts receivables
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts and value added
taxes. The Group recognise revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.

(a) Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells a range of hot pot
condiment products and Chinese-style compound
condiment products to customers including hot pot
restaurants and wholesalers. Sales of goods are
recognised when a group entity has delivered products
to the customers and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products. Revenue is adjusted for the value of sales
discount and rebates. Delivery does not occur until
the products have been delivered to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customers, and either the customers
have accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contracts, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2. EXEFHHRBMERG MGG

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Cont’d) (#&)
2.22 Revenue recognition (Cont’d) 2.22 WARERR (&)
(b)  Provision of services (b) FEERHE
The Group provides consultancy services to other AEBE@EMA FRME
companies and revenue is recognized as other BHARE > BIWARE
incomes and gains-net in consolidated statement of MZERBEVSTER
comprehensive income in the accounting period in EHRE2HKRARRKE
which the services are rendered. RAEHMB AR EF
XA o
2.23 Interest income 2.23 FIEWA
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis FIEWATIEREFELLAIZE
using the effective interest method. PRFUZEERERR o
2.24 Dividend income 2.24 RREWA
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive B2 U A 7 UK FR R B
payment is established. E
2.25 Lease 2.25 HE
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards NEBRENKE D BB B
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as MBELEARENHEE - &5
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases BAKENHE - RELEHE
(net of any incentives received from the lessor), are charged XN RBBABREBEAL T
to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line WEMEE)  REHRNUE
basis over the period of the lease. BEEZEBARFAHR -
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. HHERKRER
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 HBEBREE
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: NGB HY5E B M e B 2 AR
market risk (including currency risk and price risk), credit k2 - miEZER(EEEEER
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management REKRR) - EREKRRR
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial BETRK - A~EENEER
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on R EETEE IR ST EN
the Group’s financial performance. FrAIFERIM » W EBREREE
AEBUBRRWEE TR
48 o
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(@) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most
of the transaction denominated and settled in
RMB. However, the Group has certain cash and
deposits denominated in HKD and USD, which
is exposed to foreign currency translation risk.
Details of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are disclosed in Note 14 of this section
respectively.

During the year, the Group has not hedged its
foreign exchange risk because the exposure is
not significant.

If RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against USD and HKD respectively with all other
variables held constant, the post-tax profit would
have been approximately RMB 31,002,000 lower/
higher, for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: RMB 7,483,000 lower/higher), mainly as
a result of net foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of net monetary assets denominated in
USD and HKD.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. HMHEREERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.1 BXEBREEE)

(a) Market risk (Cont’d) (a) HHEkEE)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk.
To manage its price risk arising from future
commercial transactions on one of the major raw
materials - soybean oil, the Group purchased
futures contracts in Dalian Commodity Exchange.

The table below summarises the impact of
increases/decreases of the fair value of the
unsettled futures contracts on the Group’s post-
tax profit for the year and on equity, the analysis
is based on the assumption that the fair value of
the futures contracts had increased/decreased by
10% with all other variables held constant:

(ii)

ELEYENA
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Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARBT T
Impact on other HEMZEARANTZE
comprehensive income — 770
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

®)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
cash and deposits, trade and other receivables.

The carrying amounts of each class of the above
financial assets represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
To manage this risk arising from cash and deposits,
the Group only transacts with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable commercial banks which are
all high-credit-quality financial institutions in the PRC
and Hong Kong. There has been no recent history of
default in relation to these financial institutions.

Trade receivables at the end of each reporting period
were mainly due from HAI DI LAO HOLDINGS PTE.
LTD. and its subsidiaries, Sichuan Haidilao and the
distributors in cooperation with the Group. Both HAI
DI LAO HOLDINGS PTE. LTD and Sichuan Haidilao
are related parties of the Group (Note 31). As at 31
December 2016, the amounts due from HAI DI LAO
HOLDINGS PTE.LTD. and its subsidiaries represented
33%, while the amounts due from Sichuan Haidilao
represented 47% of total trade receivables of the
Group, respectively. The management of the Group
believes the credit risk on amounts due from related
parties is limited because they continuously monitor
the credit quality and financial conditions of the
related parties. Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in Note 12. The directors of
the Company believe that the credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding trade receivables balances due
from the distributors is low.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’qd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

®)

()

Credit risk (Cont’d)

For other receivables, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables
based on historical settlement records and past
experience. The directors of the Company believe that
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balance of other receivables.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying business, the Group’s finance department
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate
cash and cash equivalents.

Cash flow forecasting is performed by the finance
department of the Group. The Group’s finance
department monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs as well as the liabilities to other
parties.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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(c) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. HMHEREERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.1 BXEBREEE)

) HEBELEEE

Less than Between
1year 1and3years Total
PR1E 1E34 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AR¥FT
As at 31 December 2016 2016512831 H
Trade payables B A REMAFIE 71,276 = 71,276
Other payables and accruals HttEAFERESER 37,893 — 37,893
Total et 109,169 — 109,169
As at 31 December 2015 2015512831 H
Redeemable convertible EETERBLR
preferred shares — 186,667 186,667
Trade payables E5EAFE 43,324 — 43,324
Other payables and accruals HittERRERETER 184,995 — 184,995
Total et 228,319 186,667 414,986
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EBEXRERERE

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to enhance shareholders’ value
in the long term.

The Group monitors capital (including share capital,
reserves and preferred shares on an as-if converted basis)
by regularly reviewing the capital structure. As a part of
this review, the directors of the Company consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with the issued share
capital. The Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or repurchase the Company’s shares. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group’s capital risk is
low.

AEENEREEEERRE
FEENGEEE  UARRK
REER  RESREBESRR
BUERPRNEARREE -

AEEBEBEMENERNES
EREXN(BERAE  RER
BARUREBRTEREES
5)) - ERTFRAN D &
NRAESEERBITRANEEH
B AR E B o AN
EAEORRINHRES
B HRRWEREAR - 317
HBRIBEARTARG - A1
RAEERS  AEENERE
R -
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’qd)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The Group analyses the financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different level have been
defined as follow:

® Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

®* Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

* |nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not hold any
financial assets or liabilities that are carried at fair value.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group held redeemable
convertible preferred shares. Due to one or more of the
significant inputs used in the valuation of the redeemable
convertible preferred shares was not based on observable
market data, the instrument was included in level 3.
The valuation technique used to value the redeemable
convertible preferred shares 2015 was discounted cash flow
method.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.

3.

A% BB B 3R ()

3.3

AREER

REBRE N FEMGEREY
RELATEIENERNEEE
TTH - TRKXWEERN
T

e NHEEEIEEEER
ISR AREHBRE(E
_E) o

e HFREEIEBENTE
ZYEMAwmEEE
BEEEER)HLATH
EEEE(REERS
HE-BRNTHSRE
BRIN (B8 -

e UWHERTBERMEH
BEENFATBEHE) W
EEREBHEE=
fE) °

M20165F12A31H " A &
@3 A IR AP E 8
MemEENERE -

MR2015F12A31H &K &
EiFE 0 EE T ERE LR -
[ 54 7 B (2] o) SR (B ST AR P
At — =2 EEXEIE LI
ERABEMSEESE T
BN AE=E - 201557
4 0] B =] AT S MBS BR FT R Y
HERNTAREREEEL -



3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’qd)

3.4 Fair value measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3)

e MBRRME

A% BB B 3R ()

34 FRAERFTATHEEWMAERE
(=)W AFEFE

Redeemable convertible preferred shares ] B B AT R E ST R
2016 2015
2016 4 20154
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EF T ARETTT
Opening balance at 1 January ®1 B 1 BWWERR4&ER 186,667 —
Issuance of the Group REE BT — 186,667
Change in fair value NEHEED 35,264 —
Converted into ordinary shares Ein BTk (221,931) —
Closing balance at 31 December 12 A 31 BRVER R 58k — 186,667

Refer to Note 21 for the Group’s valuation process in these
redeemable convertible preferred shares.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.

ZETEDJERELERNAEEGE

2=
AL

4,

L EPAR

EXEHER R

EETRAEFETUFME > LAE
RBEERREMERMET &
ERHNERRBERTHEBSEN
RIS - AEBEARREL M
RBR - ELENSFHAFEESR
FELRBBERERER - BH
THABHT - MRFEREER
BEREEFHERAERNMGTR
BRI

(a) BENTBRFE

FEWAEEFERABER
BRPHMEEERMGE TR
AR HERGTE - 25
SHNERER IR AR RER
HERAMEERNBEIER
Bl - EEERBEERER
AHE GRS
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Cont’d)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables. This estimate
is based on the credit history of its customers and current
market conditions. Management reassesses the provision
at each balance sheet date. Management reassesses the
adequacy of impairment provision on a regular basis by
reviewing the individual account based on past credit history
and any prior knowledge of debtor insolvency or other
credit risk which might not be public information or easily
accessible public information and market volatility that might
bear a significant impact but might not be easily ascertained.

Redeemable convertible preferred shares

Redeemable convertible preferred shares, being designated
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, were
measured at fair value at each reporting date. The Group
used judgements to select a variety of valuation methods
and make assumptions based on market conditions existing
at the respective valuation dates. The Group adopted the
quoted market price as the valuation method upon the
conversion of the redeemable convertible preferred shares
into ordinary shares in July 2016, while the Group adopted
discounted cash flow method to determine the business
value of the Group, followed by option pricing model to
determine the fair value of redeemable convertible preferred
shares on 31 December 2015.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Cont’d)

(d)

Income taxes and deferred tax

There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
be reflected in the income tax expense and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made. In addition, the realisation of future income tax assets
is dependent on the Group’s ability to generate sufficient
taxable income in future years to utilise income tax benefits
and tax loss carry-forwards. Deviations of future profitability
from estimates or in the income tax rate would result in
adjustments to the value of future income tax assets and
liabilities that could have a significant effect on the income
tax expenses.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDEHER

Management determines the operating segments based on the EEEEREELEREEETHAN
reports reviewed by the CODM that are used to make strategic WERARELHBAR) BELE
decisions. The Group’s revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and DE AEBHNBA -BX &
capital expenditure are primarily attributable to the manufacture E BEREATHFERFERH
and sales of hot pot soup flavoring products, hot pot dipping EROIFEFIHEXNBESR - R
sauce products and Chinese-style compound condiment products BB R AR E S AR (RIE— 18
to external customers, which are considered as one segment. DER) - REBMNEENHESTER -
The Group’s principal market is the PRC and its sales to overseas Hog/itEFREERERRE KA
customers contributed to less than 10% of the total revenues. H10% - Et > W MEFEE

Accordingly, no geographical information is presented. o
Breakdown of revenue by product category is as follows: REMAIEDHWABMANOT :

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

180

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥F T ARET T
Revenue [N
Hot pot soup flavoring products NIBERIE R
- Related parties — BBt 583,778 446,743
— Third parties - =1 288,745 251,909
Subtotal NET 872,523 698,652
Hot pot dipping sauce products AIBEERE m
- Related Parties — EA 104 53
— Third Parties —-5$%=5 73,856 41,157
Subtotal NEt 73,960 41,210
Chinese style compound PRESFARR
condiment products
- Related parties —EB¥% A 18,194 7,511
— Third parties —$5=%5 116,351 87,720
Subtotal NEt 134,545 95,231
Others Hit
- Related parties — Bt 3,652 10,796
— Third parties —$£=5 3,334 1,450
Subtotal NEt 6,986 12,246
Total et 1,088,014 847,339

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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LAND USE RIGHTS 6. ITHH{ERE
2016 2015
2016 £ 2015 %
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®FT ARBTT
Opening net book amount as at w1 A1 BNEVREFE

1 January 7,330 9,179
Additions B 24,911 —
Disposal from Reorganisation BHEENHE ()

(Note a) — (1,626)
Amortisation charge #EEE (503) (223)
Closing net book amount as at ®12 A 31 HWEXRREFE

31 December 31,738 7,330
At 31 December w12A381H
Cost %S 33,242 8,331
Accumulated amortisation EGTHE (1,504) (1,001)
Net book amount BREFEE 31,738 7,330

Land use rights represent the net book amount of prepaid
operating lease payment. All the land use rights of the Group are
located in the PRC and are held on leases from 46-50 years.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group was in the process of
changing the title of the land use right certificates to Zhengzhou
Shuhai Enterprise Co. Ltd. (a subsidiary of the Company) from

Sichuan Haidilao.

(@ Upon the completion of the Reorganisation on 31 December
2015 (as mentioned in Note 1), certain land use right,
buildings and equipment of Chengdu Branch of Sichuan
Haidilao that had been used for the production of the Listed
Business were not acquired by the Group. As a result, such
land use right, buildings and equipment were considered as
deemed disposal arising from the Reorganisation. Effective
from 1 January 2016, the Group leases such land use right,
buildings and equipment at a rental fee of RMB 3.01 million
per year from Sichuan Haidilao for three years.

T fE AREERAEEEEN R
REFRE - ARER 2L EH
B RBE - JiZ46 E50F 1Y
HERH -

A2016FE 128310 ' "EBEIERE
BEN)IEEREH Tt EAEEN
EEZADTNBLAABMNEEE
£BRAT °

(a) M2015F12831H EH =
R (MIEE1 R iRat) & - Mg
[REBRE D A BNE T LibhfE
B SHAREELTEBRHN
BFEREHELEFEAEBK
i Hit ) ZE LA -
BFRZEHEREEAEEN
RIELE - XEBEHKUSHF
ARBIOCIEETHEED
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E-EFRFZE B20165F
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7. ¥E -BBEERR
Vehicles
Equipment and Construction
Buildings ~ Machinery  and Other furniture  in process Total
i & ke RfEREt EHRRE ERIRE A5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR
As at 1 January 2015 R2015E1 818
Cost B 68,159 62,135 18,453 2,166 — 150,913
Accumulated depreciation ZETHE (9,804) (12,383) (4,906) (357) — (27,450)
Net book amount REFE 58,355 49,752 13,547 1,809 — 123,463
Year ended 31 December 2015 EHZ2015%12831H
g
Opening net book amount ENRAFE 58,355 49,752 13,547 1,809 — 123,463
Additions B 5,351 21,900 7,791 — 1,065 36,107
Disposals L& — — (308) — — (308)
Deemed disposal arising from ~ EAEE R
the Reorganisation (Note 6(a))  tH& ({3 6(a) (5,941) (7,042) (6,555) - — (19,538)
Transfers B3 1,065 — — — (1,065) —
Depreciation charge mEER (5,769) (7,079) (5,884) (501) — (19,239)
Closing net book amount EREHFE 53,061 57,531 8,591 1,308 — 120,491
As at 31 December 2015 ®2015%12 8318
Cost B 68,634 76,993 19,381 2,166 — 167,174
Accumulated depreciation EEg (15,573) (19,462) (10,790) (858) — (46,683)
Net book amount RHFE 53,061 57,531 8,591 1,308 — 120,491
Year ended 31 December 2016 & Z2016E12 5311
Jl:355
Opening net book amount EOREFE 53,061 57,531 8,591 1,308 — 120,491
Additions HE 2,047 9,580 2,263 127 1,772 15,789
Disposals hE = (5,850) (215) (249) = (6,314)
Depreciation charge FEER (2,877) (6,978) (3,575) (395) — (13,825)
Closing net book amount ERREFE 52,231 54,283 7,064 791 1,772 116,141
As at 31 December 2016 ®2016% 128318
Cost A 70,681 80,723 21,429 2,044 1,772 176,649
Accumulated depreciation ZHHE (18,450) (26,440) (14,365) (1,253) = (60,508)
Net book amount REFE 52,231 54,283 7,064 791 1,772 116,141
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 7. W% BERBEE)
Depreciation expense has been charged to the consolidated ERXERGEEZAEWBARSI
statements of comprehensive income as follows: B BIRAOT :
Year ended 31
BZ12A31HLEEE
2016 2015
2016 4 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AREBT T
Cost of sales THERA 12,044 16,203
Administrative expense THAX 223 560
Distribution costs REH AR AN 1,558 2,470
13,825 19,233
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 8. REMBETHEMIE
Assets as per balance sheet REEESBERNEE
Loans and
receivables
B REWRIE
RMB’ 000
AR®TT
At 31 December 2015 M2015%£12H831H
Trade and other receivables B 5k EMEWIE 67,759
Cash and cash equivalents BHERBEEEEY 235,216
Total st 302,975
At 31 December 2016 2016512831 H
Trade and other receivables B 5k EMEWFE 72,397
Cash and cash equivalents RERBREZEEY 1,021,999
Total st 1,094,396
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8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont’d)

8. REMNESTHMEMIRE)

Liabilities as per balance sheet BEEEEERNEE
Liabilities at Other financial
fair value through liabilities at
the profit orloss ~ amortised cost Total
RS P A
BEATEERAN HIRRAY H
BHEAR =N #Et
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR AREFR AREFR
At 31 December 2015 2015512831 H
Redeemable convertible preferred shares B AT AR LR 186,667 — 186,667
Trade and other payables B NHEMENTE — 228,319 228,319
Total @t 186,667 228,319 414,986
At 31 December 2016 ®2016 512831 H
Trade and other payables Bo REMENFE = 109,169 109,169
Total st — 109,169 109,169

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.



SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December 2016:

Name of company

NE B

Directly held:
HERFE -

Yihai Ltd.

Yihai Ltd.

Indirectly held:
EIEIFE -

Yihai (China) Co., Ltd.

BEE(hE)RmERLH

Yihai (Shanghai) Food
Co., Ltd.

EE( LB emERAH

Place of
incorporation
and operation
and kind of
legal entity
AR AL RS
R REE

"EgEn

British Virgin
Islands

Limited liability
company

RERELEE
BREMEAF

Hong Kong

Limited liability
company

ERBREERLT

The PRC

Limited liability
company

TEIAREELH

Principal activities

ITERH

Investment holding
and consulting

Investment holding
and consulting

REZREZH

Sales of hot
pot condiment

HE XL

9. MBRA

e MBRRME

2016 F 12 A31 HfI B AR REWT

Particulars of

issued share capital
and debt securities

BRITRER
BHESHE

US$ 1

W
Jl

HK $ 10,000,000

10,000,000 7% 7T
HK $ 10,000,000

10,000,000 & 7T

Effective
interest held

FARMERER

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
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9. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Name of company

RE B

Zhengzhou Shuhai
Enterprise Co., Ltd.
(“Zhengzhou shuhai”)

BMNFEEXFRAA
(M &= L)

Chengdu Yueyihai
Co., Ltd.

BEB SR E AR A R

Yihai Beijing Trading
Co., Ltd.

B (tr)mERRATE

Yihai (Bazhou) Food
Co., Ltd.

EE@EMN RRERL R

Place of
incorporation
and operation
and kind of
legal entity
AR AL R AR
B RIEE
HiggEn
The PRC
Limited liability
company
HFEIEREEAR

The PRC

Limited liability
company

HEBREELF

The PRC

Limited liability
company

HEAREEAT

The PRC
Limited liability
company

TEIAREELH

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.

Principal activities

FTEFRE
Manufacture and
sales of hot

pot condiment

EEREE XL

Manufacture and
sales of hot pot
condiment

LEREE XL

Sales of hot pot
condiment

HEXBER

Yet to commence
operation

9. MBRRGE)

Particulars of

issued share capital

and debt securities

BRITRAR
BEHE SR
RMB 1,000,000

A K% 1,000,000 7T

RMB 1,000,000

A K% 1,000,000 7T
RMB 1,000,000

A ¥ 1,000,000 7T
RMB 10,000,000

A% 10,000,000 7T

Effective
interest held

FAENERER

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
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10. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 10. EEXEFEHEEREGR
As at 31 December
n12H31H
2016 2015
2016 £ 2015 £
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T AR¥T T
Deferred income tax assets: EIEEHEE
Deferred tax asset to be recovered —12{@ B B WE R
after more than 12 months EIEFTEHERE 1,019 1,324
Deferred tax asset to be recovered —121@ B LA =l #Y
within 12 months EEMESHEE 5,565 4,544
Total st 6,584 5,868

The gross movement of the deferred income tax account is as

EEFRSHIARE VAR ZEMNT -

follows:
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT ARETT
As at 1 January M1B18 5,868 5,378
Consolidated statements FFAGZEEZEBAR
of comprehensive (Mg5E26)
income credit (Note 26) 716 490
As at 31 December Mm12A831H 6,584 5,868
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10. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Cont'd) 10. IEEMEBHEERARKE)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities ERZEMHEBHRE AR R TR
during the year ended 2016, without taking into consideration of HEREMERT - REBZE2016F 1k
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as FENELERSHEERBEED
follows: M
Provision of
Unrealised  Payroll and trade and
gains and welfare other
Sales Depreciation losses payables  receivables
rebates differences  RERKE EitHs EHREM Total
Deferred income tax assets BRFREHEE HERBH RE£H REH REH ERHESH @t

RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR

As at 1 January 2015 R201551818 2,283 1,324 — 1,678 93 5,378
Credited/(Charged) to the REE2ERAR
consolidated statements iTA/ (H1BR)
of comprehensive 1,583 — — (1,040) (53) 490
As at 31 December 2015 R2015512A311 3,866 1,324 — 638 40 5,868
Credited/(Charged) to the REALERAR
consolidated statements HA/ ()
of comprehensive (1,677) (305) 2,501 169 28 716
As at 31 December 2016 R2016£12 831 A 2,189 1,019 2,501 807 68 6,584
Cash flow
Deferred income tax liabilities BIERMEHaE hedging
bR gt
RMB’ 000
AR®ETFT
As at 1 January 2015 #2015F1A1H —
Charged to the comprehensive income ARETEUR AR (171)
As at 31 December 2015 201512831 H (171)
Credited to the comprehensive income STAZEBA
171
As at 31 December 2016 MR20165 12831 H -
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10. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Cont’d)

11.

Net amount of deferred income tax assets after offsetting:

e MBRRME

10. BEEFREHEERAREGE)
HERIELFISHEREFE

As at 31 December

R12A318
2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ETFT AR¥T T
Deferred income tax assets EIEFIEHEE 6,584 5,697
INVENTORIES 1. &
As at 31 December
n12H31H
2016 2015
2016 2015 £
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Raw materials EarR 35,633 32,464
Work in progress EH®Hm 3,247 3,621
Finished goods SR 91,616 66,669
Total inventories FEHR 130,496 102,754

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to RMB 583,819,000 (2015: RMB
480,098,000), which included inventory write-down of RMB
152,000 (2015: RMB 186,000).

BRERZLFTAMEERERIN
FE KA B AR #583,819,000
(20154 © A [ % 480,098,000
) HERGFEMRARY
152,000t(2015%F : A R #
186,000 7T) °
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12. TRADE RECEIVABLES

12. B EWRIA

As at 31 December

W12A31H
2016 2015
2016 4F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EF T ARETTT
Third parties F£= 12,866 5,331
Related parties (Notes 31(d)) BAE 75 (FIEE 31(d)) 54,224 58,507
Subtotal INEF 67,090 63,838
Less: provision for impairment L ORERE (10) —
Trade receivables — net B 5 ENEIE — FEE 67,080 63,838

(@ The majority of the Group’s third party sales are conducted
through receiving advances from customers before
delivering the goods to customers, with only few customers
are granted with credit periods ranged from 30 to 60 days.
The related party customers of the Group are granted with
30 days credit period. Ageing analysis based on recognition
date of the gross trade receivables at the respective balance
sheet dates is as follows:

KEBME=FHHEKRI DL
MEEXFEYRINEEF 2
RWHRET > EREEIH
EFEEHENF30ZE60KHY
EEH - XEENEBLEP
ERHIOXNEER - RiE
HME S EWRENRES B R
BEEANRBRITOT ¢

As at 31 December

W12A31H
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ETF T AR¥T T
Within 3 months 3EAR 66,878 63,838
3 to 6 months 3Z6MEA 202 —
Total Fakes 67,080 63,838

The carrying amounts of trade receivables above
approximate their fair values.
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12. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b)

As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables of RMB 202,000
(2015: Nil) were past due but not impaired. These relate to
a number of independent customers for whom there is no
significant financial difficulty and based on past experience,
the overdue amounts can be recovered. The ageing analysis
of these trade receivables is as follows:

e MBRRME

12. BESEWRIEE)

(b) # Z£2016%F 128318 &
5 N8 AR # 202,000 7T
(20155 : F|)EBHERA
B - ZEREEN BB KT
R#ENETBELIEFER &
HABALE  BHS5ETR
g - ZZEE S EWRIERNERER

DT :
As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®F T ARBT T
3 to 6 months 3ZE6{EA 202 —

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

B RS EREESHNT

2016 2015

2016 £ 2015 F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®FRT ARBTT

As at 1 January W1A1H = 226
Provision for/(Reversal of) WERE S (BE)

impairment 10 (226)

As at 31 December MW12A31H 10 —

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in ‘Administrative expenses’
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

L SRR R (E B UK IR B
BEFAREZHBAREN
MTHFEX<] -
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13. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

13. FEMTRERHE Mt ERHRIE

As at 31 December

W12A31H
2016 2015
2016 4F 20154
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARETTT
Prepayments BEHERIE
Prepayments for purchase BE R RNEATIE
of raw materials 24,276 37,993
Prepayments for property, ME - BMERRE
plant and equipment (SRR 8,608 1,748
Value added tax recoverable EIEE R 4,150 3,072
Prepayments for rental HEENKIE 2,032 2,308
Prepayments for legal and EEREEER
professional fees TS FRIE 1,933 3,273
Prepayments for utilities N 3L VB SE] 160 809
Others Hih 348 91
Subtotal hat 41,507 49,294
Less: Non-current portion W IERENE D (8,608) (1,748)
Current portion RENE D 32,899 47 546
Other receivables Hit e IR
Deposit for utilities NAREEE 3,271 590
Advance to employees RUFEENBER 1,595 1,306
Deposit for futures contracts HEENES — 924
Related parties (Notes 31(d)) B 75 (B4R 31(d)) 390 450
Others Hih 323 810
Less: provision for impairment (a) B OBERE () (261) (159)
Subtotal Nt 5,318 3,921
Total Bat 38,217 51,467
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13. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

14.

(@@ Movements in the provision for impairment of other

e MBRRME

13. TA{THIARH it U IR ()

() EAAEUKIE R E B

receivables are as follows: W
2016 2015
2016 2015 &
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBETF T AR¥T T
As at 1 January M1A1H 159 144
Provision for impairment R ERE 102 15
As at 31 December MW12A31H 261 159
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 14. RERBREEEY
As at 31 December

W12A31H
2016 2015
2016 2015 &
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥TF T
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERS 1,021,999 235,216

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2016 2015
2016 2015 &
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBET T AR¥T T
RMB AR 195,267 35,647
USs$ Ey 80,786 199,569
HKD BT 745,946 —
Total FEE 1,021,999 235,216
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14.

15.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2016, RMB 1,749,000 (2015: RMB 573,000)
are cash and cash equivalents from other financial organisation,
such as AliPay.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject
to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The derivative financial instruments of the Group represent
soybean oil futures contracts.

The Group settles its gains or losses on soybean oil position on a
daily basis.

The contractual value and change of fair value of unmuture futures
contracts as at 31 December 2015 were as follows:

14.

15.

ReRBeSEWE)

2016512831 H » REH At Bt
KEB(WMEZANBE)NESRESE
BB ARY1,749,000 (2015 F :
AR#573,0007T) °

A RBIENGRRERINE
R ZEINETENRITERRE
FEHPE - RBTHEBFREMR
MAERBIMNEETRAUER -

fTEemIA

AEENITEESR TR
a8 -

THME

REEFZEREARREEHES

HESXM2015F 12 A31 Bk
FEEGHNEERATFEEBHNT :

For the year ended
31 December 2015
BZ2015512A31HILEE

Contractual Change of

value fair value

BHEE NEEEH

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥T T ARBTF T

Soybean oil futures contracts THHPESY 10,271 685
Less: Cash received as settlement W EERRENIRE (685)

REBZE2015F12 831 H
NEESHFEET

Net position of futures contracts
as at 31 December 2015

There is no soybean oil futures contracts for the year ended 31
December 2016.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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16. SHARE CAPITAL 16. BEA
Authorised ordinary shares: EEZ @R
Number of Nominal value of
ordinary shares ordinary shares
LERHE EEREE
us$
ETT
Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each upon ML E UK
incorporation and as at 1 January 2015 20154
1HA1H
#R0.01%T
E B 200,000 2,000
Increase in authorised share capital MA2015F3 812 H
on 12 March 2015 (a) EINHYEE R (a) 214,800 2,148
Increase in authorised share capital M2015% 10858
on 5 October 2015 (a) BINHYEE R (a) 585,200 5,852
Balance in October 2015 prior to Share Split (b) 72015 & 10 A ik 1
DIFRIVEEER (b) 1,000,000 10,000
Share Split on 5 October 2015 (b) M2015% 10858
HYBR 12 72+ (b) 1,000,000,000 10,000
Ordinary shares of US$0.00001 M2015F12H31H
each at 31 December 2015 5% 0.00001 7T
HEER 1,000,000,000 10,000
Increase in authorised share capital M201656 4208
on 20 June 2016 (c) SETERRAIG AN (c)
4,000,000,000 40,000
Ordinary shares of US$0.00001 M2016F12H31H
each at 31 December 2016 /% 0.00001 =T
OR=REEL 5,000,000,000 50,000
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16. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’a)

16. BEA&(#)

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: ERTRBEZER
Nominal Equivalent
Number of value of nominal value
ordinary ordinary of ordinary
shares shares shares
LERR
LiEREE LEREE ZEEE
US$ RMB’ 000
EP AE®TIT
At 1 January 2015 N2015F181H 200,000 2,000 12
Issuance of ordinary shares in March and 742015%3 A& 108
October 2015 (a) BITEER () 288,000 2,880 19
Balance on 5 October 2015 before the B2 IR AT 2015 F 488,000 4,880 31
Share Split (b) 10 A5 A H94EEA (b)
Share Split on 5 October 2015 201510 A5H
PR 12 75 4 488,000,000 4,880 31
At 31 December 2015 M2015512H31H 488,000,000 4,880 31
At 1 January 2016 n2016FE1 A1 H 488,000,000 4,880 31
Conversion of redeemable BT R A iR
convertible preferred shares (d) BER () 54,222,222 542 4
Capitalisation issue (e) ERLEIT () 237,777,778 2,378 16
Issuance of ordinary shares upon ERBEARTTER®
Global Offering (f) 260,000,000 2,600 17
Issuance of ordinary shares upon B R TR T
exercise of over-allotment option (f) EER 6,900,000 69 —
At 31 December 2016 N2016F12A31H 1,046,900,000 10,469 68
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16. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’a)

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: (Cont’d)

(@)

On 12 March 2015, the authorised capital was increased
to US$ 4,148 divided into 414,800 ordinary shares with
a par value of US$0.01 each. On the same date, 214,800
ordinary shares with par value of US$ 0.01 each were
issued at US$ 8.86 per share, totaling US$ 1,903,148
(equivalent to approximately RMB 12,067,000), of which
US$ 2,148 (equivalent to approximately RMB 14,000) were
credited to share capital and US$ 1,901,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB 12,053,000) were credited to share
premium.

On 5 October 2015, the authorised capital was increased
to US$ 10,000 divided into 1,000,000 ordinary shares with
a par value of US$ 0.01 each. On the same date, 73,200
ordinary shares with par value of US$ 0.01 each were issued
at US$ 11.85 per share, totaling US$ 867,420 (equivalent
to approximately RMB 5,601,000), of which US$ 732
(equivalent to approximately RMB 5,000) were credited to
share capital and US$ 866,688 (equivalent to approximately
RMB 5,596,000) were credited to share premium.

On 5 October 2015, the board of directors of the Company
approved a share split of the Company’s share capital at
a ratio of 1 to 1,000 (the “Share Split”). As a result, the
authorised share capital after the Share Split remained at
US$10,000 but was divided into 1,000,000,000 ordinary
shares at a par value of US$0.00001 each and the
issued share capital remained at US$ 4,880, divided into
488,000,000 ordinary shares of US$ 0.00001 each.

On 20 June 2016, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from US$10,000 to US$50,000 by
the creation of 4,000,000,000 ordinary shares with nominal
value of US$ 0.00001 each.

e MBRRME

16. BEA&(#)

(a

ERTRBZEERE
M2015E3/812 % &
BEAREBZEA148E T 05

414,800% & B% M {B0.013%
TTHEBR - B H » 214,800
REREEIETHNER
IR 1% 5 IR IR 19 8.86 3% JT XE B
17+ & $£1,903,148 % Jt (48
£ R Y A K #12,067,000
T) B 2,148 X T(HHER
HARM14,0007T ) 5t AR
7+ 1,901,000 £t (ERY
AR%12,053,0007T) 5T AR
13718 -

201510858 % &
BAREZE10000ET 25
1,000,000 % 5 B EI {8 0.01 3=
TTHEBER [ A 73,200
BREREEIETHNER
RIZEGRIRD 11.85 TR
17> 54867420 T(HZE
A% A R #5,601,0007T ) ¢
EHRTRETHERI A
K #5,0007T ) 5 A B &
866,688 X T(HHERHV AR
#£ 5,596,000 7T ) 5T A B 19 &

E o

M2015%F1085H & 2
AEEEHfAELRARARSE
%1t 1,00089 Lt B # 17 B
o[ M9 HFD -
It BB 2IFRAEERAK
{5 %10,000% T B &
SR MEE0.00001E T A
1,000,000,000 82 Z B R » ™
B %7’ B4,880% T
4 7488,000,000 i B&
0.00001 ETHEBER °

A20165F6 4208 * A4 T
%38 2 5% 4,000,000,000 }R &
% T {5 0.00001 % T W & @
B% 0 4% A E B A< $110,000 3%
JCHEHNZE 50,000 3T °
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16. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’a)

(d)

Conversion of redeemable convertible preferred shares

Save as disclosed in Note 21, as at 13 July 2016, the
redeemable convertible preferred shares have been
automatically converted into 54,222,222 ordinary shares
(before the capitalisation issue mentioned in note (e) below)
upon listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of
HKSE.

Capitalisation issue

Pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) passed on 20 June
2016, conditional upon the share premium account of the
Company being credited as a result of the issuance of new
shares pursuant to the Global Offering, the directors of
the Company (the “Director”) were authorised to capitalise
an amount of US$2,378 towards paying up in full at par
of 237,777,778 ordinary shares of US$0.00001 each for
allotment and issue to the persons whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close
of business on the business day before 13 July 2016 in
proportion to their then existing shareholding. Accordingly
237,777,778 ordinary shares with par value of US$0.00001
each were issued and US$2,378 (equivalent to RMB 15,907)
were credited to share capital.

Issuance of new ordinary shares to public upon Global
Offering

On 13 July 2016, the Company completed its Global Offering
by issuing 260,000,000 new ordinary shares with nominal
value of US$0.00001 each at a price of HK$3.3 per share.
Since then, the Company’s shares have been listed on the
Main Board of HKSE.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.

16. BEA&(#)

(@) BRI iTERETR

(e

®

WM EE21 fr ik - 201657
B138 > RERARARBES
BEIAMERLTE  JER
AERELIREEDERE
54,222,222 IR EBR (M T X
MIEE (e) ATt & AL 31T AT) ©

BALRT

REAQNTZERR(KRRED
A2016F6 20 B BB E
HRER AQ2AES(E
EEZEB2378ETTFU
BEARL BUREEZEH
2237,777,778 Rk &= % @ &
0.00001 ETHZER - L@
MR2016F7 13 H E XM
HEREFBIARDBRRAMH
AT RBEEERSREAE
BREBT BASAQITRKR
HRERERBEZIRZEEM
EREREZ AAEE-
It 237,777,778 RE R EE
0.00001 3£ JT Y& B AR B & 5
TR23T8ERXT(HERAR
#15,907 JT) EFFABRARRA °

PIERER B LR L EITH
BER

2016578138 » KA F
EBREERI3BITHNEERR
17260,000,0008 & & ™ &
0.00001 ETHHFEER &
RERBE - QTR MDEL
REBBRZFAER L -



16. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’a)

()

Issuance of new ordinary shares to public upon Global
Offering (Cont’d)

On 12 August 2016, the Company issued additional
6,900,000 new ordinary shares with nominal value of
US$0.00001 each at a price of HK$3.3 per share pursuant
to the exercise of the over-allotment option of the Global
Offering.

The total gross proceeds from the Global Offering were
approximately HK$880,770,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB759,301,000), of which US$2,669 (equivalent
to approximately RMB17,000) was credited to share
capital, HK$880,749,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB759,284,000) was credited to share premium. The share
issuance costs relating to the Global Offering amounted to
RMB39,093,000 were recorded in the share premium.

e MBRRME

16. BEA&(#)

®

PERER B RRTA L EITH
EER(E)

N2016%E8H12H » A&
BRENBARRERETE &
NEIRERIIBITNEKRE
5M2% 176,900,000 IR = IR HE B
0.00001 ETHIFZBAR ©

EHRBEMBSRELENA
880,770,000 % jT(HH B R &
A B #759,301,0007T )
HA2669T(HHERBAA
K #17,0007T ) 5 A B A&
880,749,000 T(HH E R #
A R #759,284,000 7T ) 3t A
R0 RE - EIRBEBBEHIR
3317 AR A R %5 39,093,000
TURCEER IR0 EE -
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17. RESERVES 17. 45
Treasury Merger  Statutory Share-based Hedging
shares reserve reserve  payment reserve
Share (note a) (note b) (note ) reserve (noted)  Retained
premium ERRH  AHRE  ETRE URGAER  HMREE  eamings Total
BhiEE (Hzta) (HizEb) (Mzke) HRFEHE (fztd)  REBEA &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  AREIRT AREFR AR®TR ARMTR ARETRT ARETR ARETR
As at 1 January 2015 R201551 518 — — 44148 1,039 — 539 45,726
Profit for the year EpigFl - - - - - - 124,547 124,547
Cash flow hedging B - - - - - 514 - 514
Appropriation to statutory reserves  EEEERE - - - 7,804 - — (7,804) -
Issuance of new ordinary shares ~ BTHEZBR (M7 16(a)

(Note 16 () 17,649 - - - —~ - — 76k
Shareholders’ contributions (note &) 3R HE (Hfite) - - 520 - - — - 520
Deemed distribution to RIEEDRT R (M)

shareholders (note f) — - (45,113) - - — (1,950) (47,063)
As at 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31A 17,649 - (445) 8,843 - 514 115,332 141,893
As at 1 January 2016 M2016F1518 17,649 — (445) 8,843 — 514 115,332 141,893
Profit for the year ERgT - = = = = — 18720 186,720
Shares repurchased (note a) BRI (i) (4,163) &) = = = = = (4,166)
Cash flow hedging bkl — — = = = (514) = (514)
Appropriation to statutory reserves EEEE R = = = 14,316 = = (14,316) =
Issuance of new ordinary shares  B{THEER (M 16(7)

(Note 16 (f) 759,284 — — — — — — 759,284
Capitalisation issue (Note 16 (¢)) &AL 317 (Hf3E 16(e)) (16) — — — — — - (16)
Conversion of redeemable BRUERTERELR

convertible preferred shares (¥ 16(d)

(Note 16 d) 221,927 = = = = = A
Share issuance costs (Note 16 (f)  BR{AZTHRIA (T 16(7) (39,003) = = = = = = (39,093)
Share-based payment expense  BURGPBEBRNAFER

(Note 18) (HizE18) = = = = 102 = = 102
As at 31 December 2016 R2016F 128318 955,588 (] (445) 23,159 102 - 287,736 1,266,137
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17. RESERVES (Cont’d)

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
adopted restricted share unit (‘RSU”) scheme.

In February 2016, the Company repurchased 53,680,000
ordinary shares from JLJH YIHAI Ltd., one of the
shareholders of the Company, at a total consideration of
US$638,108 (equivalent to RMB 4,166,000). These shares
have been held by Vistra Fiduciary (HK) Limited (“RSU
Trustee”) in trust for the benefit of the participants to the
scheme and will be released to participants upon granting
and vesting of each RSU. The shares under the RSU Scheme
have been changed to 77,220,000 after the capitalisation
issue as mentioned in Note 16 (e).

The merger reserve represented the aggregate difference
between the considerations paid and the carrying amounts
of the acquired Listed Business pursuant to the completion
of the Reorganisation (Note 1).

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are
required to make appropriations to statutory reserves from
their profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses
carried forward from prior years as determined under the
PRC accounting regulations and before distribution to
equity holders. The percentages to be appropriated to such
statutory reserve are determined according to the relevant
regulations in the PRC, and further appropriation is optional
when the accumulated fund is 50% or more of the registered
capital of the subsidiaries.

The hedging reserve represented the effective portion of the
accumulative change in the fair value of hedging instruments,
net of tax, pending subsequent recognition in profit or loss.

Shareholders’ contributions in 2015 represented the
additions of land and buildings contributed by Sichuan
Haidilao to Zhengzhou Shuhai (a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group). All of these assets contributed by Sichuan
Haidilao were related to the operation of the Listed Business
during 2015 and prior years.

e MBRRME

17. (&)

(@)

B E20165%F 128310 I+ &
B RABRMNZIREIIRDE
([ ZBR&IBR DB 5Tl -

R2016%F2A &KX o 7 H
A E — AR EILIH YIHAI
Ltd.B8 [=53,680,000% &
wR - A ER638,108%
(B N A K ¥ 4,166,000
L) - ZERMGUEERFNE
Vistra Fiduciary (HK) Limited
([ZRFROEMZIFTEADR
TEIZHEENFRSE - L
REEZRHERMEMNELR
Em%é?ﬁﬂl%/,\% AR EE

16(e)Fiit » ER(LBITES
PRI D EMFTEIT AR (D&
B4 77,220,000 f% -

AffREEESIREREREE
AL 7T B R U RS £ 7h SRS (R R
1DREEBNEEEE -

2 B R B A A AL B Y
RNAABFRRNP - KHEH
REPESHHROEENBE
FEAERITBERURRE
RIEFBEAD KB E - =5
EERE o BEER BRI
B0 b Ty iR R o E AE B AR
E o MR ESEWBAE
A EAR50%Ek L Bl
AREROFE SRR -

HhREBREYPIARATE
R BB RIS (HIRH
H o SHENEEER) ©

2015 FREHEREHRMIE
EHEHEREMEE(REH
EMBAR)REL W RE
FoWIEFEBEMNZEE
ERINE0IFERBAEE
K FEKER -

2016 Annual Report F [E #f &

201



202

e M RR M

17.

18.

RESERVES (Cont’d)

() Deemed distribution to shareholders in 2015 mainly
represented drawings made by Sichuan Haidilao from the
Listed Business; and the consideration of RMB 42.82 million
paid by the Group in acquiring certain land and building from
Sichuan Haidilao pursuant to the Reorganisation mentioned
in Note 1.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Restricted Share Unit Scheme

The Company adopted the RSU Scheme on 24 February 2016
with a duration of 10 years commencing from the adoption date.
The objective of the RSU Sheme is to encourage and retain
selected participants which include directors, employees, officers,
and distributors of the Group, to work with the Group and to
provide additional incentive for them to achieve performance
goals.

The RSU Trustee holds the Company’s shares before they are
vested and transferred to selected participants. As the financial
and operational policies of the Trust are governed by the Group
and Group benefits from the Trust’s activities, the Trust is
consolidated in the Group’s financial statements as a special
purpose entity.

Upon vesting of shares by selected participants (“Restricted
Shares”), the RSU Trustee will release these shares. Restricted
Shares vest gradually after selected participants complete a
period of service in the Group of 36 months from the date of
grant. The vested shares are transferred to selected participants
at US$ 0.0082 per share.

The maximum number of Restricted Shares shall not exceed 5%
of the Company’s share capital in issue from time to time. For
each selected participant, the maximum number of Restricted
Shares granted in aggregate shall not exceed 10,469,000 shares,
being 1% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the
adoption date of 24 February 2016.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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18.

()

() 2015FREFTRKTRREE
EmIgRE B EmEKESR
MR . RASEEREM
it i) S5 48 120 PO | DS TS 155 LA
ET L REFmZAANRE
ARBE4282FETT °

ARz 17 A B R R 45 1E

% PR 1 Bz 17 B i 5t 81

RRFN2016F2B24 B IRMZ
RERDEMETE - BRABHE
STRMA10F - ZRFIRMDENFE
NENATBREESESRE (8
BEAEEES - EE -  sRBER
R NAEB I WAKER
HEINRBUBREERR -

ZREBRDEMZTARERFR
NEBREETRESRENFR
ZERD BRNEENUBEREE
HRBAEESAE  AAKEXH
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18. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (Cont’d)

Restricted Share Unit Scheme (Cont’d)

As at 28 December 2016, 9,140,000 Restricted Shares were
granted to directors (as to 1,510,000 shares), employees (as to
7,340,000 shares) and distributors (as to 290,000 shares).

The fair value of Restricted Shares awarded was based on the
market value of the Company’s shares at the grant date.

Movements in the number of Restricted Shares granted and
related fair value are as follows:

18.

e MBRRME

ARz 0 B E R ()

5 PR I AR 193 B oL & &1 (4%)

2016 F 128280 E =E=(®
1,510,000 B M=) € &
($£7,340,000 B2 B 19 1 = ) I &2 88
(7 290,000 B 0 ™ 5 ) B &K
9,140,000 AR Z PR HI AR D ©

ERHZRFROODFEDER
RABRG AR AN HEEE -

EELERERGBE RANAT
EWRBIOT :

2016 2015
2016 20154

Weighted = Number of Weighted Number of

average Restricted average Restricted

fair value Shares fair value Shares

(per share) granted (per share) granted

T 15 EiEHE hnAEF EREE

ATE(EER) REABRMCEE AFEER) REIKROHE
HK$ (Thousands) HK$ (Thousands)

&I (F82) BIT (FR&)

As at 1 January ®1B1H = — — —
Granted [SFi-4w 3.18 9,140 — —
Vested [0 — — — —
Lapsed [REve — — — —
As at 31 December M12 A 31H 3.18 9,140 — —

The fair value of Restricted Shares charged to the consolidated
income statement was RMB 102,000 during the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

HZE2016F 12831 HIEFE » #]
BRBEZEWERNZIREIIRG DT

B A A K ¥102,000 5t (2015%F :
=)
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19. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables were mainly arising from the purchase of
materials. The credit terms of trade payables granted by the
vendors are usually 30 to 90 days. At 31 December 2016, the
ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date were
are follows:

19. B EMNIA

ESEMNRETEREBEERM
H-BARLENEZESRIBERFE
HIEE A30E90K - R20165F 12
B31H  ERNBZEAHMNEZEN
RIERBRDMTIT -

As at 31 December

W12A31H
2016 2015
2016 £ 20155
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥TT ARBT T
Within 3 months 3MEAR 68,155 42,937
3 to 6 months 3B Z6MEA 2,576 352
6 months to 1 year 6EAZE1EF 545 35
Total BEt 71,276 43,324

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 20. HEMRERESER
As at 31 December

W12H31H
2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARETT

Wages, salaries and

other employee benefits IE - FekHEMESREF 16,019 10,590
Advances from customers W FRIE 9,922 6,147
Other tax payables H b EHI1E 8,933 5,773
Sales rebates SHERF 8,755 15,466
Suppliers’ deposits HEDZES 3,281 1,886
Listing related expenses EhERBEMX 2,802 5,521
Related parties (Notes 31(d)) BA5E 5 (FYEE31(d)) 4,045 141,633
Transportation iy 2,001 7,044
Marketing expenses payables &R X — 1,540
Payables for legal and professional fees fEfEEREEEH 135 601
Others Hith 855 714
Total et 56,748 196,915

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.



21.

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SHARES

On 14 December 2015, the Company issued 54,222,222 shares
of Series A preferred shares with redemption and conversion
features (“RCPS” or “Series A Preferred Shares”) at an issue price
of RMB 3.44 per share to two independent third parties, namely
Glorious Future Holding Limited and Charlin Holdings Limited
(collectively referred to as the “Preferred Shareholders”), for an
aggregate consideration of RMB 186,667,000.

Certain key features of the RCPS are as follows:

Liquidation

In a liquidation event, all assets and funds of the Company legally
available for distribution to the shareholders shall be distributed
as follows:

()  Prior to and in preference to any distribution of any of the
assets of the Company to the common shareholders, the
Preferred Shareholders shall be entitled to receive for each
outstanding RCPS held, an amount equal to 100% of the
RCPS’ purchase price, plus an annual simple return of 10%
accrued thereon, and plus all declared but unpaid dividend
(the “Preference Amount”);

(i) After the full Preference Amount has been paid, the
remaining assets and funds of the Company legally
available for distribution to the shareholders (both ordinary
shareholders and Preferred Shareholders) shall be
distributed ratably among the shareholders (both ordinary
shareholders and Preferred Shareholders) in proportion to
the number of shares (both ordinary shares and RCPS) held
by them (calculated on an as converted to common shares
basis).

21.

e MBRRME

] [ T SR B SE Y

M2015F 128148 BAFRE
RO AR 3.44 THEITED
M & ¥ 55 =75 (B) Glorious Future
Holding Limited } Charlin Holding
Limited » A8 R E LR E 1) &
1754,222,222 IR Al EE Bl AT 2 R A 2
HIE bR ([ o] R AT SR E L AR sk
[ARIIEBER]  REEHAAR
#£ 186,667,000 7T °

O ERELARNE TEES
BT -

it

EBESMHP - BEARAREDIK
TRRNMBEERESHREU
TREETDIK :

() HEEZERBRIIK 0T
REER  BERBRRERE
BARBEENERBITEINIT
& [E] o] 82 48 ST B B AR
S EE T ERELRBE
BHNELE B ETH
10% FEFEXERR - A
EHESREAIFRE(E
LEE]) ;

(i) MNEHELEEER S B
RAAREDIRTRR(EE
PR AR IR B A8 S BRI R ) BOBR T
EERETARBRR(ESE
IR K B EBRBR)IFEH
RO (BEERK A ED A EiR
BER)BEDRRERSS
BROEETE)ZLAIE R
R °
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21.

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SHARES
(Cont’d)

Conversion

The RCPS may, at the option of the holder, be converted at
any time into ordinary shares. The RCPS shall automatically be
converted into ordinary shares upon the closing of a qualified IPO
(as defined by the Company’s memorandum of association).

The initial conversion ratio/price for the RCPS to ordinary shares
are 1:1. This 1:1 ratio does not take consideration of the fact
that the ordinary shares is at par value of US$ 0.00001 and issue
price of RCPS is at RMB 3.44 per share. The initial conversion
ratio/price is subject to adjustments for certain factors, including
share split, share division, share combination, share dividend,
reorganisation, merger, combination, reclassification, exchange,
substitution, recapitalisation or similar events (other than certain
excepted issuances, such as new securities issuance under a
qualified IPO).

Redemption

Upon the earlier of the occurrence of the following trigger
events: (1) the Company fails to complete the qualified IPO by
31 December 2018, (2) the Company’s consolidated after-tax
net profit, after deducting non-recurring profit and loss (including
but not limited to, the issuance of the RCPS and IPO related
expenses) for the fiscal year of 2015 equals to or is less than RMB
87.9 million, within ninety (90) days after the Company receive the
written request from the majority of the holders of the RCPS, the
Company shall redeem all of the outstanding RCPS.

The redemption price for each preferred share shall equal to
100% of the Preferred Share purchase price, plus an annual
simple return of 10% accrued thereon.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.

21.

A [0 7T S48 B SR B (48
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FAEATREBRS TED 7 &R
BERERAZER REEKE
RAMBE(ERR BEATAME
BAM)ERE  AJEETERES
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Z I A5t & & i# IR E {E % 0.00001
3 A BE 0] A B R B SRR AV B 1T
BEEERARMI44T - IKE
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21.

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SHARES
(Cont’d)

Redemption (Cont’d)

The Group designates the RCPS as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. The entire RCPS are initially and
subsequently measured at fair value, with charges in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income in the year in which they arise.

The initial recognition of proceeds to the RCPS are as follows:

21.

e MBRRME

A [0 7T S48 B SR B (48

B (A

4 9 B T BB A M R
TEEBARUBELMEH - 2
0 L A S IR A
THATEN S HATPESBR
HELFENGASARAZR

S
B

A BE o] v R B S IR TS R IE A 5
ERWT

Fair value
changes
of RCPS

AR E SRR
A TEES
RMB’ 000
AR®FT

Upon issuance and at 31 December 2015
Fair value loss of RCPS
Converted into ordinary shares (Note 16)

BITHBRN2015F 12 A31 8
ATERE RN A FEEE
g AT EAR (MIEE16)

186,667
35,264
(221,931)

As at 31 December 2016

2016 F 12 831 H

On 13 July 2016, save as disclosed in Note 16, all RCPS were
automatically converted into 78,000,000 ordinary shares (after
the capitalisation issue as mentioned in Note 16(g)), the fair value
of RCPS was changed to RMB 221,931,000 on 13 July 2016 as
determined based on the quoted market price of the ordinary
shares on the date of conversion (31 December 2015 - the fair
value of the RCPS was RMB 186,667,000 as determined based
on the discounted cash flow method) and a fair value loss of RMB
35,264,000 was resulted thereon.

W EE16 AT - 201657 B 13
HFiEEBRELIRCEHE
# 578,000,000 A% & 8 A% (FA B 5%
16(e) ATV E AL B 1T ) R IJ &
BELRWNAFENR20165F7A
13H%® A A K 221,931,0007T °
HIERZBERRN AR B HETR
MWmEEE(R0I5E12A318 —
AEREERNAFEAARE
186,667,000 7T * LT E R BAIRIR
SHREEETE) YHUELEAFE
18 A R# 35,264,000 7T °
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22. EXPENSES BY NATURE 22, EUBEESHRAX
Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution expenses and FTAHERA - KLHEAZRITHER
administrative expenses are analysed as follows: MBS AWT

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLLEE

2016 2015
2016 2015 %
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Raw materials used Fr A E#R 608,240 501,845
Changes in inventories of finished goods &M R R B IFEE B
and work in progress (24,573) (21,933)
Employee benefit expenses (Note 23)  {BEBFIFI % (M3t 23) 122,303 84,869
Advertising and EEREAmEHERE
other marketing expenses 33,116 31,677
Transportation and related charges ERkiEETH 19,499 14,628
Depreciation of property, M BERZETE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (FF&EET) 13,825 19,233
Non-income taxes and surcharges BB IE R NE 12,295 7,268
Listing related expenses EmiERER 10,345 7,908
Rental expenses HERX 10,753 5,478
Utilities X BERBREH 9,854 9,248
Warehouse expenses (Note 31 (b)) EFFE A (MEE31(0) 7,061 3,150
Legal and professional fees EENREESBHR 5,696 3,113
Travel and entertainment expenses ERRIBEE 5,825 3,912
Auditor’s remuneration A CIEAT
- Reporting accountant’s services — RIS TR L R EH
in relation to listing PR 1,196 1,852
- Audit services — X EBRTE 1,950 170
- Non-audit services — B R 330 —
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) = ith/{F FA e i 6 503 223
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#H 372 62
Management service fee EEREE — 2,171
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment ~ FEWEIERERME,
of receivables (Note 12 and 13) (=) (FFEE12 % 13) 112 211)
Write-down of inventories (Note 11) mEEFE (MEE11) 152 186
Other expenses Hipaxz 13,980 10,410
Total HEt 852,834 685,259
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23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 23. EERAMAX
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T ARET T
Wages, salaries and bonuses TITE - HEeRIEA 122,303 84,869
Five highest paid individuals AEAREEHHAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 2016 include 2 (2015:2) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note
33. The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to
the remaining 3 (2015:3) individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the years are as follows:

AEBBZE06FLEFENTR
BeHMA LT BE2EES(2015
F:28) EMESRME33IFR
HaMRBR- REBEEERFR
ENAEBGBTIZESFMA LT
(2015%F : 3R MBS T -

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBTF T
Wages, salaries and bonuses IE - HFekital 2,098 2,177
The emoluments fell within the following bands: MENHRUTEE :
Number of individuals
AE
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
Emolument bands (in HK$) & =5 E (B T)
Nil - HK$1,000,000 2% 1,000,000 78T 3 3

None of the above employees were paid by the Group as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office. No retirement benefits were paid
to or receivable by any of the above employees.

REEIWHER LRSS AR
FEREEMAREBEFHMARE
ERVEBNERBEBEE - L3
R R S 8L WS B W BGR (4R
o
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24. OTHER INCOMES AND GAINS-NET 24, HANBRWNFE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE
2016 2015
2016 2015 £
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARET T
Government grant BT B 12,523 2,864
Consulting service income B BRI A 7,547 —
Sales of scrap materials BERIEHE 517 594
Losses on disposal of property, BEVE - BER
plant and equipment RENEE (780) @)
Others Hi 1,674 23
Total other incomes and gains-net Hag A R U A FZa4 258 21,481 3,479
25. FINANCE INCOME - NET 25. FMEWNFHE

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ12A31HILEE

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®TT ARET T

Interest income FIEUEA 933 57
Exchange gain B S UL A 32,759 1,304
Net finance income mMEUW N FEE 33,692 1,361

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.



26.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

e MBRRME

26. FABHEAX

Year ended 31 December

HZ12HA31HLEE

2016 2015
2016 £ 20155
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARBTT
Current income tax BNHA A8 %% 69,085 42,863
Deferred tax credit (Note 10) EERIRIE % (s 10) (716) (490)
Income tax expense FriS®iRA 68,369 42,373
(a) Cayman Islands income tax (a) FHEFEFSBH
The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands as RATREBEEFHES A TER
an exempted company with limited liability under the HERSTMR Y AEREE
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is [REEAT  HERRHMNE
exempted from payment of local income tax. TS H o
(b) PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) b) TRHRLCEMEH(LERSE
Bl
The income tax provision of the Group in respect of REBDIRIEERITEN - 2B
operations in the PRC has been calculated at the tax rate REBEHNBE2016 F K
of 25% on the estimated assessable profits for the years 2015% 128318 Lt F E
end 31 December 2016 and 2015, based on the existing st FER R R RIZ 25% BB
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof. R EH PR EEWTERH R
e
(c) PRC withholding tax (“WHT”) (c) "HEFEMB(FAEINFL

According the applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a foreign
investor with respect to profit derived after 1 January 2008
are generally subject to a 10% WHT. If a foreign investor
incorporated in Hong Kong meets the conditions and
requirements under the double taxation treaty arrangement
entered into between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant
withholding tax rate will be 5%.

BIEERNPEREER -
MR EK KA T H2008 F
181 B2 BHREMEF RS
IMREEDITRIRE — BB
10% M FB IR  fi B B IR
BEERNEBEMAYL  L/FE
PRI BT Y NERRER
HETHRERRE - BI/EEE
FENBRELER5% °
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26. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

(c)

26.

o

PRC withholding tax (“WHT”) (Cont’d)

According to a shareholder’s resolution of the immediate
holding company of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group dated
31 December 2016, the retained earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC as at 31 December
2016 will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. As a
result, no deferred tax liability was recognised.

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax

rate as follows:

FriS RS ()

(c) FPEIFRMBL(EHHR]) (&)

REAEETEKBQAH
EEERAFHAHR2016F
12A31ENRRRER  R®
2016 12 A 31 HARKERH
B = A A2 B9 B B X R PR BB
BRI ERTRREDIK °
Hit WEBEBRELEHIRE
& -

HARS B BRBUAD R A AT R
BRI R E R R E L AEm ALK
HYZERAT -

Year ended 31 December

HZE12831ALEE

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®F T ARBT T
Profit before income tax FREFISFLRRF] 255,089 166,920
Tax calculated at domestic tax RERBRE A RNEF K
rates applicable to profits in R R ENFIE
the respective countries 66,703 41,364
Expenses not deductible RATMNFEE &
for tax purposes 1,666 1,009
Taxation charge BIESZH 68,369 42,373

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.



27. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic

Basic earnings per share for each of the years ended 31
December 2016 are calculated by dividing the profit of the
Group attributable to the owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue less
shares held for RSU Scheme during the year.

e MBRRME

27. EREF

(a)

X

B E2016%F 128310 1t &
BEENSRERBRIRAA
TEB AEGREBGZEFRIBRIA
FREBTZBERINETF
SR SIS EZ IR FIMR D BB 5T
BB MDETE -

Year ended 31 December

HZE12831ALEE

2016 2015
2016 2015 %
Profit attributable to owners of RN TR AL REF]
the Company (RMB’000) (AR®FT) 186,720 124,547
Weighted average number of ERITEERNINETIIH
ordinary shares in issue less WEFEZ RFIR D EN
shares held for RSU Scheme TR (TR
(thousands) 797,220 561,693

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic earnings per share for both
years has been adjusted for the effect of 237,777,778
ordinary shares to be allotted and issued, credited as fully
paid to the then shareholders pursuant to the capitalisation
issue immediately completing the Global Offering (Note
16(e)), and as if the aggregate effects of the Share Split had
taken place at the beginning of 2015 (Note 16(b)).

FTEMEFEENSREARR
Fr @R e 9 EE R
BEPRBETHARIBER
{LE1TR B RFAR R EL S K 31T
237,777,778 R A BRI B #E 2
(Y5 3 B B9 S B F AR B (B
sE16(e) » WU D IHFHIA
MEET R 2015 F 42 A& (FisE
16(b)) °
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27. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont’ad)

(b)

Diluted

27.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
The RCPS and granted of Restricted Shares are the dilutive
potential ordinary shares. As disclosed in Note 21, on 13
July 2016, all RCPS were automatically converted into
ordinary shares. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Company’s RCPS and granted of Restricted Shares
were anti-dilutive and the diluted earnings per share is the

same as basic earnings per share.

BREN(E)

(b) #E

SRS ERFIERBRSEME
Bru#sLBEREcER  #
ML BT BRINEFS
EETESE - TEETERE
SRR ZREBRMEMTES
RENZREIROEMNEBE
BETEMR - M1 TR
= M2016F7H 138 » At
EUEETERELREEE
ERALZERK B ZE20165F
12A31BLEFEE > XAFH
A g [0 A BB SR AR 2 32 PR
P& 10 BE (v 51 B AR H A9 32 PR %
BRMDENBREE  SRES
BEFEGREREFIER -

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLLEE

2016 2015
2016 £ 2015
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of RARHEE AEEER
the Company (RMB’ 000) (ARMFT) 186,720 124,547
Adjustment for fair value loss AEEERELERATE
of RCPS (RMB’000) gk 35,264 —
Profit used to determine AUBEESREERAN
diluted earnings wH(ARETFT)
per share (RMB’000) 221,984 124,547
Weighted average number of AR EESRELRBRTN
ordinary shares in issue for ERITEBRMEFIIH
basic earnings per share (F1)
(thousands) 797,220 561,693
Adjustments for: BUT EBEELHAE
- Assumed conversion of — R AT AT
RCPS (thousands) BEREER(TR) 41,458 3,633
- Granted of Restricted Shares - ZRFIRMENLTES
(thousands) = H Y 5% PR i AR 19 B {1
(FK) 716 —
Weighted average number of ~ ARFTESREERFIN
ordinary shares for diluted EERMEFE I (TR)
earnings per share (thousands) 839,394 565,326
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28.

29.

DIVIDENDS 28
No dividends were declared by the Company in 2015.

The board of directors of the Company proposed the payment
of a final dividend of RMB3.5671 cents per ordinary share out of
share premium of the Company, amounting to RMB37,344,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2016, and which is to be proposed
for approval by the shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting to be held on 31 May 2017.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH 29.

FLOWS

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash flows

used in operations:

e MBRRME

Bz 2
R20155F » ARFLESIKKRE

AATEETEEZURD BERIK
t & £E2016F 128318 It & &
REREERAQATAEBRARKE
3.5671% » BEAARYEI7.344 8
Brx CREEN=-Z—tFERHA
=t+—HETYRRBFRG LH#
AT RERALAE -

RARERERME

(@) BRETISBIADGF S L FT AR
EREFHENHROT :

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE

2016 2015
2016 £ 2015 %
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARKT T ARBT T
Profit before income tax BRFTS AR R 255,089 166,920
Adjustments for: BUTBELFE
Fair value change of A EEE T ERE LR A TE

RCPS (Note 21) SE(MfaE21) 35,264 —
Share-based payment expense DR AERNAREX

(Note 18) (FFEE18) 102 —
Depreciation of property, M - BMERZBINE

plant and equipment (Note 7) (FsE7) 13,825 19,233
Amortisation of land use rights + #hfE FARE R 8E (FIEE6)

(Note 6) 503 203
Amortisation of intangible assets L& E #H 372 62
Losses on disposal of property, EEBY¥ - BER

plant and equipment (Note 24) RN EE (e 24) 780 2
Provision for/(Reversal of) FEW BRI BRI,

impairment of receivables ($&ml) (FfaE12 &2 13)

(Note 12 and 13) 112 211)
Write-down of inventories (Note 11) #5717 & (F5E 11) 152 186
Finance income (Note 25) R U A (B EE 25) (33,692) (1,361)
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
Inventories =FE (27,894) (19,604)
Trade and other receivables ES RHMEBRRIER

and prepayments FEFIR 9,896 (75,411)
Trade and other payables B RHMEMNRIER

and accruals EsrER 28,733 35,899
Cash generated from operations  E&FB5EE 283,242 125,938
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH 29. FEBRERERMEE)
FLOWS (Cont’d)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment (b) HEVE - BERREMER
comprise: HEE -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARBTT
Net book amount (Note 7) BREFE(FIEET) 6,314 308
Loss on disposal of property, BB  RMERZEN
plant and equipment (Note 24) 518 (FiaE 24) (780) ©@)
Proceeds from disposal of property, EBY¥ - =N &RE
plant and equipment Fr{SF0IR 5,534 306
30. COMMITMENTS 30. Kk
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAEIE
The Group did not have any material capital commitments & B R2016F12831H
as at 31 December 2016. BT M E REREIE -
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) KEHERE
The Group leases various offices and warehouses under NREBRIEFRTRHEKCEHE
non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The future HEEEZERAERERE -
minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating NEEEERAHCIINELR
leases contracted for at the balance sheet dates but not WEALB BN T URHELSE
recognised as liabilities, are as follows: HETHRRZFEEEESK
HAR ¢

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31BLEE

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR#ET T AR¥TF T

Within 1 year —FR 3,013 3,013
Between 1 to 5 years —ZRE[ 3,013 6,026
6,026 9,039
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. EXHBARS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, E—hAEROEESEEZESS—
directly or indirectly, control the other party or exercise significant o STEAE B I AR IR B R R
influence over the other party in making financial and operation HE—FTEEAFED  BHER
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are BB - WESS AT HREE
subject to common control. Members of key management and #l > BI AR AL - NEBW
their close family member of the Group are also considered as FTEEEBAERBEENERTHE
related parties. RAEBEEHR -
Name and relationship with related parties: B8R RS WER
Names of the related parties Nature of relationship
BAEE T B REEE
Sichuan Haidilao and its subsidiaries Companies beneficially owned
by the Ultimate Shareholders

m)IBERERENE QR HEARREZHEEN AR
HAI DI LAO HOLDINGS PTE. LTD. and Companies beneficially owned

its subsidiaries (“Singapore Haidilao Group”) by the Ultimate Shareholders
HAI DI LAO HOLDINGS PTE. LTD. HBERRREZEEN AT

REMBAR(FIBRESEEEER )
Shuhai (Beijing) Supply Chain Management Company beneficially owned

Co., Ltd. (“Shuhai Supply Chain”) by the Ultimate Shareholders
FE(AR)HESEEEAREE AR H5MtEE]) HEXRREGEENLA
Youdingyou (Beijing) Food Ltd. (“Youdingyou”) Company beneficially owned

by the Ultimate Shareholders

TRESEEREEEFRLTN(ERE) HEARREZEEN AR
Sichuan Haidilao Group and Singapore Haidilao Group are MBEBEBRFINEEERE
collectively referred to as Haidilao Group. BEsEAERBESR -
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31. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’a)

The following transactions were carried out in the ordinary course
of the Group’s business and were determined based on mutually

agreed terms for the year ended 31 December 2016.

All transactions with related parties were also continuing
connected transactions under agreements signed in 30 March

2016.

(a) Sales of goods

31.

EXBABARXS (&)
THRBIIRAEE —REKBRE
T WEREBZE20165F12 8
31 HIEFEEBEBENKRRERE -
FrEHEEB TN Z T A2016 F 3
B30 BRI WHRETWSERE

(a) HEER
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

2016 2015

2016 £ 20154

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥FT ARETT

Haidilao Group BREEE 597,546 457,753
Shuhai Supply Chain g HERE 4,654 4,538
Youdingyou BERE 3,528 2,812
Total st 605,728 465,103

(b) Management service fee, warehouse and rental

expenses

(b) EERBE AEREEMX

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE

2016 2015
2016 2015 %
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARBT T
Management service fee EERFE

Sichuan Haidilao M) e S = 2,171

Warehouse expenses AERX
Sichuan Haidilao M) EE 5 1,160 2,948
Shuhai Supply Chain Bt 2,308 —
3,468 2,948

Rental expense HERX
Sichuan Haidilao )8R # 2,917 —

All the Transactions with related parties were conducted in
accordance with the terms of contracts entered into between

the Group and the related parties.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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31. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’a) 31. EXBABARS(E)

(c) Key management compensation (c) EEEEEEHMH

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARBT T

Salaries, allowance and
other benefits e EMREMEF 2,917 3,423

Year-end balances with related parties were as follows:

(d) EREAEEGEMFREERMT

As at 31 December

®12A31H
2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Assets BE
Trade receivables BB EWFIE
— Haidilao Group - BEHEER 53,638 57,566
— Shuhai Supply Chain — &g itEE 341 506
- Yondingyou -BRE 245 435
Subtotal Pt 54,224 58,507
Other receivables H W RIE
— An officer of the Group - AREEN—BSRBE 390 450
Total et 54,614 58,957
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31. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’a)

(d)

(e)

Year-end balances with related parties were as follows:
(Cont’d)

31.

EXRBAR S (E)
d EEBAITNFERGEHMOT :
(/&

As at 31 December

W12H31H
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARET T
Liabilities afE
Other payables and accrual Hi B FIER BT E
— Haidilao Group - BRBEE 3,977 141,633
— Shuhai Supply Chain — Bt 64 —
- Yondingyou -ERE 4 —
Total et 4,045 141,633

All the balances with related parties are unsecured, bear no
interest and short-term in nature.

Free trademark license agreement

On 1 December 2015, the Group entered into two trademark
license agreements with Sichuan Haidilao in respect of
certain trademarks which had been registered by the name
of Sichuan Haidilao in the PRC and certain trademarks which
are in the process of registration by Sichuan Haidilao in the
PRC (collectively, the “Trademark License Agreements”),
pursuant to which Sichuan Haidilao agreed to license such
trademarks for the Group to use in connection with the
Group’s operations on an exclusive and royalty-free basis for
a perpetual term commencing from 1 January 2007 to the
extent permissible under the Listing Rules of HKSE, relevant
laws and regulations.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.

(e)

EARARE S MO PT B SR ML E T
BRERAR RERER -

REBR IR

R2015F1281H: &K &
EEEP) R E RS
EERBEUN)EREEEHRT
Mme=E T EEPERE
FME TEE LM EE
FOHEGE EEST IR
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HUAEBES BB LT
AR AR AEER TS
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32. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

e MBRRME

32. ARREEABRRHFEED

ARAFEERER

As at 31 December

W12A31H
2016 2015
2016 £ 20154
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT AR¥T T
Assets BiE
Non-current assets ERBHEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB A RRIRE 1,130,000 1,130,000
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b FEWRIE 139,508 9,104
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEEY 819,096 196,647
Total current assets MEEERE 958,604 205,751
Total assets EEMAE 2,088,604 1,335,751
Equity =
Equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company ARRESFEAELES
Share capital i 68 31
Reserves it 2,087,922 1,149,053
Total equity B 2,087,990 1,149,084
Liabilities afg
Non-current liabilities EREAERE
Redeemable convertible preferred shares 7] f& 2] 7] #E#2 {8 % IR — 186,667
— 186,667
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables Hi I8 614 —
Total liabilities BEEE 614 186,667
Total equity and liabilities ERkE B85 2,088,604 1,335,751

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 28 March 2017 and was signed on its behalf

DANG CHUNXIANG

BEE
Director

EFE

RKABEEBBRCENR2017F3H28H

EBESefE YEREEE -

SUN SHENGFENG

7isIE
Director

EFE
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32. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 32. AQFAIEEEBRRHHEES
COMPANY (Cont’d) (&)
Reserve movement of the Company RATRFEES
Share-based
Share Treasury payment Capital Retained
premium shares reserve reserve earnings Total
ABRAR &
B
BHiEE EERHM FERREE ELARE RBEA Bat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#EFT  AREFr ARETR ARETR AREFT AR¥Tn
As at 1 January 2015 R2015F1 818 - - - 1,130,000 (60) 1,129,940
Profit for the year ERER — — — — 1,464 1,464
Issuance of new ordinary shares  Z{THZER 17,649 — — — — 17,649
As at 31 December 2015 R2015%€12 8310 17,649 — - 1,130,000 1,404 1,149,053
As at 1 January 2016 R2016E1 810 17,649 — — 1,130,000 1,404 1,149,053
Profit for the year FREF — — — — 831 831
Issuance of new ordinary BTHEER (M 16()
shares (Note 16 (f)) 759,284 — — — — 759,284
Capitalisation issue (Note 16 (¢))  EA{LE T (HizE 16(¢) (16) = = = (16)
Share issuance costs RGBTHA (39,093) = = = = (39,093)
Conversion of Redeemable ERTERTERELR
convertible preferred shares 221,927 — — — — 221,927
Share-based payment URHBERNAR
expense (Note 18) B (M 18) = = 102 = = 102
Shares repurchased (Note 17 (a)) BRI/ (Ff:E 17(a) (4,163) () = = = (4166)
As at 31 December 2016 ®2016%E12 831 R 955,588 ) 102 1,130,000 2,235 2,087,922

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.



33. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

During the year end 31 December 2016, there were no
director fees paid/payable. The remuneration of the directors
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is set out
below:

e MBRRME

33. EEFHRER

(a) EFERIETHRAEME

H £20165 128310 1t F
B B8 e[ ERESER
T BEENEHE2016F K
20155 12 B 31 HILFEMNH
BT -

Salaries, bonus,

allowance and benefits
e L4 ERRER

2016 2015
2016 20154
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Name i AR¥ET T ARBT T
Executive director HITES
Ms. Dang Chunxiang (&%) EFRLL 785 799
Mr. Sun Shengfeng (&5 1£) B rE 749 527
Non-executive directors FEHITES
Mr. Zhang Yong (3RE) RELE — —
Mr. Shi Yonghong (#&7K =) Mk % e — —
Mr. Gou Yuiqun (B E¥) HEE L — —
Mr. Pan Di (;&i#) EHEEE — —
Independent
non-executive Directors BIEHITES
Mr. Yau Ka Chi (EBZRE5) (e) ERERBZ ST (e) 86 —
Mr. Qian Mingxing ($2BH£) (e) REAE KA (e) 86 —
Ms. Ye Shujun (EHE) (e) EHEL L (o) 86 —
Chief executive FETHAER
Mr. Du Zhuang (#:At) At s 607 717
Mr. Xu Hai (£58) =L 518 637
2,917 2,680

Ms. Dang Chunxiang and Mr. Sun Shengfeng were
appointed as executive directors on 7 March 2016. Mr.
Zhang Yong, Mr. Shi Yonghong, Mr. Gou Yiqun and Mr.Pan
Di were appointed as non-executive directors on 7 March
2016. Mr. Yau Ka Chi, Mr. Qian Mingxing and Ms. Ye Shujun
were appointed as independent non-executive directors
on 20 June 2016. Mr. Du Zhuang and Mr. Xu Hai were
appointed as chief executive on 7 March 2016.

EEB LT REBELEN2016F3 A
THEZAEBHITES - RELE - X
REE BB LTERBHEEER2016
FIRA7THEZTEIIHNTESE - BB
Sk  BPAEXEREHELTR2016
FOA0REZEABIIHITESE -
M ERBBEER20165FE3A7H
BEZEAFTETHAE -
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33. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

33. EEFHRERE)

ME N T EE -

Number of individuals

A&
2016 2015
2016 4F 20154
Emolument bands (in HK$) B & =5 E (B T)
Nil - HK$1,000,000 22 1,000,00078 7T 7 4

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments
and no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office as
director.

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking.

No payment was made to directors as compensation for the
early termination of the appointment during the year ended
31 December 2016.

No payment was made to the former employer of directors
for making available the services of them as a director of the
Company.

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors during the year ended 31
December 2016.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2016.

MEEEERIZER AR 2D Yihai International Holding Ltd.

(b)

BN BRI EB R E WA
e BAEENEEARQT
FRESZEAME - £S5
WEMAREBEFRIMALRE
EENEBIIEALEESRH
I HYEE -

BEESHREEERLAR
HBRAREHEENE MR
5 W BN PR W B AR KA
A o

#H F20165F 128310 I+ &
B AARWEMIBAIR I
HEESEEREANRIESR
'f% o

RRBAEEARESRHESR
51 @ H 1 & S 1F AR

=
o

B £2016%E 128310 It &
B BENLESE BHESEN
SEREEAEEREHESES

BREANEY  EERRE A
%5 -

ARFMESEHTISINEE
2016 F 12 B31 BLEFELE
B = E 220165128311
LEFEEMIEERTE - 8
EEBEEAES(ERE
EyEE) AE BSHEEEK
EENERNERRS TR
B8 -
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